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DIRECTORS’ REPORT- FY 2022-23

[Te Members,

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Phe Board of Direetors is pleased 1o present the Fifteenth Annual Report of your Company topether with

the Audited Accounes and Auditor's Report for the financial vear ended 31 March 2023,

Financial Highlights

[ﬁa. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 2022-23 2021-22
Revenue from Operations 17,622.88 11,186.13
Other Income 181.06 177.13
Profit/loss before Depreciation, Finance Costs, (326373 .
Exceptional items, and Tax Expense " el
Less: Dieprecianon; Amortisaton,/ lnparment 143.83 08
::f'; : iu;-; II::Z:: Finance Costs, Exceptional items, 13.116.88 8.531.65
Less: Finance Coses 100, 76460 TA52.17
Profit /loss before Exceptional items and Tax Expense 2,352.21 1,079.48
Add/ (less): Exceprional items

Profit /loss before Tax Expense 2,352.21 1,079.48
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 451.05 200,70
Profit /loss for the vear (1) 1,5901.18 869.78
Towal Comprehensive Tneome/lToss (2) 1.12 300
Total (1+2) 1,902.30 875.38
Balance of profit /loss for eaclier viears 337377 20006.53
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemprtion Reserve

Less: Transfer 1o Statutory Reserves 574.73 25518
Less: Transfer to Impairment Reserves 149,26
Less: Share Issue Expenses (net of tax)

Less: Dividend paid on Equite Shares
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Less: Divadend paid on Preference Shares

Less: Dividend Dhistriburion Tax

Balance carried forward 4,701.35 337477

State of Company affairs

During the year under review, your Company increased most of the aperanng and fnancial parameters.
Revenues of the Company were up 38s 1o Rs. 176.23 Cr. (PY Rs. 111.86 Cr.) and PBT substantally
mereased by 118% to Rs. 23.52 Cr, (PY Rs. 10,80 Cr.} - and after pavment of Rs 4.51 Cr. (PY Rs, 2,10 Cr)
in current and deferred raxes and tax on debenture issue expenses, PA'L increased 119" 1o Rs. 19.02 Cr,
(Y Rz B.70 Cr.),

In reems of lending operations. cumulative housing loan sancrions aggregated Rs. 2829.53 Cr. (up 3¢
from Rs. 2176.91 Cr. at end of the previous financial vear) = all 1o lower income. urban families who are
generally excluded from the mamstream banking sector. The toral loans outstanding figure was Rs. 1525.60
Cr. (growth of 35”0 over Rs. 1130.37 C. ar end of the previous financial vear). The Company currently
operates in Y states — Mahaeashtra, Gujarar, Madhva Pradesh, Rajasthan, West Bengal, Chhattisgarh, Tamul
Nadu, Orissa and Harvana and | Union Territory — Daman and Diu,

In terms of portfolio quality, the Company had 738 (PY 432) loan accounts as on vear endd - Aarch 31,
2023 - which were elassified as non-performing assers (“NPAs™ per the prudential guidelines issued by
the RBI / NHB. The amount of such Gross NPAs was Rs, 31,46 Cr. (PY Ra. 18.73 Cr.) which was 206
(PY 1.66%) of the ol loan porttolio of the Company as at March 31, 2023, The Company has created
necessary provisions in accordance with the RBI & NHB Dircctions, after which Net NPAs stood at
R 2434 Cr, (PY Rs. 15,55 Crj and LA (PY 138" of the wial loan porttolio as ar March 31, 2023

In terms of funding, the Company allotred 39.24,170 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach at a Premium of
Rs. 32.20/- per share amounnng 1o Rs, 24,99.99.974 /- (Rupees Twenty-Four Crores Ninew-Nine Lakhs,
Nmery-Nine Thousand, Nine Hundred and Seventy-Four only) in the month of October 2022; 38.27.506
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each ar a Premium of Rs. 32.90/- per share amounting to Rs. 25,00,00,007.440/-
(Rupees Twenty-Five Crores and Seven and Paise Forty only) m the month of December 2022 and
36,5483} Lquity Shares of Rs. 10 each at a Premium of Rs. 34.21/- per share amounting to
Rs. 25000453430/« (Rupees Twentyv-Five Crores and Thirty-Four and Paise Thirty only) in the month
of March 2023 1o its Holding Company, Svatantra Holdings Private Limited. and with retained profits, ner
worth nereased to Rs. 29019 Cr. (PY Rs. 196,25 Cr.). However, the Company increased its long-rerm debe
to Re. 145183 Cr. (PY Rs. 1066.62 Cr.) of which appros. 11L.95% continues to be refinance support from
the NHB. Other lenders to your Company include the nationalized bank such as State Bank of India,
Union Bank of India, Punjab Nanonal Bank, Canara Bank, Bank of Baroda, UCO Bank, Indian Bank and
Bank of Maharashtea; commereial banks such as HDFC Bank Lid., Kotk Mahindea Bank Lid.. DCB Bank
Lid., ICICI Bank Limited, Karnaraka Bank Ltd.. South Indian Bank Ltd, Federal Bank Lud, Yes Bank Lid,
Utkarsh Small Finanee Bank Litd, IndusInd Bank Lid, Dhanlaxmi Bank Led, The Karur Yysva Bank Lad.,
IDBI Bank Lrd., Axis Bank Lid., AU Small Finance Bank Ltd, RBL. Bank, Catholic Synan Bank, Bandhan
Bank, and.: NBFCs such as Tata Capital Financial Services Limited, Bajaj Finance Lud, and ALK Caparal
Finance Ltd and the leading development agency, the International Finance Corporation (“IFC”). The
Company’s entire loan portfolio continues to qualify as prionty sector as defined by the Reserve Bank of
India ("RBI"). Based on our excellent relationships with our current bankers and the eompany’s financial
and portfolio performance we are confident of arranging additonal debrt to cover projected growth plans.
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The Company is very well eapitalised with eapiral adequacy mtio ar 38,36 of risk weighted assers, as

against the minimum requirement of 15%.,

Change in the nature of Business.

There was no change in the nature of business during the vear.

Share Capital

(a) Authorised Share Capital of the Company:

The Authonised Share Capual of the Company as on 19 \pril 2022 stood ar Rs, 85 00,00 0 W/ (Rupees
Fighty-Iive Crores Only) consisting of 5 A40,00,000 (Five Crores Forty Lakhs) Equiry Shares of Rs. 10/~
(Rupecs Ten Only) and 3100000 (Thiety-One Lakhs) Preference shares of Rs. 100 cach (Rupees
Hundred each). During the vear under review, the Company increased the Authorised Capiral 1o
Rs. LOOO0O00.000/- (Rupees One Hundred Crores Only) consisting of 6,90,00,000 (Six Crores Ninety
Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) and 3100000 (Thirty-One Lakhs) Preference
Shares of Rs. 100 cach (Rupees Hundred cach) by creating additional 1,50,00.000 (One Crore Fifty
Lakhs) Equiry Shares of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten Only} each vide Extra-Ordinary General Meeting leld

ot December 9, 2022,

(b} Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital of the Company:

During the vear under review, the Issucd, Subseribed & Paid-up Share Capital of the Company has
increased from Rs, 46,39,15.730/- to Rs. 63.79.80.810/-. The details of the shares issued and allotred

during the financial vear 1s given hereunder:

Security

Equity Shares

Equity Shares

Equity Shares

Type of Issue

Righrs Tssue

Rights Issue

Rights lssue

Date of issue

1 GO 2022

. 12.2022

H0.03. 2023

Date of allotment

07, 10,2022

30.12.2022

31.03.2023

Provate Limied

Mo. of Securities 5924170 58,27.506 56,5483
allotted

[ssue price Rs. 42.20/- Rs. 42.90/- Rs. 44.21/-

Amount Rs. 24990074 /- Rs. 23,00,00,007.40/. | Rs. 23,00,00,034.30/ -
Name of Allotee Svatantra [Holdings Svatantra Holdings Svatantra Holdings

Privare Limited

Privare Limired

() Non- Convertible Debentures:
Durng the period under review, the Company issued Non-converuble Debenmres on private
placement basis aggregating to Rs. 10 Crores. Details of the Non-Convertible Debentures issued to

the allorees are mentioned below:
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Name of the Instrument \ Rated, Subordinated, Unsecured, Unlisted, Redeemable,
Non-Convernble Debenmires
Name of Allottees A/s. A K Capiral Finance Limired
Debenture Trustee Caralysr Trusteeship Limired —
Mo. of NCDs 10K
Issue price Bs. LODOK (Indian Rupees One Lakh) per debenrure
Amount raised Rs. 100000000 (Indian Rupees Ten Crore)
Daie of issue June 14, 2022
Date of allotment June 13, 2022
Method of allotment Private Placement
Coupon Rate 9.50" s Coupon per annum
Maturity Date June 15, 2028
Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted anv deposit within the meaning of Seetion 76 of the Compantes Aer, 2013,

since meorporation.

Business Risk Management

The Company has a well-defined nsk management policy and framework n place (which includes
management of credir risk, market risk and operational risk), and has established procedures to periodically
place before the Risk Management Committee, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, the risk
assessment and minimisanion procedures being followed, and steps taken to mitigate these nsks, The Risk
Management Policy 15 approved annually by the Board of Directars,

Annual Return

The Annual Rewrn in Form  MOGT-T s avallable on  the Company’s  website  at
Y it OIPOrTel i

Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives

Your directors confirm that in line with the mandatory requirements of the new Companies Act, vour
Company had constituted a Corporate Social Responsibiliy Committee on March 16, 2015 (which was
reconstituted on Seprember 24, 2018, due 1o the change in the Board of Directors) and has also established
a formal CSR Policy in accordance with the Aet.

However, while the CSR Commitiee confirms thar the implementation and monwonng of CSR Policy is
in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of your Company, 1t is to be noted that the Company has
not spent the required amount as per the new Companies Act which has specitied that 2% of the average
net profits m the last 3 financial vears to be spent on CSR acnivities, For the vear ended March 31, 2023,
this amount was Rs. 1742 lakhs. and the Company spent Rs, 7.43 lakhs (details per “Annexure A™), which

is a shortfall of Rs. 10 lakhs. As per the new CSR Rules under the Companies Net, if the company fails 2675 0




spend the CSR amount specified and has identified any CSR lnitanves as “Ongoing Projects™ as defined
the €SR Rules, then it has o transfer the said unspent CSR Amount i a separate Bank Aecount.
Consequently, the Company had identified a CSR Initative as an Ongoing Project and transferred the
unspent amount of Rs. 10 lakhs to a separate Bank Account on April 26, 223,

Particulars under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013

| S ars of Employvees:

SMHFC had 638 emplovees as of March 31, 2023, The € mpany does not have any emplovee
whose particulars are required to be fumished under Rule 5 of Companies (Appomtment and
Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules, 2014,

2 Conservation of k

The Company is not 2 manafacturing company, hence, the disclosures pertaming 1o conservation
ot energy and rechnology absorption stpulated in Section 134 (3)(m}) of the Companies Acr, 201 3, are
not applicable 1o vour company during the vear under review:,

3. Foreipn Fxchanpe:
Dunng the vear under review, there were no foreign exchange earnings. The Company has paid
USD 5000 (Equivalent Rs. 414800/ a5 a monitoring fee 1o the International Finance Corporation
(L) the holders of Non-Convernble Debentures {"NCD") amounting to Rs. 33,10 Crores issued
by the Company.

ﬁ'ividend

Your Dircetors feel thae it 1= prudent to plough back the profuts for future growth of the Company and do
not recommend any dividend for the vear ended 31+ March 2023.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which have
occurred between the end of the financial vear of the Company to which the financial statements
relate and the date of the report.

There are no marerial changes or commitments, which have occurred after the closure of the financial
statements for the Financial Year 2022-23 il the date of this Report, that affect the Anancial position of
the Company in any adverse wa.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and company’s operations in future.

There were no significant or material orders passed by any Courts or Regulators or Tribunals during the
Fancial Year 2022-23 tha, in the opinion of the Board, have an impact on the going concern stats and
the operations of the Company in the future.

Compliance of Applicable Laws and Secretarial Standards

The Board of Dirccrors hereby declare thar the Company is in compliance of the provisions of the
applicable provisions of seeretarial standards ssued by the Institute of Company Seeretaries of India.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

The provisions of Section 186(11) and 134{3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 requiring dhsclosure of
particulars of the loan given, investments made, and puarantee gven, or securitics provided are not
applicable to the company.




Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under Section 143(12):

l}l.lrl:ng the vear under review, no mstances of framd committed ;1g_1,'“:“ the f:l..ll'l'lpilll}' h!- itz officers or
emplovees were reported by the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditor under Section 14312} of the
Companies Aet, 2013 1o the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors of the Company.

Details of subsidiary/joint venture /associate com pany

The Company does nor have any subsidiany or associate, nor has entered into any jeant venture with any

DrEInEAton,

Reserves

The vl.'fnmp:m]. proposes to ansfee the enfire Profie after Tax Jtn]rlllt‘llfﬂH tor Rs, 19,0233, 449500/~ 1o
General Reserves, out of which further starutory appropratons will be made.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy was approved by the Board ar its Meeting held on 22
October 2014 with effeer from I January 2013, The main purpose of the Policy 15 1o deal with mstances
ol fraud and mismanagement, if any, and o protect any person who makes a good faith disclosure of
suspected wrongful conduct or violations of the Company’s Code of Ethues. The Vigil Mechanism/

Whistle Blower Poliey is posted on the website of the Company ar hips:/ /svata i/ po :

Directors / Key Managerial Personnel

® Re-appointments
Mr. Anil Chirania, Dircetor, retiring by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.
The Board recommends his reappomiment for vour approval,

® Resignations:
There were no resignations during the vear under review,

® Appointments:
There were no appointments during the vear under review.

# Board Evaluation
Pursuant 1o the provisions of the Companies Aer, 2013, the Board conducted a formal annual
evaluation of its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors through a
structured questionnaire comprising various criteria broadly based on: (i) Knowledge ro perform the
role: (i) Time and level of parucipanon; () Performance of duties and level of oversight; and (iv)

-

Professional conduer, The reports were serutinized by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

® Remuneration Policy
The Board has, on the recommendation of the Mominanon & Remuneraton Comminee framed a

policy for sclection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management, and their remuncration. The
Sabient features of the Nomination & Remuneration Poliey are given in “Annesure B, The complete

Policy can be found at Company’s website at hetps://seatantambifc.com/policics.

® Meetings

During the year. 13 Board Meetings, 8 Audit Committee Meetings, 2 Nomination & Remuneration
Committee Meetings and 2 CSR Committee Meenngs were convened and held The mrervening gap
between the Meetings was within the period prescrbed under the Compames Aet, 2013, The details of
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thie same are given in the “Annesure 7

The 14 Anmual General Meeting of the Company was held on 50 seprember 2022 and 17 and 189 Jxra-
Ordinary General Meeting were held on 15 November 2022 and 90 December 2022 respecavely,

® Composition of the Committees:

= The Audit Commirtee was reconstitared by the Board on 24% September 2018, The Members of
the Mudit Commirtee are:

Lo Als. Ananvasheee Bira
2. Mr Vineer Bijende Chartree
3o Mr And Chirania

= The Nomination and Remuneration was recomnstituted by the Board on 249 Seprember 2018, The
Members of the Nominaton and Remuneration Commitiee are:

Mls. Ananyashree Birla
Me. Vineer Bijendra Charteec
M Al Chirania

N

= The CSR Commirtee was reconstituted by the Board on 24% September 2018, The Members of
the CSR Comnutiee are;

I Ms Ananvashree Birla
2 Ale Vineer Bijendea Chatreee
3. Mr Anil Chirsnia

Auditors

P Stamy tory Au liror

M/s 5. Bhandan & Co LLP were appointed as Statutory Auditors of your Company ar the 14% Anpual

General Meeting held on 3 Seprember 2022 for a term of three consecutive vears from the conclusion of
the 4% Annual General Meeting unil the conclusion of the 17 Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Notes ro Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanaton: and need no further
explanation.

There are no gqualificanons or adverse remarks i the Audiror’s Report which require  any
clarification /explanarion,

¥ Sceretanal Auditor:

M/s N S & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, (FCS No.: 8307 and Certificate of Practice No.
9312} has been appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2022-23, in terms of
Section 204 of the Companies Aet, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.

Secretarial Audit Report

The report of the Secretanal Auditor is enclosed as “Annexure 177 1o this Reporr.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the  Auditor's Report which require any
clarification/explanation,




Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In terms of Scction 134 (3){c) of the Companies Act, 2013, we, the Directors of Svatantea Micro Housing
Finance Corporation Limited, state in respect of Financtal Year 2022-23 rthar:

a) i the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounnng standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating ro marerial departures;

b the Dircctors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent <o as 1o give a true and fair view of the
state of affars of the company ar the end of the financial year and of the profic of the company
tor thar periodd:

¢} the Directors had tken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records i accordance with the provisions of this Acr for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for prevenung and detecting fraud and other irregulantics;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual aceounts on a going concern basis;

¢} the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such svstems were adequare and operating effectively.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The Company has pur i place an adequare internal control system to safeguard all assets and ensure
operational efficiency. The Company also has an internal auditor 0 conduer the testing of the Internal
Finaneial Control along with the onguing internal audins, covenng all aspects of operations, and adherence

to internal policies and procedures as well as o regulatory and legal requirements. The Internal Financial
Controls Tesung Report dated June 20, 2023, as submitted by the Internal Auditor of the Company was
reviewed by the Audic Commurtee and the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on
June 30, 2023, The internal audit reports are reviewed regularly by the Audin Comminee of the Board, and
wherever necessary, mremal conrrol systems are strengthened, and corrective actions are immediately

taken.

Regulations

In terms of regulatory requirements, the Company complics with the Master Direction — Non-Banking
Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 preseribed by the
Reserve Bank of India and the applicable circulars presceibed by the NHB, The Company has issued
comprehensive Know Your Customer (“RY( 2 Guidelines and Ant Money Laundering Standards and
adopted the Fair Practices Code framed by the RBI which seeks to promote good and fair practices in

dealing with customers.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place an Ann-Sexual Harassment Policy named “Policy Against Sesual Harassment”
m line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women ar the Waorkplace (Prevention,
Prohibinon & Redressal) Aer, 2013 A “Complane Redressal Committee™ has been ser up to redress
complaints recewed regarding sexual harassmenrt. All emplovees (permanent, contractual, Iemporary,
tratnees ) are covered under this policy.

Under Section 21 of the Prevention of Sexval Harassment ar the Workplace Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preveation, Prohibition and Redressal) Rules. 2013, the
Annual Report for the calendar year ended 317 December 2022 was submitred 1o the Board as well as The
District Officer on January 23, 2023, contining the following informanon:




I No. of Complaints recerved during the vear: NIL
L No. of Complaints disposed of during the vear: NIL
3. | No. of cases pending fur more than ninety days: NIL
i No. of workshops or awareness programs against sexual ,,

| harassment cartied our =
3. Nature of action taken by the emplover or Distrier Officer: MNA

Disclosure on Non-Convertible Debentures

The Company is pleased 1o report that, during the vear under review, M/s A K. Capiral Finance Limired,
had subscribed o and been allared {8} 300 Rared, Senior, Unlisted, Unsecured, Taxable, Redeemable,
Transferable, Non-Convertible Debentures denominated in Indian Rupees each having a face value of
B LML (Tndian Rupees Ten Lakh) aggregating to a face value of Rs, 30,00.00,000 (Indian Rupees
Tty Crore), (i) 200 Rared, Subordinated, Unsecured, Unlisted, Redeemable, Non-Convertible
Debentures denominared in Indian Rupees each having a face value of Rs. 10,00,000 {Indian Rupees Ten
Lakh) aggregating to a face value of Rs. 20,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty Crore) and (i) 1000 Rared,
Subordinated, Unsecured, Unlisted, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debenrures denominated in Indian
Rupees each having a face value of Rs, 100,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) agereganng to a face value of
Rs. 10.00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten Crore).

The largest natonalized bank - Swate Bank of India under the Targeted Long-Term Repo Operations
(TLTRO) Scheme of the Reserve Bank of India, had subscribed ro and been allotted 400 pred, unlised,
senior, redeemable, taxable, non-convertible debentures denominared in Indian Rupees cach having a face
value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten Lakh) aggregating to a face value of Rs. 40,00,00,000 (Indian
Rupees Forty Crore) which were fully redeemed on the Date of Maturity Le., 21 Apnl 2023,

The Intemational Finance Corporation, which is a member of the World Bank Group, and the largest
global developmenr institution focused exclusively on the private sector in developing countries, has
subscribed 1o long term Non-Convertible Debenrures (“NCD=") on Privare Placemoent basts of Rs. 53,10
Crissued by the Company under a program 1o support atfordable housing finance companies that have a
focus on small and micro loans.

As per Para 68 of the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance € ompany
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, (Guidelines on Private Placement of Non-Convernble Debentores
(NCDs) the Company shall disclose, in a starement, the followng:

I The total number of non-convertible debentures which have not been elaimed by NIL
the Investors or not paid by the housing finance company after the date on which
the non-convertible debenmres became due for redem prion;

2 The total amount in respeet of such debenturces remaining unclaimed or unpaid NIL
bevond the date referred to in clause (1) as aforesaid




Credit Rating

Your Company’s financial discipline and prudence is reflected in the strong Credin eatings assigned by

Rating Agencies duning the year under review, as under:

]
Ran
Instrument g Rarting Amount Remarks
Agency
| -l fank Stable
ong-lerm Bank  |oeoneny CRISIL, A+ Rs. 530 Crofes tae
Loan Facilines
MODY Issue CRISIL CRISIL A+ Re. 15810 Crores | Stable
1 -le fank
gL een Bar CARE CARE AA- Rs. 830 Crores Stable
Facilinies
Shoret-Te Bank
i = - CARE AL+ R S0 Crores
Facilines
NOID Tssue CARE CARE AA- Rs. 3310 Crores Smble

Related Party Transactions

As per requirement of the National Housing Bank (NHB) Notification No. NHB. HEC. CG-DIR.1/MD
& CEOV 2016 dared 9 February 2017, The Board of Directors has adopted the Related Party Treansactions
Policy (“RPT™) w.e.f. June 1, 2007 (duly approved by the Board at its meeting held on Mav 29, 2017)
annesed as “Annexure ™. The abjecuve of this policy and procedure is to ensure that rransaetions between
SMHEC and its related partics are based on principles of transparency and arm’s length pricing as provided
under the section 188 of the Companies Aer 2013, Likewise, this policy aims at preventing and providing
guidance in situations of potential conflict of interests in the implementation of rwansactions involving such
related parnies.

During the vear, the Company has not entered into any transaction/Contracts with Related Parties falling
under the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Aet and the Rules made thereunder.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report (MDAR)

+

The Management [Discussion and Analyvsis Report for the vear under review is presented in “Annexure 7,

which 15 a parr of this report.

Corporate Governance Disclosures:

The Comporate Governance Disclosure for the Finaneial Year 2022.23 as stpulated under RBI Circular
DOR.CREREC, No.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dared October 22, 2021, on “Seale Based Regulation (SBR): A
Revised  Regulatory  Framework®”  for  NBFCs, read  with RBI  Circular  DORACC.RIEC.
No20/2L04.018/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022, on Disclosures in Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts
of NBFCs is annexed as “Annexure G,

Other disclosures:

) Your Company has not issued any shares with differential nghts or sweat equity shares.
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b)  There is no revision in the financial statements both standalone and consolidated.

€} The Central Govemnment of India has not preseribed the maintenance of cost records under suily-
seetion (1) of Section 148 of the Aet for any of the services rendered by the Company.

d) Your Company has complicd with provisions relatng to the constitunion of Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women ar Workplace (Prevennon, Prohibiton and
Redressal) Aet, 2013

¢} The Company, m the eapacity of Financial Creditor, has not filed any apphications with Nanonal

Company Law Tribunal under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 during the financial vear
H122-23 tor recovery of owstanding loans ALANSE ANY CUSTOMET.

The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement
and the valuaton done while taking loan from the Banks or Finaneial Institutions along with the
reasons thereof is not applicable to your Company,

Acknowledgement

Your directors would like to express their grareful appreciation for the assistance and co-operation receiv

from all its stakeholders — shareholders, borrowers, lenders, and the authorities. especially the Nanonal

Housing Bank. Your directors look forward to their continued support in the umuree as well,

The Directors are also thankful 1o the employees of the Company for their hard work and commitment in

building an instrution to help a segment, which needs financial assistance.

For and on behalf of the Board of Direetors of
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
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“Anncxure A”
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23
L. Brief outline an CSR Policy of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 133(1) of the Compames Aer 203 read with Companies (Corporate Socal
Responsibility) Rules, 2014, the Board of Direetors has constituted a CSR Committee. Ihe Board has also

framed a2 CSR policy m EHI'I'I-['I'EI.HH'J.' with the preovisions ”ft..hlrl‘.li'lﬂ.l'ltl'.':\' Aer 2013,
In Ine with CSR Poliey and in accordance with Schedule VII of the Acr, the O HNPANY Proposes 1o
undertake suirable pri rit':.‘l.- i the feld of educanon, women cimpowenment, humanitarian relicf, sanitan i,

preventive healtheare.

The obhjective of the e impany’s SR policy 15 o lay down guiding prineiples for proper funcric g of CAR

activities 1o attin sustainable |.|'L'1.'u|rnF'|-|111.'nr of the nearby se e

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

SL. Name of Director Designation/ Number of Number of
No. Mature of meetings of CSR meetings of CSR
Directorship Committee held Commitiee
during the vear attended during
the vear
Charman &
L. Mz Ananvashree Bida haitmian & 2 i
' Director
Mr. Vineer Bijendr
A it o Director > 2
Chatreee
5 M, Al Chirania [Director 2 2

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company.

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report).

Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set offin pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
vear, if any,




al. Financial Year Amount available for set-off Amount required to be set-
No. from preceding financial vears off for the financial vear, if
(in Rs) any (in Rs.)
l. NLA MIL. MNIL
IOTAL NIL NIL

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).
R 870134742/

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)
Rs. 1742695/ -
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
vears.
MNIL
(e)Amount required to be set off for the financial vear, if any
NI
(d)Total CSR obligation for the financial vear (Ta+7h- 7c).
Rs. 1742.695/-

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial vear:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred 1o any fund specified under
Total Amount Spent Unspent CSR Account as per Schedule VII as per second proviso to section
for the Financial Year. section 135(6). 135(5).
(in Rs.)
Drate of MName of Dharte of
Amount Amounit
transfer the Fund transfer

Rs. T 430000/~ R 10000004/ - 206-04-2023 LA NIL LA




(b)Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(10)

1 | @ (3) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9 (11)
Amount
transicored Mol
ltem from Admoiing U l_”. I "fl
the hist af , Amounit spent in “5!‘“" o :‘_ Mode of
F=y : Peasjie SR men ]
i MName af actvibies Laowaiion allocared the Implementition -
sl . ct Agcount on ;
the in oof the fove Currcni Thronagzh
M, i . g durar i : fosr the -
Project. Schedule project. . prisject finaneial B Implementing
VI tor the i {in Rs.). Year (in s ot Agency
Aba Rs.) per Drireet
) i Section {Yes/
[35(6) (in Nu).
Hs.).
sl
Sean Dhistri R
Mame ration
(S [N |
numbe
or
Reducing
Livelihig 1."“”“!“1“ Suath
faced by . 24 .
d : Im Rs. Ras. : Lavelihe - | CSRO0
i socially and mont | . | r i
Inhance 1) 13 S0H0HH L] otls N3 26
ceonommicil h= ;
ment SMCTVEC DS
i
Iackward
Prometmg
Emplovme
ne
enhancmg :
: The o
Vocinon | vocaton . 24 CSRIND
= ) ]. “ Ha. . R:-. ].:'l.'h.“
2 al Skall skalls and (2]} mont | 1 % o : (IR 300
x f 1) SANDLHME 2l HATHMY l'q":lu".;l;;"
I'tumming underrakm fis 5
: an Trase
g
Il'l.'l.'ll.l i md
crthanceme
11 Projuct.
Rs. Rs.
TOTAL ML
[IEEIEN LN TERT AT
Details of CSR amount spent against other than engoing projects for the financial vear:
m | @ E] ) | (3 N (8)
s, | Name of the Imn_ from | Loes _ , Amount sp.-:m IMndu of _ Mode of |rnplcm-.-nt-.ftmn -
o the list of Location of the project| for the project | implementati | Through implementing
activities in | arca {in Rs.). o - agency.,

b g -
_- r Foriikam & I.

Ve | Py ABAL ]

W 4

N ‘:’}k\.— el




schedule (Yes Direct CSR
v . e ) -
thae P State - District (¥esr No) MName registration
Act. No). number
Warerwheel Mremmoning
diseethunon for] Hlealth care Flalsirat B
the selecreld and Yes Ragasthan - Barmer B 3,015,000 N Humaniy SRR 2,
margmalized | Samranon Tl Trust
families
Project
ducin
conrrluting ::: =
tivacirds _mr liti
; equalities
ducing
:. -:l::ltt; " faced by Indian
Lk | L. : 4 = . aga = .
2 p ll by 1l soctally and | Yes | Tamal Nadu- Chennm R 43000 Ny Howsing CSRIMNNIG431,
dce 1] 4
: LT " :lL ceomomcally Federanon
ko x H
i “'I.'Hkl.'l
economiclly e
weiker section r;" e I=:
S TE G
ot the socen SR
Rs.
TOTAL 7,43,000/
(¢) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads:
NIL
(d) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable:
M.A.
(e) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8h+8c+8d):
Rs, 743,000/
(f) Excess amount for sct off, if any:
L8 Particular Amount (in Rs.)
No.
() | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 133(3) Rs. 1742695/ -
(it) Fotal amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 743,000/ -
(i) | Excess amount spent for the financial vear [(ii)-(1)) NIL
(v) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activitics of the NIL
previous financial vears, if any
(¥} | Amount available for ser off in succeeding finaneial vears | (anj-(1v} NIL




9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial vears:

SL | Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred 1o any fund Amount
Mao. | Financial transferred to spent in the | specified under Schedule VII as per remaining to
Year, Unspent CSR reporting section 135(6), if any. be spent in
Account under Financial succeeding
section 135 (6) Year (in MName of financial vears.
{in Bs.) Rs.). the Fund | Amount Dare of {in Rs.)
(in Rs). transfer,
1 Ra. 925,000 s, I NIL A Rs. 450NN}
202021 %
AN
Z N)2]-22 Ras. 30001HK) - g | L s | A Rs. 300k 100
TOTAL Rs. 1225004/ - Rs. 7.50,000/-
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial vear(s):
(1 (2) {4) (3) (6) (7) (8) 9
Financial
Year Total Amount Cumulative
Name of in amount | spent on the | amount spent | Status of the
E 0
Sl Project i which the | Project | allocated | project in the | at the end of praject -
Mo, | ID. Sciii project duration | for the reporting reporting Complered
B | was project | Financial Financial /Ongoing.
commenc (in Rs.). | Year (in Rs). | Year. {in Rs.)
ed,
Voeationd 24 Rs.
’ 2022 < 430,000 & 430000 i e
v I Training 2 Monihs | 450000 | 5 4AR000 Res. 420,000 o pleted
Y ocatona iy [
. 3 202)-2 1L NIL Cingonng
: | Tramng I [ Months 4.75,000 : R et
Spmiranon
1 24 £
P i 202-22 E{ L NIL Ongomg
ACCEEE Foy months EREIEEY ] i
Wter
Rs.
TOTAL R, 4500000 K= 4,530,001
12,25,000

10 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
ereated or acquired through CSR spent in the financial vear (asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s),




M.

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset,
INTLL

(¢) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital
asset is registered, their address etc.

MN.A.
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address

and location of the capital asset).
MN.A

1. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5).

The Company has approved CSR expenditure of Rs, 1742693 /- (e, o percent of the average net profit

of the kst three financial vears) for the financial vear 2022-23,

The Company could not spend the specified CSR amount as it was still in the process of determining
specific activities and idennfving specitic partners that would be aligned with vour Company’s CSR P Hicy:,
The unspent fund will be utilized in next three Financial Years in line with the CSR Regulations.

FFor and on behalf of the Board of Dircetors of
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

L
Vineet Bijendra Chattree
Director & Chairman - CSR Commitice
(DIMN: UT962331)

Place: Mumlbsai
Date: Seprember 23, 2023



SVATANTRA MICRO HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
SALIENT FEATURES OF THE CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY

SCOPE

The CSR Policy applies 1o the formulation, execution, me mirorig, evaluanon, and documentanon of CSR

actvines undertakon h:r the T::;:np;mj.-_
OBJECTIVE

The mam objective of SMHFC's CSR poliey 1s;
® Tolay down guidelines 1o make CSR a key business process for sustainable development of the
society (in addition 10 the soctal mission of the Company):
® Todirectly/indirectly undertake projects/programs which will enhance the qualiny of life and
cconomic well-being of the communities in the sociery at large;

¢ Togenerate goodwill and recogmition among all stakeholders of the COMmpPany.
CSR AMOUNT AND EXPENDITURE

Lhe Annual budget for the CSR Expenditure will be proposed by the CSR committee every vear for the
approval of the Board of Direcrors of the Company & post the Board of Directors approval, the CSR
Expendimire can be meurred by the Company.

The committee shall endeavour 1o spend ar least 2% of the average net profit during the preceding 3
tinancial years on CSR acovites as enumerated in this CSR Policy and in the manner as specified in Section

135 of the Companies Acr, 2003 and the Rule: made thercunder from time 1o time.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR SELECTION OF CSR ACTIVITIES

SMHFC shall conduet its CSR activities as laid down in Schedule VII of the Companies Aer, 2003 and as
approved by the CSR Committee of the Company. The Company's focus will be related 1o improvement
n living conditions as related o housing or support of institutions working with families in poor housing
and financial education as these are very much related 1o the mission of SMHFC,

GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF CSR ACTIVITIES

SMHFC may directly undertake the CSR activities as permitted under Schedule V1T and approved by the
SR Committee or execute and implement CSR activitics through any other Implementing Agency
registered i India, having a valid CSR Registration Number granted by the Almistry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) and having track record of service, performance, governance, and accountability.,

CSR COMMITTEE

(SR Committee of Board of Directors has been formed in pursuance of the Section 135 of Companies Acr,
2013, The Committee will play the following role in fulfilling the Company’s CSR objectives:

®  Review and recommend the CSR Poliey to the Board of Directors

®  Recommend the amount of annual expendinire o be incurred on the CSR activitics:

® Review and recommend to the Board, certain CSR projeces/programmes as ongoing projects in

accordance with the CSR Rules:

®  Formulate and recommend to the Board the Annual Action Plan of the Company in pursuance of this
Policy;
Annually report o the Board, the starus of the CSR activities and contributions made by the Compa

8 Va
=1\
{ mumsar 1=



* iy other marter as the 3R Commitiee may deem approprate after approval of the Board of Dirccrors
or as may be direcred by the Board of Directors from nme 1o nme,

ANNUAL ACTION PLAN

Ihe CSR Commintee shall formulare an Annual Acoon Plan for cach Gnancial vear and recommend the
same o the Board for i approval,

PROCESS FOR IMPLEMENTING CSR ACTIVITIES / PROJECTS

The I-l:l"u‘.rllu.: procedure is l‘{'i.|llLl'1.'r.| oy b acdhered 1o wihile |_||'|q,|g;r|:;|l.;in!_t,n" t‘1,|m,||ng CSR actmvities:
®  The CSR contmibution would be for a project as identified by the Company, cither for a single financial

vear or as an ongong project for mulbo-vears, depending on the scale and needs of the project.

® The disbursement of the contribution amount by the Company 10 the Implementing Agency shall be
made only if they have a unique CSR registmnon number granted by the MO and requisite approvals
and registrations as required under the Income Tax Acr, 1961 or other applicable laws in India; and

L

The disbursement will be made only upon receipr of a proposal from the Implementing Ageney

specitying the budget that is required, acuvity for which it is required and project ourputs & outcomes,
as may be required.

MONITORING AND EVALUATION FRAMEWORK

The Company shall be enniled 1o receive the following information from the Implementing Agencies:
® A vald CSR Registration Number granted by the Ministry of Corporite Affairs (MCA);

A valid Registranion Cernificate under Section 127 of the Income-tax Act:

Avalid Regrstranion Certificate under Section 800 of the Income-max Ack

PProof 1o substantiate a track record of 3 years in undertaking CSR activities such as anoual TEpPOTTs, eies

Operational / progress reports ether quarteely or half vearly, depending on the size and scale of the
preject.

1o ensure steady progress and proper utilization of CSR amount, the following monitoning mechanism may

be adopted depending upon the size of contribunion and the Implementing Apency:

®  Review of Funds Unlisation Certificates submitted by the Implementing Agencies.

®  lhe Chiet Financial Officer of the Company or any other person responsible for financial management
shall cerufy the unlisation of funds disbursed for CSR projects for each financial vear,

REPORTING

The CSR Commuttee shall report ta the Board of Directors of the Company, the status of the CSR projects/
undertaken by the Company in the Annesure 1o the Direetors” Report, in the Company’s Annual Report.

v
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“Annexure B”
SVATANTRA MICRO HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
Salient Features of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy
L Objective of the Policy:
The Nommation and Remuneraton Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section

178 of the Companies \et, 2003 read along with the applicable rules thereto, The kev Objeetives of

the Commitiee would be:

To gmde the Board m relanon o appoiniment and removal of Directors, Kev Managerial

Personnel and Senior Management.

® To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the
Board for further evaluanon of the Board.

¢ Torecommend to the Board on Remuneration pavable to the Directors, Ky Managerial Personnel
and Senior Managemen.

®  To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Semior Management reward linked directly 1o their
ettort, performance, dedication, and achievement relating to the Company™s opermtions.

® Toretun, motvate and promote talent and 1o ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial

persons and create compennve advaniape.

2. Role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to determine the following:

® \ppointment critena and qualiticanons of Director, KMP and Senior AManagement:

¢  Term / Tenure of the Directors;

®  Evaluanen of Director, KM and Senior Management Personnel;

e  Removal of Dirccror, KMP and Senior Management Personnel;

®  Reurement of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel

® Prnciples for Compensation and Risk Alignment

®  Remuncranon to Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Sentor Management
Personnel

®  Alalus [/ Clawback Provisions

®  Remuneration to Other emplovees

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Mk \rn

! !' =
A — r = ( A ) r’
Vineet ndra Charttree Anil Chirania u{%t\‘ﬂﬂll.ﬁﬁrm ,:_.' ?J],r
Dircctor IDhrecror &%}-{? e _f‘:g'j:.y
(DIN: 07962531 (DIN: 01082719 X =~

Place: Mumbai
Date: Seprember 23, 2023



"Annexure C"
Disclosures as per the Secretarial Standard - 1

Duwring the Financial Year 2022-23, 13 Board Meetings, 8 Audit Committee, 2 Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and 2 CSR Committee Meeting were convened and held on the following dartes:

s, Se. | Audit SR, £ S, CSR
M. Board No. | Commitree w0, Eh:muru:fatlun Mo, Committee
Committes

I 29042022 | a2 | 29,04, 3122 1 e PR B e e

3 1400 2033 2 400 2022 2 312023 2 FLO3. 223

3 03.08.32032 3 5,08, 2023

4 IR o 4 3608, 033 i

A MBS 222 ) Fhins 22

6 16092022 i 2000, 2022

7 290193022 = | 1sa12002

8 13012023 3 LN e Tkt

1 B IZ2. 30232

i L k]

I (0132023

2 [03.2023

] 310320335

Attendance of Directors in Board and Commitice Mectings:

Mumber of Mectings Anended:

Sr. .

; Mame of the Director . MNomination &
Mo, Audi : .

Board Co : Remuneration CS5R Committee
mmeited g
Committee

| Ananvashree Birla 3 3 il i

2 Wl Chirin 13 ] 3 a

¥ Yieet Byendra Chattree I3 B | 2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Svatanira Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

M@/ A e
Vincet Bijhdra Chattree il Chirania

Director Director JE-
(DIN: (17962531) (DIN: 01082719) NG :_,é}%“-‘

Place: Mumbar
Date: Seprember 23, 2023




"Annexure D"

“s N S & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

Off : H-63, Ground Floor, Vijay Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110082
Res HNp. 481, Seclor-llIF, Second Floor, Vaishall, Ghaziabad, U P
Mob.: +91-99050418389, 8802269253

E-mail: nagendracs@gmail com, ns associates pecs@gmail com

FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2023
Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and ruie 9 of the Companies (Appointament and
Remuneration of Managertal Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited,
Office No. 1,2,3,4, Pushpak CHSL,

Malaviya Road, Vile Parle (E),

Mumbai - 400 057

I'have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable starutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporanon
Limited (hereinafter called (“the Company”). Secrerarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and rerurns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby
report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audir period covering the Financial year
ended on 31" March, 2023 (“Audit Period”) complied with the starutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter;

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31" March 2023, according to the
provisions of:
()  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
()  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and By-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:
1. Nadonal Housing Bank Act, 1987,
2. Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.
3. Para 15A of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)

Directions, 2016 - Guidelines on Liquidity Rjsk Management Framework;




4. Para 120 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 - Managing Risks and Code of Conduct in Outsourcing of Financial
Services;

5. Master Direction - Know Your Customer (KYC) Direction, 2016;

. Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016,

7. Master Direction - Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector dated
June 08, 2017,

8. Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions,
2021,

9. Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Securitisation of Standard Assets)
Directions, 2021,

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, ete. mentioned above.

I further report that

1,

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors. There were no changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors during the period under review.

Adequate notice was given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance except where the meeting was held at a short notice to
transact urgent business, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

As per the minutes duly recorded and signed, all decisions at Board Meetings and Committee
Meetings are carried out unanimously.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the Company has:

11

The Company issued and allotted 1000 Rated, Subordinated, Unsecured, Unlisted,
Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debenrures denominated each having a face value of Rs.
1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) agprepating to Rs. 10,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten
Crore) to A. K. Capital Finance Limited.

The Company issued and allotted 59,24,170 (Fifty-Nine Lakh Twenty-Four Thousand One
Hundred and Seventy only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten Only) each fully paid up




for cash at a premium of Rs. 32.20/- (Rupees Thirty-Two decimal Twenty Only) per share to
Svatantra Holdings Private Limited in October 2022,

3. The Company further issued and allotted 5827,506 (Fifty-Eight Lakh Twenty-Seven
Thousand Five Hundred and Six only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each fully
paid up for cash at a premium of Rs. 32.90/- (Rupees Thirty-Two decimal Ninety Only) per
share to Svatantra Holdings Private Limited in December 2022,

4. The Company further issued and allotted 56,54,830 (Fifty-Six Lakh Fifty-Four Thousand
Eight Hundred and Thirty only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each fully paid
up for cash at a premium of Rs. 34.21/- (Rupees Thirty-Four decimal Twenty-One Only) per
share to Svatantra Holdings Private Limited in March 2023,

5. The Company increased the Authorised Share Capital of the Company from Rs
85,00,00,000/-(Rupees Eighty-Five Crores Only) consisting of 5,40,00,000 (Five Crores Forty
Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) and 31,00,000 (Thirty-One Lakhs)
Preference shares of Rs. 100 each (Rupees Hundred each) to Rs. 1,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees
One Hundred Crores Only) consisting of 6,90,00,000 (Six Crores Ninety Lakh) Equity Shares
of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) and 31,00,000 (Thirty-One Lakhs) Preference Shares of Rs.
100 each (Rupees Hundred each).

6. The Company increased the Borrowing Limit under Section 180(1)(c) from Rs. 2,000 crores
(Two Thousand Crores Only) to Rs. 2,500 crores (Two Thousand Five Hundred Crores Only)
and also revised the resolution passed under Section 180(1)(a).

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure Fand forms an
integral part of this report.

For N S & Associates )

Company Secretaries - o .
LR/ S

||| OF2
CS Nagepdra Elﬁ‘:{:an S
(Practicing Company Secretary)
FCS No.- 8307, CP No - 9312
PR -909/2020

UDIN: F008307E001063141

Place: Delhi
Drate: 22,09.2023



l}s N S & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

Off : H-63. Ground Floor, Vijay Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092
Res  H.No 481, Seclor-llIF, Second Floor, Vasshali, Ghaziabad, U P
Mob.: +31-85004 18388, BA02269253

E-mail: nagendracs@gmail com, ns.associales pos@gmail com

Annexure - | to the Secretarial Audit Report
To,
The Members,
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited,
Office No. 1,2,3,4, Pushpak CHSL,
Malaviya Road, Vile Parle (E),
Mumbai - 400 057

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. 1 have followed the audit practices and processes as are appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The venfication was
done on test basis to ensure thar correct facrs are reflected in secretanal records. [ believe that
the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not venfied the correcmess and appropnateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, the Company has provided the certified copies or extracts of the records
and documents. | have also relied upon the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, srandards are the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the
verificaton of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report i1s neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of

the company.
Nagendsa Qghact: )
(Practicing Company Sectetary)
Membership No: 8307

Certificate of Practice No - 9312
PR - 909 /2020

UDIN: FO08307E001063141

Place: Delhi
Date; 22.09.2023



“Annexure E”
Related Party Transactions Policy
OBIECTIVE

The Board of Directors (the “Board™) of Svatantea Miceo | [ousing Finance Corporation (“SMHFC™), had
adapted the following policy (the “policy”™) and procedures with regard to Relared Parte Transactons
CRIPT) wee k., June 1, 2007 (duly approved by the Board ar irs meeting held on May 29, 2017). This poliev
is framed as per requirement of the National Housing Bank (NHB) Notification No. NHB. HFC. €G-
DIR./MD & CEO/2016 dated 9 February 2017, The objective of this policy and procedure 15 10 ensure
that transacuons berween SMUFC and its relared parties are based on principles of transparency and arm’s
length pricing as provided under the section 188 of the Companies Aet 2013, Likewise, this policy aims at
preventing and providing guidance in sitvations of potential conflict of interests in the implementation of
rransactions involving such related parties.

L DEFINITIONS:

a) “Audir Committes™ means Committee of Board of Ditectors of SMHFC constimued under Sectuon 177
of the Companies Act, 2013,

bj “Related Party™ shall mean a person or enury that is related to the company as defined under Section
2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013

¢) “Related Party Transaction” shall mean all transacuons as defined under section 188 of the Companics
Aer, 2013

d) “Arm’s Length Transaction™ means a transaction between two Related Partics that is conducted as if
they were uneelated, so that there is no conflict of interest (as provided under the section 188 of the
Companies Ner 2013),

¢) “Annual Consalidated Tumover” is defined as Toml Income (Le. Interest eamed plus Other Income)
ot the last audited Consolidated Financial Starements of SMHEFC,

2 POLICY:
All Related Pasty Transactions must be referred to the Audit Committee for approval in accordance with

this Policy.

3 ADENTIFICATION OF RELATED PARTY AND RELATED PARTY TRANSAC STTONS:

A Related Party wall be brought to the anention of the AManagement and the Board/ Audit Committee’s
attention by the Legal and Seeretarial Department ar least on an annual basis. The Legal and Secretanal
Department needs to inform any change in the Related Party List 1o Funcoonal teams of SMEFC 1o
idenufy the Related Party Transactions.

+ REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Every Related Party Transaction shall be subject 1o the paor approval of the Audit Comminee whether
at a meeting or by resolution by wav of circulation. Any member of the Audit Committee whe has a
potential interest in anv Related Party Transaction shall abstain from diseussion and voting on the approval

of the relared party ransaction.

The approval policy framework is given below:




Audit Commince Board Approval Sharcholder's
Approval Approval
& Al Relared Pary ¢ Related Pary Transactions | & Approval by resolution for:

Transactions referred by Audi = Related Pary Transactions
Committee for approval of not in Ordinary Course of
the Board. Business or not on arm's

®  Relared Party Transactions length basis and crosses

as required under the threshold limi as presenbed
statute applicable o uneler the Companies Act,
SMHFC 2013 applicable to SMHIC

Creneral Gudanee for approval of Related Party Teansactions:

Ihe Audit Committee shall be provided with the relevant information of Relared Parry ‘Transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Aet, 2013, the Rules made thereunder as amended
from rime to time or as requested by the Audit Committee. Where a Board approval is required, the
nformation required under the Companies \et, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, shall be provided.
In determining whether 1o approve a Related Party Transaction, the Audit Committee shall consider
(among other aspects it deems relevant), if there are cleardy demanstrable reasons from SMITFC's business
point of view, o enter into a transaction with a Relared Parry.

5. DECISION REGARDING TRANSACTION IN ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS AND AT
ARAS LENGTTH:

The Audit Commutree and the Board shall, after consulening the marerials placed before them, will judge
if the transaction is in the ordinary course of business and meers the arm’s length requirements.

G OMNIBUS APPROVAL BY AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
In case of certain frequent/ repetitive/ regular/ transactions/ with Related Parties which are in the ordinary
course of business of SMHFC, the Audit Committee may grant an omnibus approval for such Related
Party Transacnons proposed 1o be entered inro by SMHFC, The approval shall be valid for a period of
one year - however the same needs 1o be ratified by the board ar the nest board meeting.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS NOT APPROVED UNDER THIS POLICY:

In the evenr SMHIEFC becomes aware of a Relared Party Transaction with a Related Paroe that has not been
approved under s Policy prior to its consummation, SMUEFC would obrain post facto approval from
the Audit Commirtee. In case SMHEC 1s not able ro ke prior approval from the Audit Committee, such
a transaction shall not be deemed to violate this Policy, or be invalid or unenforceable, so long as the
transaction is brought to the Audit Committee as promply as reasonably pracucal after it i entered o
or after it becomes reasonably apparent that the transaction is covered by this policy.

The Audit Commiteee shall consider all of the relevant facts and circumstances regarding the Relared Parny
Transacuon, and shall evaluate all options avalable w SMITFC, mcluding ratification, revision, or
termunation of the Related Parey Transaction. In any ease, where the Audit Commirtee determines not to
ratify a Related Party Transaction thar has been commenced without approval, the Audit Committee, as
appropriate, may direct addivional actions including, but not limired o, immediate discontinuation «
fosr
fer

(i




rescission of the ransacuon. In connection with anv review of a Related Party Transaction, the Audit
LCommirtee has authory o modife oF waive any procedural requirements of this Policy.

8. DISCLOSURE OF THE POLICY:
Ths Policy has been uploaded on the website of SMEIFC

O POLICY REVIEW:

This Policy is established wee.f. June 1, 20017 based on the provisions of the Companies Act, 20013 and as
per requirement of the NHB Nodficpion No. NHB. [FC CG-DIRVL/MD & CEOQ/2016 dared 9
February 2017, In case of any subsequent changes in the provisions of the Act and the Rules framed
thereunder, the Act and s Rules would prevail over the Poliey and the provisions m the Policy would be
modified in duc course to make it consistent with law. The Board shall have the right to amend the Policy
from time 1o ume, based on recommendations of Audit Commirtee, The Poliey shall be reviewed every
vear along with the other policies of the company. However, it shall be reviewed earlier if need arises for
the same and/ or under special circumstances, for example a change in law.,

For and an behalf of the Board of Dirccrors of
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Anil Chirania

l}lt‘u:.‘lnr \ '—r:-:_;\ J:‘.-_;-
T o e L
(IDIN: 1082719 w

Vineet Bijendfa Chattree
Direcror
(DIN: 07962531)

ﬁ'\\.____,f{"
¥ % (o

Place: Mumbai
Date: Seprember 235, 2023



“Annexure F*

The year 2022-23 was a vear of resilience. The impact of the disruption in construction activiry, interest
rates gong up and vanous other fictors over the last owo vears due 1o the panelemic, though sull weighing
on the affordable housing sector, it saw a robust demand and improved collection efficiencies during the
vear.

The year also saw major regulatory chanpes with RBI coming out with revised guidelines for Housing
Finanee Companies. Some of the major regulations inrroduced being the Scale Based Regulanions — which
ncluded the TCAAP Framework, Appomment of Chiet Compliance Officer, Compensation Guidelines,
HEC to move 1o Core Banking Solutions, ete. With 2 view to strengthen the intemal standards, principles
and procedures of the HIFCs, the RBI also came up with several rules like the Framework for € Ompromise

settlements and Technical Write-offs, Fair Lending Practice - Penal Charges in Loan Accounts, Reser of
Floating Interest Rate on EMI, LEI for borrowers and so on. These changes will help standardise fow of

information to and from the regulator and bring in more transparency and better governanee in the sector,

A, Market overview:

Affardable housing drives over half of the demand in the real estate sector. The Pradhan Mantei Awas
Yojana gave this demand impetus, especially in the EWS and LIG segments where all theee verneals of the
PMAY made housing affordable for this segment. Affordable |Housing in Partnership - AHP, (which
provided a capiral subsidy of Rs. L3000 to houses constructed for EWS famulies), Credit Linked Subsidy
Scheme- CLSS (which was an interest subventions scheme) and Beneficiary Led Construction - BLE
{which provided a subsidy of Rs. 150,000 1o the beneficiary for construction). While the C1LSS scheme
was discontinued at the end of the vear, the AHP and BLC will continue o drive demand for low-income
housing in smaller towns over the next 2-3 vears.

B. Opportunity assessment:

At Svamaniea MHFC, we have identified the need for gap financing to customers who are beneficiaries of
the BLC verneal where the amount of subsidy is not enough to complete the house. We have also been
working closely with Government agencies in financing EWS allotees in AFIP Projects n varous stares
like Chhartisgarh, Madhya Pradesh, Guijarat, Rajasthan, Tamil Nadu ete. SMUFC is well placed to capiralise
on the demand in this sector over the next 2-3 vears. The approximate numbers of houses which require
gap financing and EWS / LIG allotees who require housing loans for purchase would be in excess of
200,000 families across vamous states.

C. Threat assessment;

While there are opportunitics, a few challenges in the sector are availability of formal tde documents 1o
create secunity for the loans aspired.  Lack of proper miles 15 a handicap housing finance companies and
banks face in providing loans 1o customers in semi - urban and rural areas. The other major challenge is
reaching out o these customers, Traditional distribution channels of the industry are unable to reach our
te EWS / LIG customers or customers construction therr own homes in smaller owns. SMIFC is frving
to address this challenge by entering into steategic alliances with organisanons not necessarily in the ficld
of housing, but which have community conneet 16 be able 1o spread the awareness of the opportunity for
them to avail a housing loan to purchase / consteuet their house,

Our experience has taught us thar every home loan customer has their own story, and 1t is the empatl




factor that 1s the kev differentiator between housing finance providers, Dealing with home loan customers
requires immense patience. 1t is about understanding the needs and feelings of a home loan customer,
assuaging thew anxiety dunng this comples transaction, customising solutions, explunmng financial
implicanions of a mortgage product and lending responsibly 1 ensure a customer is not over siretched.

D. Company performance:

D.1 Financial Performance

SMHEC primarily deals in the segment of providing housing loans for the financially excluded EWS/ LIG
households in the informal sepment. In rerms of lending operations, cumulative housing loan sanctions
aggregated Rs. 283953 Cr. (up 30" from Rs. 2176.91 Ce. ar the end of the previous financial vear) — all o
lower income, urhan families who are generally excluded from the mainstream banking sector. The toral
loans outstanding figure was Rs. 1525.60 Cr. (growth of 353" over Rs. 113057 Cr. at end of the previous
financial vear). The Company currently operates in 9 states — Maharashiea, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh,
Rajasthan, West Bengal, Chhartisgarh, Tamil Nadu, Orissa and Harvana and 1 Union Territory = Daman

and Do,

In terms of portfolio quality, the Company had 738 (PY 432} loan accounts as on vear end - March 31,
2025 - wihich were classified as non-performing assets (“NPAs™ per the prudennal guidelines tssued by
the RBI / NHB. The amount of such Gross NIPAs was Rs, 31,46 Cr. PY Ra. 18.73 Cr) which was 206%
(PY L66%) of the total loan portiolio of the Company as at March 31, 2023, The Company has created
necessary provisions in accordance with the RBI & NHB Directions, after which Net NPAs stood at
Rz 24.34 Cr. (PY Re. 15.35 Cr.) and 160" (PY 1.38%%) of the toral loan portfolio as at March 31, 2023,

In terms of funding, the Company allotred 59,24,170 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach ar a Premium of
Rs. 32.20/- per share amounting o Rs. 24,99.99.974,/- {(Rupees Twenty-Four Crores Ninerv-Nine Lakhs,
Ninetv-Nine Thousand, Nine Flundred and Seventy-Four only) in month of October 2022; 58,27.506
Equiry Shares of Rs. 10 each ar a Premium of Rs. 32.90/. per share amountng to Rs. 23.00,00,007 40/
(Rupees Twente-Five Crores and Seven and Paise Fe ety only) in the month of December 2022 and
3654830 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each ar a Premium of Rs. 34.21/- per share amounting to
Rs. 2500,00,034.30/ - (Rupees Twentv-Five Crores and Tharty-Four and Paise Thirty only) in the month
of March 2023 o its Holding Company, Svatantea | loldings Private Limited, and with retained profits, net
worth increased to Rs. 290,19 Cr. (PY Rs. 196,25 Cr.). Hewever, the Company inereased its long-teem debit
to Rs. 145183 Cr. (PY Rs. 1066.69 Cr.) of which approx. 11.95%s continues to be refinance support from
the NHB. Other lenders 1o vour Company include the natonalized bank such as Stite Bank of India,
LUnion Bank of India, Punjab National Bank, Canara Bank, Bank of Baradda, U'CO Bank, Indian Bank and
Bank of Maharashrea; commereial banks such as HDFC Bank Ltd., Kotak Mahindea Bank Led.. DCB Bank
Lid., 1CICT Bank Limited, Karnataka Bank Lid., South Indian Bank Ltd, Federal Bank Ltd, Yes Bank Lid,
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Ltd, IndusInd Bank Ltd, Dhanlaxmi Bank Ltd. The Karur Viysva Bank Lad,
IDBI Bank L., Axis Bank Led., AU Small Finance Bank Lrd, RBL Bank, Catholic Svrian Bank, Bandhan
Bank, and.; NBIFCs such as Tata Capial Financial Serviees Limited, Bajaj Finance Lid, and ALK Capital
Fance Lid and the leading development agency, the International Finance Corporanon (“1FC™). The
Company’s entire loan portfolio continues 1o qualify as prionry sector as defined by the Reserve Bank of
India (“RBI”). Based on our excellent relanonships with our current bankers and the company's financial
and portfolio performance we are confident of arranging additional debt to cover projected growth plans.

The Company s very well eapitalised with capital adequacy ratio ar 38.56% of risk weghted assers, as
against the minimum requirement of 15,

Customer seements break up:
! P




' Customer Segment No. of Loans | Principal O/8 | %
Salared 14,496 314948 33.76%
Self Emploved 14,029 617.79 40,49,
Basth 7,705 30357 2583
Builder Toan 13 2026 Ly3y
Creand “L'oal 36243 1323.60 1O 6

D.2 Credit Rating

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited is amongst the few entites in the NBEC/ HEFC
space which has been upgraded by CARE and sustained by CRISIL a1 A+, This is a recognition of the
Governance, Fiscal prudence, and Pareniage.

CARE EDGE has recently upgraded the rating of the company 10 A= which i further exemplifies the
performance and the governance practices of the company.

D.3 Current focus areas and Outlook
Incorporating the learnings from Pandemic, the company in the year 2020-21 contnued upon shampening
and implementing the key initanves and improvements in the prionty areas;
L. Product: Unified ream for vanous produets: Affordahble housing, (Beneficiary Led construction)
BLC, Retail loans, LAP (Loan against property), and commercial property loans

1+

Process: Decentralization and local decision making to caprure market and enhance service mum-
around mme.
. People: Higher accounubility and responsibilin: with introduction of incentive scheme 1o
Promole mentocracy.
4. Technology: Enhancement in technology towards better customer engagement
A= the impact of the above not only the company was able 1w avercome the impact of pandemic but
improve the service capabiliny and product rALEe.

As the result of the above, SNIHFC has been able to achieve following milestones :

I Productivity: The productivity (in rerms of disbursements per Loan officer per month) is amongst
the highest in s peer geoup in the indusiny, while muantaining the Average neket size of Rs. 7 o
8 Lakhs.
Tumn around time (TAT): The companics TAT from login 1o sancnion has reduced to less than
“ days (average across the country)

I3

3. The ream size has increased from 457 in the beginning of the year 1o 638 by end of the vear. While
reducing the ratio of the Frontline to support staff ratio thereby indicating efficient rechnology led
AV es.

4 GNPA: The portfolio guality has been kept ar 2.06°

Further, the company focuses on managing its credit risk through deeper client engagement and offering
adequate support within the resolution framework 2.0 provided by RBIL

As an outlook the company now plans 1o focus on definng a specific structure Regional = Zone — Hub
model for further growth as well as develop capabilities for providing support through Loan against
property or commercial property loan as NI loan products to its largely self -emploved informal
segment customers (albeit NHL remaining within 1074 1o 129 of it toal portfolio).

D.4 Risks

(i) Liquidity and interest rate risk
Bemng a financial organisarion, SMHFC is susceptible to market-relared risks such as liquidin: risk, interes




rate nisk and funding risk. Such risk management relating to matunny mismarch of assets and liabilities,
MILETCST rate gaps/ sensivine is assigned o the Asser I.:i:lhilil:l' Committee (ALCOY) o monitor these risks
on an ongomg basis. Being in a long-term funding business SMIHFC maintains adequate balances of
undrawn lines and cash equivalents for disbursements, repavments, and other payments. This risk is
accentuated by extension of moratonum,

(ii) Operational risk

SMHEC uses information technology extensively in its operanons, The Company attemplts to mitigaie
aperanonal risk by maintinmg a svstem of mrernal controls, establishing systems and procedures o
monitor tansachons, extensive emplovee traning, maintaining key back-up procedures, undertaking
regular contngency planning.

(iii) Credit Risk

The Company manages credir risk by using a set of credit norms and policies, including a standard credit
appratsal policy. All funcuons of eredit are managed in house nght from sourcing, verification, credir
bureau checks. SMHFC has developed internal legal and rechnical evaluation ream with mdependent
tunction to make credit decisions more robust and in line to manage collateral nsk.

Credit nisks are minimized by having established credit appraisal system in place, prescribing exposure
limaes, peneodic review of the porttolio, SAHFC performs credit bureau checks, ficld vienficanon, stringent
legal and technical due diigence ere. which have helped to reduce delinquencies. The recovery mechanism

s now well established through recourse under the SARFAEST Aet.

(iv) Internal control systems and their adequacy

The Company has put in place an adequate internal conrrol svstem to safeguard all assers and ensure
operational efficiency. The Company also has an intemal auditor to conduct the testing of the Internal
Financial Control along with ongoing internal audirs. covering all aspects of operations, and adherence to
mrernal pobcies and procedures as well as 10 regulatory and legal requirements. The integrated Loan
Management System and the Accounting Svstem has inbuile maker checker svstems n place for recording,
authorisimg transactions on the system. The lnternal Financial Controls Testing Report and the internal
audit reports are reviewed regularly by the Audit Commitree of the Board, and wherever necessary, internal
control systems are strengthened, and correetive actions are immedia telv taken.

D.5 Values of Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

The company re-defined its integral value which are: Integriry, Trust, Customer Centricity, Passion,
Innovanon and Teamwork. These values remain underlving chord that joins all 638 of us 1o serve a
common objective which is to serve the housing finance needs of the underserved informal segment in
the country.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

A Anil Chirania

[Mrector
(DIN: 01082719)

Direcror
(DIN: 07962531)

Mace: Mumba
Dare: Seprember 23, 2023



“Anncexure G

Corporate Governance Disclosure - FY 2022-23

The following disclosures for the Financial Year 2022-23 are in pursuance 1o the RBI Circolar vide
DOR.CRE.REC. No.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22, 2021, on ‘Scale Based Regulanon (SBR): A
Revised Regulatory Framework’ for NBEFCs, read with RBI Circular  vide DORNCCRIEC,
No20/21LIM0E/2022-23 dated Aprl 19, 2022, an Disclosures in Financial Statements - Notes 1o

Accounts of NBFCs,

Iy COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

Capacity {i.c, Mumber of Remuncration

EE\H?I-"IIJIH-'I.!.lF Beoard Miv, ol

Mim- Mectings sharcs held
SN Exceutive/ Mo ol in and

MName of | Director | Chairman/ | DIN ather comvertible
Dircenr since Promaster Director INSLPLRCTT

nominee ships | Salary # held in

Independent) i other) SittingCommi th

\"M i compen|  Feekion Company

i sation [ln Rs){In Rs.)| (In R}
L finanvashee [15/09, 20] Chairperson 662509 13 5 i il =il il R, 10 /- as
i Burla 18 and Mon- & Mominee
Executive Shareholder

Dhrector
2. Nmeet 13/09/20 Exceunve [T9625913 13 I il il Ml il
e 14 Dhrecror 1
artree

I Puml [ 5/00 N Moo (8308 13 13 18 | il il Rz 10 /- as
K hiranm 5 Executive 3 Mommee
[Director Sharcholder

Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous Finaneial Year:

Capacity
Mame of Director (i.e., Executive/ Non- Nature of change |  Effective
MNo. Executive/ Chairman/ (resignation, date
Promoter nominee/ appointment)
Independent)
1. Nl il il Ml

There s no inter-se reladon among the Directors of the Company.




2) COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD AND THEIR COMPOSITION

i. AUDIT COMMITTEE

Memberof | Capacity Number of No. of shares
Sk Name of Committee | (i.e., Exccutive/ Meetings of held in the
No. | Director since MNon-Executive/ the Committee | NBFC
Chairman/ Promoter | Held [Auended
nominee,/
Independent)
I Ananyashree | 2470973018 Chatperson and Mon- B 3 | share held
Birla Execunve Director as Nominee
Sharcholder
2 Vireet Bijendea | 24709/ 2018 Fxecutive Director e o] il
Chatrree
3, Anil Chirania | 24/09/2018 | Non- Exceutive Director B 5 I share held
as Mominee
sharcholder

Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee includes:

a)  The recommendation for appoinment, remuneraton and terms of appoinmment of avdirors
of the company;

b) Review and momitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process:

¢} Examunation of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

d)  Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parnes;

¢)  Scrutiny of mter-corporare loans and investments:

) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

g Evaluauon of internal financial controls and risk management SYSICTNS;

h)  To redress the fenuine concerns [/ grievance received by the Audic Commuitiee under rthe Wignl
Mechanism from the directors and employecs of the Company;

1) The Audit Commirtee shall have powers tact in aceordance Section 177 of the Companics
Act, 2013

)} Members of the committee shall elecr a chairman from amongst themselves;

k) The Audit Committee <hall have meerings periodically as it may deem fir;

) Allthe decision of the Committee shall be raken by vore of majormy:

m) The Audit Committee shall invite such of the executives 1o be present at the meetings of the
Communtee whenever required by ir;

n)  The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary to the Audit Committee.

ii.  NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Member of Capacity Number of No. of
Sl. [Name of Director | Committee | (i.e., Executive/ Non- Meetings of shares
No. since Executive/ Chairman/ | the Committee | held in the
Promoter nominee/ Held | Attended| NBFC
Independent) '
L. | Ananvashree Birla | 24/00/2018 Charperson and Nog- 3 i | share held as
Fxecutive Dirccior Nominee
Sharcholder
|

1:"_'-. 3

-t

N

%



it Vineer Brijendea 208/ 018 Iseonnve Director 3 L il
Charree
3. Al Chirania 24/09/2018 | Non- Executive Direcior | 2 2 I share held as
Mominee
Sharcholder
Terms of Reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee includes:
) To gude the Board in relanon 1o appointment and removal of Direetors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Semor Management.
b) To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report 1o
the Board for further evaluanon of the Board.
¢/ lo recommend 1o the Board on Remuneration pavable to the Direcrors, Kev Managenal
Personne and Semior bManagement,
d) To provide w Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked direetly to
their effort, performance, dedication and achicvement relating to the Company’s operations.
¢} To retain, monvate and promote talent and 1o ensure long term sustanability of mlented
I1l:-ll1.1!zt'1'i:.'l| persons and create l-'l::ﬂ]pt‘ll.li‘-'t' :u_h‘rm:ngy.
£} To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director.
gl Toudenufy persons who are qualified to become Direetor and persons who may be appointed
in Kev Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordanee with the eriteria laid down
in this policy.
h) To recommend 1o the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior

Management Personnel,

ili. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Member of Capacity Number of No. of
1R MName of Committee | (i.e., Execcutive,/ Non- Meetings of shares
MNo. Dircctor since Executive/ the Committee held in
Chairman/ Promoter | Held| Atended | the NBFC
nominee
Independent)
1 Ananyashree Bida | 24/09/2018 | Chairperson and Non- 2 0 1 share held
Exceutive Director a5 Nominee
Sharcholder
2 Vineer Bijendra 2400/2018 Execunve [Director 2 2 il
Chattree
3, Anil Chirnmia 240072008 | Mon- Exceunve Dicector | 2 2 I share held
as Nominee
Sharcholder
Terms of Reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee includes:
a)  To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy which shall mdicate the activines to
be undermken by the Company as per the Ce wnpanies Act, 201 3;
b} To review and recommend the amount of expenditure 1o be incurred on the activities 1o be
undertaken by the company:
c) To monitor the CSR poliey of the Company from nme 1o time;
) Any other matter as the CSR Commirtee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board of

Drrectors or as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.




3) GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

SN Type of Date and Place Special Resolutions passed
Meeting
(Annual/
Extra-
Ordinary)
Lo | Aonual General 3™ Seprember 2022 L Appommment of Statutory Auditors
Mecting e o fall Casual Vacaney,
Office no 1234, Ground floor, | 2. Appeinmment of Starutory Audhitors
Pushpak CHSL, Malaviva Road,
Vile Parle (East) Mumbat #0057,
2 | Exrea-ordinary 13" November 2022 I Increase in Borrowing Limir under
General Meeting e Secton 180(1)e) of Companies
Otfice no 1,234, Ground floor, Act 2013,
Pushpak CHSL, Malaviva Road, | 2. Ser the Mortgage Limir for the
Vile Parle (East) AMumbai 400037, Secured Borrowings by the
Company under Section 180 (1)(a)
as per the limuts prescribed under
Section 180 (1)(c) of the
Compamics Aer, 2013
3, Extra-ording v Ut December 2022 Mil
General Meeting &
Othice no 1,234, Ground {loor,
Pushpak CHSL., Malaviva Road,
Vile Parle (East) Mumbar 400057,

2) DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OF COMPANIES ACT,
2013

During the financial year under review, there has been no default in compliance with the requirements of
the Companies Aet, 2013, including with respect to compliance wath accounting and seereranial standards.

3) DETAILS OF PENALTIES AND STRICTURES

During the financial vear under review, no penalties or stricture has been imposed on the Company by the
Rezerve Bank of India or any other statutory authony.,

For and on behalf of the Board of [Directors of
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

g S 2 % . :
Vinect Bijendfa Chauree |17 MUMAA ;g_:.l. Anil Chirania J"x. VES
[ hrector NG /4 Pircctor :

(DIN: 17962531) (DIN: 01082719)

Place: Mumbar
Date: Seprember 23, 2023



S Bhandari & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

P-7, Tilak Marg, C-Scheme
Jaipur = 302005, India

T- +#81-141-2385412, 2385003
2385329, 4002306

Fax - +91-141-2385241

Website — www sbhandan in
Email- auditgrsi@sbhandan in, rupalkumbhat@sbhandari.co.in,

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To,
The Members of
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Svatantra Micro
Housing Finance Corporation Limited ("the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss including
other comprehensive income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the vear then ended, and notes to the hinancial
statements including a Summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 as amended (Ind AS) and other the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31 March 2023, its profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the vear ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under Section 143{10) of the Act, Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics i1ssued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have [ulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

5. no.

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

=

Impairment of Loans

Recognition and measurement |
of mmpairment of loans and
advances involve significant
management judgement. Under
Ind AS 109, Financial
Instruments, allowance for loan
losses is determined using
Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
estimation model. The
estimation of ECL on financial
instruments involves significant
Judgement and estimates.

The key areas where we
identified greater levels of
management judgement and
therefore increased levels of
audit focus in the Company’s
estimation of ECL are:

~

Timely identification and
classification of the impaired |
loans, including
classification of assets to
stage 1, 2, or 3 using criteria
in accordance with Ind AS
109 which also include
considering the impact of
RBI's regulatory circulars.
The segmentation of financial
assets when their ECL is
assessed on a collective
basis.

Inherently judgmental

models are used to estimate
ECL which involves |

» Understanding management'’s

processes, svstems and
controls implemented in
relation to impairment

allowance process.

» Assessing the design and
implementation of key internal
financial controls over loan
impairment process used to
calculate  the impairment
charge.

» Testing of review controls over
measurement of impairment
allowances and disclosures in
Ind AS financial statements.

+ Evaluation of the
appropriateness of the
impairment principles used by
management based on the
requirements of Ind AS 109,
our business understanding
and industry practice.

» Assessing the appropriateness

of management
rationale fassumptions/
estimates used for

determination of eriteria for
Significant Increase in Credit
Risk (SICR) considering the
impact of Covid-19 and related
aftereffects. .
» Test of details over of)
calculation of impairment
allowance for assessing the
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determining probabilities of
default (*PD"), Loss given
Default ("LGD"), and
Exposures at Default
("EAD")) based on the default
history of loans, subsequent
recoveries made and other
relevant factors. The PD and
the LGD are the key drivers
of estimation complexity in
the ECL and as a result these
are considered as the most
significant judgmental
aspect of the Company's
modelling approach.

» Economic scenarios, Ind AS
109 requires - the Company
to measure ECL on an
unbiased  forward-looking
basis reflecting a range of
future economic conditions.

Significant management
judgement is applied in
determining the economic
scenarios used and the
probability weights applied to
them and

~ Assessment of qualitative
factors having an impact on
the credit nsk
The effect of these matters is
that, as part of our risk
assessment, we determined that
the impairment of loans and
advances to customers has a
high degree of estimation.

The disclosures (including
| disclosures prescribed by RBI)
] regarding the  Company's
application of Ind AS 109 are
key to explaining the key
Judgements and material inputs
to the Ind AS 109 ECL results,

Refer Note 2 (k), Note 5, 38ic)
and 482
statements.

completeness, accuracy and
relevance of data.

Model calculations testing
through reperformance where
possible.

The appropriatencss of
management's judgments was

also independently
reconsidered in respect of
calculation methodologies,
segmentation, ECONOmIC
factors, and the period of

historical loss rates used and

the wvaluation of recovery
Asses.

Assessed whether the
disclosures

o key |
judgements, assumptions and

quantitative data with respect

to impairment of loans
(including restructuring |
related disclosures) in the |
financial statements are |
appropriate and sufficient, .
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'

IT Systems and Controls

The information system is a
critical component of
Company’s operations, enabling
efficient processing of
transactions, safeguarding of
information, and supporting
decision-making. The financial
accounting  and reporting
sysiems of the Company are
also fundamentally reliant on IT
systems and controls, hence we
identified IT systems and
Controls over financial reporting
as a key audit matter for the
Company considering the the
pervasive nature of IT
environment and the scale and
complexity of the IT
architecture.

Principal Audit Procedures

* Obtained an understanding of

the Company's IT related
control environment, IT
applications and databases
relevant for the purpose of our
audit of the financial
statements.

Also, obtained an
understanding of the changes
that were made to the IT
applications during the audit
period.

Our audit procedures included
assessment and identification
of key IT applications, and |
further verifying, testing, and
reviewing the design and
operating effectiveness of the
IT system, applications,
databases, that are important
to financial reporting and
various interfaces,
configuration and other
identified general, application
and operational controls based
on reports and other financial
and non-financial information
generated from the system on
a test check basis. In this
regard also relied on work of
the internal auditor

The implications of actual
status of functioning of IT
system and related controls
were assessed considering the
materiality levels and the
significance of their impact
over financial reporting.

Page 4 of 9



S Bhandari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Information Other than the financial statements and Auditor's Report
thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in
Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report and Shareholder's
Information but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such other information identified above, if we conclude that there
i1s a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to those charged with governance,

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including total Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for the safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's
financial reporting process.
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Auditors' Responsibility for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

’ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
Board of Directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Director's use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statement, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statement
represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work, and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
maltters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and sigmificant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”)
1ssued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure "A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit;
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b)

c}

d}
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In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as, it appears from our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account,

In our opinion, the aloresaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards). Rules, 2015 as amended,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as
on 31 March 2023 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of
the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure B". Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’'s internal financial control over financial

reporting;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Company has not paid or provided
remuneration to its directors during the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial statements (Refer Note 42 to the financial
statements);

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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d. {1} The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities ("Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behall of the company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the hike on behall
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

iiy. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalfl of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(ili) Based on audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i)
and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as provided under (a) and (b} above, contain any
material misstatement

(iv) During the year, the Company has neither declared nor paid any
dividend, as such compliance of section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

(vl As the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable for the Company only w.e.f. April 01, 2023, accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023

For 5. BHANDARI & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.: Q005 JC40034
|

MW/’
i PAL KUMBHAT)
Chartered Accountant
DIN: 23401084BGZCAKT288
Membership No. 401084

Date: 20.07.2023
Place: Jaipur
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING OF “REFORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENT” OF OUR REPORT ON
EVEN DATE OF SVATANTRA MICTO HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION
LIMITED, FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2023

(i) According to the information and explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of accounts and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state
that-

(a)

(b)

(€)

{d)

(e)

In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B)  The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

According to the information and explanation given to us, and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, the company has
conducted Physical verification of all its fixed assets across all the branches which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deed of immovable properties (other than properties where the company is
the lessee and the lease agreement are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed
in the statement are held in the erstwhile name of the Company.

The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the vear.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(ii}(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the books of accounts
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, the company does not have
any inventory. Accordingly, clause 3(i) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the

Com pany.
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(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has been

(i)

()

(b)

()

sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from
banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets, however this
limit has not been not utilized till 31st March 2023 by the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company:

The Company is a housing finance company primarily engaged in the business of
lending,. Accordingly reporting under clause 3{iii) (a) of the order is not applicable.

The investments made, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all
the loans and advances in the nature of loans, during the year are, in our opinion,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated. The Company , being a Non-Banking
Housing Finance Company, registered under provisions of RBI Act, 1934 and rules
made thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the said Act
Rules, particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
Norms, monitors repayments of principal and payment of interest by its borrowers as
stipulated. In case where repayment of principal and payment of interest is not
received as stipulated, the cognizance thereof is taken by the Company in course of
its periodic regulatory reporting. Refer note 38(c) to the financial statements for
summarized details of such loans/ advances which are not repaid by borrowers as per
stipulations. According to the information and explanations made available to us,
reasonable steps are taken by the Company for recovery thereof.

(d) In respect of loans and advances in nature of loans granted by the Company, the total

(f)

(iv)

amount overdue for more than ninety days as at March 31, 2023 and the details of the
number of such cases, are disclosed in note 38(c) to the financial statements. In such
instances, in our opinion, reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for
recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

As the company is a Non-Banking Finance Company, having principal business to
give loans, thus clause 3(iii)(e) is not applicable.

The company has not granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Act are attracted. Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a)

(b)

(wiii)

(ix)

(b)
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According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither
accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act or the rules framed
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report under
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and to the best of our
knowledge, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the Act, in respect of the services rendered by the Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, in our opinion:

The company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including, Income Tax, Service tax, Goods & Service tax, Cess and other applicable
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there are no undisputed statutory
dues outstanding as at 31st March 2023 for a period more than six months from the
date, they became payable except some outstanding TDS demand arrears amounting to
Rs. 0.96 lakhs pertaining to earlier vears,

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income
tax and goods and service tax which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute except the fnllnwing:

' Name of the Nature of Period to Amount (Rs. | Forum where
Statute dues which the In Lakhs) dispute is
amount pending
relates
Income Tax Demand of Assessment 11380 | Commissioner
Act, 1961 Income tax Year 2017-18 of Income Tax
(Appeals)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions
relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the yvear in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and lender's balance
confirmations/statement of accounts received, and the books of accounts and other
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that :-

There is no default on the part of the company in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the pavment of interest thereon to any lender.

The company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.
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(¢} The term loans obtained during the year were applied for the purpose for which they
were raised, other than temporary deplovment of borrowings in Bank Fixed Deposit
pending utilization of funds as per respective sanction terms

(d) On an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, no funds
raised on short-term basis have been prima facie used for long-term purposes during
the vear by the Company.

(e} The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.
Accordingly, the provisions of the clause 3 (ix}{e) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.
Accordingly, the provisions of the clause 3 (ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company,

(x) According to the information and explanation given to us: -

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable,

(b} The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) during the vear and hence
reporting under clause 3{x)(b) of the Order is not applicable..

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the books of accounts &
records examined and audit procedure performed, by us, in the normal course of audit:

(a) No material fraud by the Company and on the Company have been noticed or
reported during the year, except one instance of fraud as informed by the
Management where fraud was committed by the Disbursement officer ("Employee”)
of the company in relation to reimbursement of the franking charges fraudulently and
the total amount involved was Rs. 6.38 lakhs, approximately. Refer Note 67 of the
financial statements.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in Form ADT- as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this
report.

(¢) As represented to us by the Management, no whistle blower complaints have been
received by the company during the vear.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with
respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

{xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the books of accounts &
records examined and audit procedure performed, by us, in the normal course of audit:

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit as provided
to us, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him and hence the provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act 2013
are not applicable to the company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 43-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) The company is a registered Non-Banking Finance Company under section 29A(2)
of  the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 for conducting housing finance business
and having a valid registration certificate from National Housing Bank.

{c} According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a
Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management,
the Group has one Core Investment Company which is not required to be
registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial vear covered by our
audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

(xwviii) According to information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us, there has been resignation of statutory auditor during the year 2022-23 due to
changed RBI guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Auditors for Non-Banking
Finance Companies, vide RBI notification no. RBI/2021-22/25 Ref. No. Do5. CO. ARG
/ SEC.01 / 08.91.001 / 2021-22 dated 27 April 2021 and no issues or objections or
concerns were raised by the outgoing auditors.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us, on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any materi :
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of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
vear from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one yvear from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations provided to us and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit:

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other
than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the
Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 135 of
the said act.

(b} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has transferred the unspent amount pertaining to an ongoing project to
Unspent CSR account within 30 days from the end of financial year. Therefore, the
company is in compliance with sub-section (6) of section 135.

For S. BHANDARI & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. Nos000560C/C40034

KUMBHAT)
- Chartered Accountant
JEIIN: 23401084BGZCAKT288
Membership No. 401084

Date: 20.07.2023
Place: Jaipur
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Charlered Accountanis

P-7. Tilak Marg, C-Scheme

Jaipur = 302005, India

T- +81-141-2385412, 2385003

2385329, 4002306

Fax - +81-141-2385241

Websile - waww . sb i.in

Email- auditorsf@sbhandar in, rupalkumbhat@sbhandari.co.in,

ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading 'Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Svatantra
Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on, the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [TCAl'). These
responsibilitics include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section
143({10) of the Companies Ad, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was cstablished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness., Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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S Bhandari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of iinancial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and
{3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to further periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting 1ssued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For 5. BHANDARI & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 000560C fC40034

%Jwﬁu}

UPAL KUMBHAT)
Chartered Accountant
UDIN:
23401084BGEZCAKT288
Membership No. 401084

Date: 20.07.2023
Place: Jaipur



S Bhandari & Co LLP

Chartered Accountanis

P-7, Tilak Marg, C-Scheme

Jaipur = 302005, India

T- +91-141-2385412, 2385003

23853209, 4002308

Fax - +81-141-2385241

Website — www sbhandan in

Email- auditersi@sbhandari in, rupalkumbhat@sbhandarn.co.in,

To,

The Board of Directors

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation
Limited Office No. 1,2,3,4, Ground Floor,
Malviya Road, Vile Parle

(East) Mumbai - 400057

Independent Auditors’ Additional Report for the year
ended 31 March 2023, pursuant to the requirements
of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 issued by the Reserve Bank of India

1. This report has been issued in accordance with our terms of engagement letter
dated 07 October 2022 with Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation
Limited ("the Company”) and in accordance with the requirements of the Master
Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (the 'Directions’) issued by the Reserve Bank
of India (the 'RBI').

2. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Company
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit
and loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to
the financial statements including the summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information and have issued an unqualified
opinion vide our Audit Report dated 20t July, 2023.

In addition to the said report made under Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 ('the Act’) on the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2023 and as required by Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 issued
by the Reserve Bank of India (the ‘RBI'), we report on the matters specified in
paragraph 70 and 71 of the said Directions, to the extent applicable, as follows:

Management's and Those Charged with Governance's Responsibility
for the financial statements.

3. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other Comprehensive
Income) changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and ot Wmmg principles
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S Bhandari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
the safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of approprate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

4. The Management of the Company is also responsible for Compliance with
the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 ('the NHB Act') issued by the National
Housing Bank (the "NHB") and the Directions issued by the RBI and for

providing all the required information to the NHB.
Auditors Responsibility

5. Pursuant to the requirements of the Directions, it is our responsibility to
provide reasonable assurance on the matters specified in paras 70 and 71
of the Directions, to the extent applicable to the Company, on the basis of
our audit of the financials statements of the Company for the yvear ended 31
March 2023 and examination of books of account and other records
maintained by the Company for the year then ended.

6. We conducted our examination in respect of this certificate in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes ("the
Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

7. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard
on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits
and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and
Related and Related Services Engagements, issued by [CAIL

Opinion

8. Based on our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 and examination as above, evidences obtained and the information
and explanations, along with the representations provided by the
Management, we report that:
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Chartered Accountants

. Para 70.1

. The Company has obtained Certificate of Registration No. 02.0071.09 dated
g February 2009 issued by the New Delhi Regional office of the NHB. Further,
the Company has been allotted the certificate of registration No DOR -00071
dated 12 February 2020 from Reserve Bank of India in lieu of aforesaid
registration issued by NHB. The Company has fulfilled the Principal
Business Criteria as specified in Paragraph 4.1.17 of RBI Master Directions,

. The Company is meeting the required Net Owned Fund Requirements
during the year ended 31 March 2023 as prescribed under section 29A of
the NHB Act;

The Company has complied with the provisions of section 29C of the
NHB Act with respect to the statutory reserves during the year ended 31
March 2023.

. The total borrowings of the Company are within the limits prescribed under
paragraph 27.2 of the Directions as at 31 March 2023.

. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023
have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under Section 133 of
the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards] Rules, 2015, as
amended. In preparation of the financial statements, the prudential norms
relating to the income recognition, accounting standards, assets
classification, disclosure on balance sheet, provisioning norms which are
specified in the Directions; have been complied in accordance with the
applicable Ind AS. Further, the Company has complied with prudential
norms on loan-to- value ratio, investment in real estate, exposure to capital
markets and engagement of brokers and concentration of credit /investments
as specified in the Directions as may be applicable for the year ended 31
March 2023.

The Capital Adequacy Ratio as at 30 September 22 and 31% March 2023 as
disclosed in the Schedule Il return submitted to NHB in terms of the NHB
Directions on 12" November 2022 and 12" May 2023 has been correctly
determined and this ratio is in compliance with the minimum capital to risk
weighted assets ratio (CRAR') prescribed therein.

. As specified in the directions issued by NHB, the company has generally
submitted its half-yearly statutory returns to the NHB within the stipulated
period.

. Quarterly Schedule [l returns on Statutory Liquid Assets is not applicable
to Company pursuant to the NHB Circular issued in this regard.

In case of opening of new branches/offices or in the case of closure of existing

branches/offices, the Company has complied with the requirements of the
Directions for the year ended 31 March 2023.
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Chariered Accountants

j. The Company does not have any exposure in terms of paragraph 3.1
paragraph 18 of the Directions for the year ended 31 March 2023,

k. The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the year
ended 31 March 2023,

. The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 29
May 2017 has passed a resolution for non-acceptance of any public
deposits,

2. Para 70.2

Since the Company has Certificate of Registration as Housing Finance
Company and not accepting /holding public deposits, the matters referred
to in Para 70.2 of the Directions are not applicable to the Company.

Restrictions on Distribution or Use

9. Our work was performed solely to assist you for compliance with the
Directions. Our Obligations in respect of this report are entirely separate
from, and our responsibilities and liabilities is in no way changed by any
other role we may have as statutory auditors of the Company or otherwise.
Nothing in this report, nor anything said or done in the course of or in
connection with the services that are subject of this report, will extent any
duty of care we may have in our capacity as statutory auditors of the
Company.

10. This certificate is addressed to and provided to the Board of Directors of
the Company pursuant to our obligations under the Directions requiring
us to submit on the additional matters as stated in the aforesaid
directions, and should not be used, referred to or distributed for any other
purpose or to any other person without our prior written consent.
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is
shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in
writing.

For 5. BHANDARI & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No,; 000560C/C40034

g /

(RUPAL KUMBHAT)
Chartered Accountant
N: 23401084BGZCAKT288

Membership No. 401084

Date: 20.07.2023
Place: Jaipur
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Svatantra Micre Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Balance sheot a3 at 31 March 2023

{Amount in Rs. Lacs’)
Mote As at As an
31 March 2023 31 March 20332
Agsets
Financial assets
Cash and cash eguivalenis 3 1739012 7,849 55
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis & 525133 6.045.33
Lomns 5 151,464 11 112, 428 87
Oiher Anancial assets B __ 21383 166.58
Total financial asgets 174.328.49 126,480,335
Hon-financial assets
Curreni tax assals (net) T - 11.2%
Datemred tax asseis (nat) B 58442 7525
Invasiment propety 8 251 251
Property, plant and equipmend 10 11167 B5.33
intangible assels vnder develogment 10 1018 2.83
Oiher intangibie assels 10 181 -
Right of use asset 11 26587 117.51
rher non-Bnancial assels 12 13366 125.25
Total non-financial assets 1.113.92 T20.94
Total assets 175,442.41 127.211.27
Liabilities and aquity
Liaklities
Financial liabilitses
Payables
Trade payables
= Tedad outstanding dues of mecno enterprises and small enieprises 13 - -
- Total cutstanding dues of credilors olher than micro enferprises and 13
small enierprses 3352 ez - K
Ciher payables
= Totad gutstanding dues of micm enlerprses and small gnldprises - .
- Total cutstanding dues of crediors other than metro enleipnses and 14
small enlerpises 143 20 o2 T4
Db securibes 15 10,784 38 11.754.35
Borrowings (ofher than debl $ecunties) & 134,308 95 G2.014.62
Subordinaied Liabilites 17 3,000 0D 2.000.00
Othar financial iabilibas 18 62204 503.56
Total financial liabilitios 145,583 06 107,295.24
Man-financial Rabiliies
Frovisions 14 25039 17807
Dither non-financial Labidities 20 189 B4 112.71
Total non-financial liabilities 440.23 290.78
Total liabilites “'EE'—E‘ 107 ;E'“
Equity
Equsty shara capilal i | 537981 4 63016
Other eguity s 2283931 14, 986 0f
Total equity 29.019.12 19 62525
Total liabifities and equity 175.442.41 127.291.27
Summary af ificani i icies z

The acoompanying nodes loem an imegral part of fmancial s1alemeants

As par ouf report of even date atlached

For 5. Bhandari & Co, LLP
Chanesed A tanis

Firme'y Reg

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Swatantra Micro Housing Finance Corparation Lid.

By

Ru Cha il Chirania

P. nadging Oi Dingctod
Membership Mo @ 401084 DiN 07882531 DiM- 01082719

Place .

- Jaipu
Date Eﬂl IJ'T'- wﬂ-g

Sahil Mohta
Chisaf Financial Offcer

AeE®

T:mlirrlj Mandsorwala
Company Secretany
kembership Mo: AJ4613
Place; Mufmibas

Date: 2.8 0%~262%




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year endad 31 March 2023

{Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’)

Mote no. Year endad Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue from operations
Iritares] ncome 23 1737091 11.045.45
Fees and commission income 24 B3 TT 55 03
Met gain on fair valwe changes 25 168.20 84 65
Total revenue from operations 1762288 11,186.13
Other incormeée 26 18166 17713
Total incomse 17, 804.54 11,363.26
Expenses
Finance costs a7 10,764 66 T 45217
Impairment on linancial inshuements 28 B77.55 7483
Employes benefits expense 29 293389 1.954 88
Deprecialion and amortisation 30 145,85 104 .69
Other axpanses 3 930.38 HET.21
Total expenses 15.452.33 10,283.78
Profit before tax 23521 1.079.48
Tax expansa:
= Current tax 3z G54, 20 319.04
- Defarred tax expense 33 {21317 {108 34)

451.03 208.70
Profit after tax 1,901.18 BE9.78
Other comprehansive incoma
(i} Bems that will nol be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remegsurements of the defmed banefit plans (cost) 1.50 T.48
(i) Income tax relating to lems that wall not be reclassified to {0.28) (1.88)
profit or loss
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax 1.12 5.60
Total comprebensive income 1,902.30 875.38
Earnings per share (Nominal Value - Rs. 10) 3
Basic eamings per share (Rs.) 375 210
Diluted marméngs per share (Rs.) 3.75 210
Summary of Sgnificant acoountng policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial
statemants
A per gur repor of even date sttached
For 5. Bhandari & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Lid.
Firm’s Regisir Mo, 000SE0CCA00334

ﬂ".'"" k_,ﬂ"“ﬁ 0 ,\,—‘.ﬂ. } e “ .

R Vimeat Chattrese Anill Chirania
Partnar Managing Direct Darecior
Membarship Mo 40 1084 DIN: 07962531 DiM: 010827189
Place: Jaipur

Date: 7o 0F. 20272

Sahil Mehta
Chief Femancial Officar

Tasneem Mandsorwala
Company Secrotany
Membarship No: A3E13
Place: Mumbai

Date: 2.9, 0F- 2213




Svatanira Micrg “hl.ll.‘ﬂg Finance ﬂﬂfpﬂl‘lﬂﬂl‘l Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 3% March 2023

E ahane [Amaunt i RE. Lacs)
W of shares Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2021 41,477,575 447,76

Changes in equity Shaep Capital due 10 prior porog arons & b
Fesialed bafance Bl the begnning of ihe curren repoting year . .

Eszued duning the year 4,914,000 401,40
Comearsion dunng Ma year = -
Balancoe at 31 March 2012 46, Y1575 4,633.16

Changes in equty share chmlal dus |0 prior penod &nmon = .
Réstated balance af 1he beginring of the curtent réporkng year F =

Bssuiad Gunmig Ihe year 17,408, 508 1,740 65

Cofvarsion during the year - -

Balance at 31 March 2023 63,796,081 6,370.81

Ciher equity {Ameunt m Rs. Lacs')

Reservis and Surphus L Tatal
Becurities Statubory Impadrmant Rotainod
promium rERRrVIE resErve earnings

Balance as a1 1 Apeil 201 781606 130820 541.02 Z.008.83 1260211

Profd for the s - . . 5D TR BTy
Addiliah Guning e year 150880 - - - 1.508.60
Othar comprehensive income for the yoar - - - 5.60 560
{remeasurament of (ho defingd berafi plans)

Transder from / io redained sammings . 254 18 149, 28 {408 24} s
Balance as a1 31 March 2022 9.33.66 1.587.38 B30.25 337377 14,806.09
Profié for tha vaae - - - 1.801.18 1,901.98
Adian dring [Fe yar 5.758.35 : . . 5,766.3%
Share issué expenses {843 {8 43}

Omar  compeehansig  incoma far  he  pear - - - 1.12 1.12

|(remaasurament of tha cefined benedi plans)

Tranaler lroem | 4o retained sumings . E74.73 . (574,73 .
_Balance as ar 31 March 3023 15,085.58 296211 £90.23 4701.34 | 26301

Summary of Significand accounbing policies - refer note 2

The accompanying notes are an inegral part of financial stalements
A par our report of even date attached

For 5. Ellunﬂ.lrl-ltml.l.i' For and on bahall of the Beard of Divectors af
charuru Swatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Lid.
WI}'EE-EIE.EIGDIH
-lnH l:hlr-lml
hhfw:r-p Mo 401084 |:||r-.|. 1082Ta

Place: Jaipu

Date: 20 .03 1023

Chusl Fimancial Officer

Piace: Mumbai




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

{(Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’)

Year ended Year endad

3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit bofore tax 235221 1.073.48
Cash flow from operating activities.
Adjusted for;
Finance costs on lease llabilites 16.65 10.68
Transaction costs on borrowings (26.68) 194,23
Gain on $ale of mutudl fund unsts held as current mwesiments {16E.20) (B4.65)
Depreciation and amortisation 145.85 104.68
Gain an lermination/modification of leass 0.48 (247
Inferest on fixed deposits and Iner comporate deposits (501.71) (204.41)
Loss on sale of property, plant and eguipmani (0.02) 0,30
Transachion cosis on Loans 26T .58 {560.73)
Impairmenttwndeoll of fnancial wstruments 48851 T4.83
Umrwvinding interas! income 12.59) {2.56)
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,652.09 G00.39
Changes in working capital
= {Increase) | decreasa in loans {38,871.33) (31,083.52)
- {Increase) / decrease in other financial assets (44.76) 28.10
- (increase) [ decraasa in other non financial assets (841} {80.24)
- Incrgass | (decrease) in rade payables 54 14 2370
= Increase | (decrease] in other financial liabilibes (27.52) 47.33
- Increase [ (decrease) in othar non financial labilites 507 30T
= Incregse | (Qecrepsa) N provisions 7382 38,43
Cash generated from operating activities (37.136.90) {30,355.10)
Incom tax paad (ned) (E08.45) (297 BG)
Het cash used in operating activities (37.745.35) {30,652 96)
Cash Mows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment, capital work in progress including Intangibles assets {105.04) (102.74)
Proceeds from sale of propenty. plant and eguipment and iMangibles assels 0.40 053
Purchase of mutual funds {137.600.00) (32.080.00)
Proceeds of sale of mutest funds 137, 766820 a2 164 65
Interest réceived on bank deposits and Inler conporate loans 27582 404 85
Maturity {investments) of fin fixed deposits 1.020.09 (322713
Met cash generated from / {used in) Investing activities 1,359.27 {2,840.03)
GCash flows from financing activities:
Praceeds from ssuance of aquity Shares 7,500.00 2.000.00
Share issue expenses {11.25) .
Proceads from issue of debentures 1.000.00
Proceeds from long 1eem borrowings €6.963.00 £1.501.00
Repayment of long term borrowings (20,421.840) {20,829.66)
Procesds from shan bormowings . .
Repayment of shorl term borrowings - -
Repayment of lease liabilities (77.42) (58.62)
Inferest paid on lease kabinies (18.69) {10.68)
Not cash generated from financing activities 45,935.65 32,602,04
Nat increase n cxsh and cash equivalents 9.549.57 (B90.95)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year T.B40ES 8.740.50
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 17,388.12 T.B48.55
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 2.3 272
Bmantes with banks - .
- WWith banks in current accounls 3003 44 1.788.71
Daposits with maturity of less than 3 months 14, 353,32 505712
Cash and cash equivalents 17,390.12  7,849.55
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Swatantra Micre Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

Cash Flow Statement (Contd..)
Changes in liabllities arising from financing activities

As at As at

3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cipening balance (Borrowings & debl securiies) 106, 787.09 73.903.41
Procesds from long-lerm bomrowings (inchuding desentunes ) 67, 963.00 51,501.00
Repayment /| addition ) in lease liabditias (net) 163.58 28.78
Finance £osls on leass labdities {16,69) {10.68)
Repayments of long-1erm borrowings (20,421.99) {20,829.66)
Transaction costs on bomowings (26.69) 194,23
Closing balance (Borrowings+ debt securities) 145,448.31 106,787.09
Summary of Significan accounting polscies 2z

The accompanying noles form an integral part of these financial statements
As par our report of gven date atlached

For 5. Bhandari & Co. LLP Faor and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Charterad Actounlants Swvatanira Micro Housing Finance Corporation Ltd.
Fir ‘gwu 000560C/IC400334
hjm Virspet Anil Chirania
hanaging Derecior
Marnl:le-rmln Ko 401084 DIN: 07982531 Darg: Q1082719
Place: Jaipur
Date: 29, 02023
Sahil Mehta
Chief Financial Officer

fﬂgﬂ
%dmﬂa

Company Secratary
Membership No: AJE13
Place: Mumbai

Date: L0 0¥ 2023




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Moles o the financial statemaents for the year ended 31 March 2023

Corporate information

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limiled ("SMHFC” or the Company”) was incorporated on 16 May 2008 with the objectve bo
provide housing finance for inancially excludad families, parmicularly bwer income dormal sector hovseholds. The Company was regishared
with National Housing Bank ("NHE") as housing finance company. However, wite cerifcate of regstration dated 12 Februry 2020, the
Comgany alse registered with the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI%) as a housing finance company. The Company is domeciied in India and s
registered office is stualed at Office no. 1,234, Ground Floor, Pushpak Co-operative Housing Society Lid., Malaviya Road. Vile Pare
{East), Murmibai - 400 057, Maharashira, ndsa. The Company (5 whally cwned subssdiany of Svatantra Holdings Privale Limided

1 Basis of preparation of linancial statements
Thess knancial statements ("the Financial Stalements”) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS')
as notfied by Minisiry of Corporate Affairs (MCA') under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 [Acl’) read with the Companies (Ingan
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, {(as amended from Bme io bme) and other relevant provisions of ihe Acd. Any applicabaon
guedancalciahications! directons ssued by Reserve bank of india and National Housing Bank or olher régulalors are implemenied s and
when they are ssuad! applicable. The Company has unifarmly applied the accounting policies for all the parods presanlad in s financial
SLatamants,

The financial stsements have been prepased on & historcal cost convention and accrual basis, except fof the following assels and liabikties
and on the basis of accounting principles of & going concen in accordance wilh genarally accepled accouning principle {GAARK

i) Cortain financial assets and liabiities that are measwred at fair value

u) Dafined benefit plans, and reliled -pian assets maasured Al fasr value usang aclusnal valuation

Thix financial stalements have been présenied in accordance with Schedule N-Division 111 General Instructions for Preparation of financial
statements of a Mon-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) that is required o comply with Ind AS.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were authonised and approved for issue by the Board of Dsrectors on July 30,
2023

2 Significant aceounling policies

a. Funetional and presentation currency
These financial statements ane presented in Indian Rupess (MR o 'FE. ) which g siso the Company' s functonal currency. All amounts ane
rounded-off o the nearest lacs. unless otherstse indicaied,

b. Measuremant of fair values

Fair valus s the prce that would be receved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an onderly ransaction Debwesn markel
participants al the measurement date. The fair valus measurement is based on the presumpbon that the transaction to sall the assal or
tramsher ihe Eability akes place gither:

In Bhie principal marked far the asset of lability, o

In thie absence of 4 prindpal markel, in the mast advanageous markat for the assat or lability

The principal o¢ the most advantageous markel mus! be accessibla by the Company.

The tair value of an assel o a liability i= measuned using the assumplions that market paricipants would use whan prcing the asset or
fiabikly, assuming that marke! participania act in thes economs bast interast.

A lair value measurement of a non-financial assat takes into account & market partcipant’s ability bo generale eoonomc benehils by using the
asget in itg highas! and best use or by selling if to ancther market participant that would uge the asse in s highes! and besi uss

The Company uses valuaion technigues that are appropriste in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available o measure fair
walue, maximising the use of relevant cbservable inpuls and minimizng ihe use of unobservable Inpuls.

All assets and liabSties for which fair value s measured of dsclosed in the financial satements are categorised within the fair valua
hierarchy, described as follpws, based on the lowest lees inpuet thil = ssghificant 1o the fair valus meltufemen &3 8 whola:

Leved 1 - Cuoted (unadjusted) market prces in activee markets for idenlical assels of liabiliies

Lewesd 2- Valuaton lechmgues for which the lowest laved inpul that is significant to the fair valuee medsurement i dirsclly o indimectly
obseryable

Leved 3 -Valustion technsques for which e lowest lavel input thal is significant 1o the fair value measurement is unobseniabie.

For assels and liabilities thal are recognized in e inanciad stalements on a recurring basis, the Comgany determings whather transfers
R eccurred bebween levels in the higrarchy by re-assessing calegosization (based on the lowesl level ngut that is significant to the Tair
value measurement as 2 whole) af the end of each reporting percd.

The Company's Managemen! determings the pokicies and procedures for both recurming fair value measurament, such as derivative
instruments and unguoded financal assels measured al fasr value, and for non-recuimng measerement, sech 25 assets hold for distibuticn
in discontnudgd oporations.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the vakues of asséls and alklities which are required to be remeasured
or re-assessed as par the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the Managemen! verifies the mager inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agresing tha information in thi valuation tinli

The Management also compants the change in the a6 v
tha changs is reascnabis

For the purpose of falr value disclosmres, the Com
characieristcs and rsks of the asset or Eability and the



Swatantrs Miero Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statemants for the year ended 31 March 2023

©. Revenue recognition
Revenue i3 recognised o the extent that i m probable thal the economic benefits will fiew bo the Company and the revenug can be reliably
mE&sLred.

Interest Income

Interest mcome is recorded using the effective inlerest rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments measured af amortised cost. The EIR is
the rale Bal exactly discounts estamated fulure cash recespls Through the expected life of the financial instruments or, when appropriate. a
shonar pefiod. 1o 1he nel carreng amounl of he finansial assel

The EIR {and therefore, the amonised cost of the asset) is calculaled by laking inlo Sccount diry discount of Premium on Acquisition, Tees
and costs thal are an integral par of the EIR. The Company recognises interesi income using a rale of refurn that represents the best
esiimate of a constant rate of return over the expected e of the loan.

i expeciations regarding the cash flows on the fnancial asset ane revised lor reasons ofher than credit sk, The afustment is booked as a
pasithve of negathve Sdjustment 1o the carmying amount of (e assel in the balance shesat with an increase of reduction in interes! neome. Tha
adjustment s subsequently amortissd through intarest income in the Statement of Profit and Logs.

Panal Charges and Ponal Interest
Penal Charges and Penal Inbenest are accured and due on recsipt basis,

Net gain on Fair value changes:

Any differences batweean the fadr values of financial sssets classifed as fair value thiough the profil of loas held by Company on the balanse
shast date is recognised &s an unrealised gEn (1085, In cazes thera iS 8 nel gan in the aggregate, (he same i3 recogised in “Mel gains on
fasr value changes™ under revenwe from operations and if thess is a net loss the same is disclosed wnder “Expanses” in the Staement of
Profit and Loss.

Similarly. any realisad gain or koss on sala of financial instrumants measured atl FYTL and debt insbrumenis measured al Fair value through
Cither Comprahansive income (FVOCIT) s recognised in nat gainiloss on fair value changes.

Howaver, net gain | loss on dergcognition of financial insbruments dassified as amorlised is presented separately under the respective head
in ther Statement of Profit and Loss

Fees and commission
Servite lees and fadlitation chinges are recognised on satsfactony completion of service delivery

d. Financial instruments
Firuncial ingtrument is any contract thal gives rise to a financial asset of one eniity and a fnanclal liability o equity instrument of anather
entily.

Initial recognition and measuremant

Financial assats and financial liabilites are recognised whan the Company becomes a party 1o 1he contractual provisions of tha financiad
instrumant and are maaswnsd initally at fair value adjusied for ransachon costs. Subsequent maasuremant of financial assats and financial
liabilithes is described below.

Mon-derivative financlal assels
Subseguent measunement

i Financial assets carriad at amortised cost

Financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions ane mat:

The asset s held within a business model whosa objective is o hold assefs for collecting contracteal cash flows, and Contraciual berms of
the assat give rise on specified dates lo cash fiows thal are solely payments of pancipal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount

oulstanding,

After inital measurement, such financial asssls are subsequenty measured al amortised cosl using the effective interest rate (EIR) mathod,
Amortised cost is calculaied by taking imo account any discount or premium on acquisition and foes or costs that are an integral pa of the
EIR. Thae EIR amartisation is included in interes! income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

i Investments in eguity instruments
Invesimants in eguily instruments which are hald for trading are classified at fasr value through profit or loss (FYTPL). For all other eguity
instruments, the Company makes an irevocabla choice upon inikisd recognition. cn an instrument by instrument basis, lo classily the same
either at fair valwe through other comprehensive incoma (FYWOCH) or tadr value throuegh profit or loss (FVTPL). Amounts prasented in olher
comprehansive inoome ane nol subseguently transfered 1o Siatment of Profit and Loss. However, the Company transfars the cumulative
gain of loss within equity.

Dividends on such mvestmants sne recognesad in 51
the cost of the investment.




Swvatanira Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statemants for the year ended 31 March 2023

Wi, Investmants in mutual funds
Inwastments in muludl funds ane measured a1 Tair valee through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Da-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of fnancial sssel or pat of a group of similar financial assets) ae derscognised (e, removed
from the Company's balance sheet) when the contracteal rights 1o receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, of when the
firancial assel and substantially all the risks and rewards ane iransfesred . Furher, il the Company has nol relained contral, il shall alss de-
recogmise the financeal assat and recogihse separataly as assels of kabilities any nghls and coligabons created or retaaness in the trangler

Maon-derivative Tinancial Habilities

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent o indial recogniban, all non-derivative inancial liabiliies are measisied a1 amortsed cost using the electve inlérest mathod.

De-recognition of financial Habilities

A financasd liality is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability s discharged or cancelled of expered, YWhen an exishng financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the lerms of an exssting habidity are substantally
modified, such an exchangs o modsfication is treated as the derecogmition of the anginal liabiity and the recognitsan of & new lability. The
diffarenca in the respective camying amounts is recaognised in the Satement of Profitand Loss.

Offsatting of financial instrumants

Financal asséts and financial Fabilities are oHsel and the net amount is repoded in the balance sheot if thers is 8 currently enforceabls legal
nghl to offset the recognised amgunts and theré is an intention (9 settlé on a nel basis, to realss the assels and setile the liabilities
simuitaneoushy

o. Forgign currgncy

Transactions in forsign currency are recorded @l exchange rate prevalling on e date of transaction, Forsgn curmency denoménabed
monetary assets and labilites are iransiated al the axchange rateé prévailing on the balance sheet date and exchange gain of loss arising on
salflement and restalament are recognised in the Stalemant of Profil and Less,

f. Proparty, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and initial measuramant

Property, plam and eguspment are stabed al thesr oosl of acguisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borowing cost if capitalisation
crilgria are mel and directly altribulable cost of bringing the assel to its working condition for the inlended use, Any trade dscount and
rabates are deducted in amving at the purchase price.

Subsequent costs are included in the assel's camying amount or recognised as a separate assel. a5 approgriate, only when i is probable
that future economic benafits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cosl of the Hem can be maaswed reliabdy, Al olher
rapair and maintenance costs ane recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment are subseguently meaasured at cost less accumulated depeecialion and impasment lossas. Depreciation on
property, plant and equipment is proveded on the whitten down method over the useful Be of the asssts. as preccribed vnder Pan 'S of
Schedule | of the Compandes Act. 20013,

Assel Class Usetul life
Officis equipmsnl 5 yiarg
Compuler Squipment 3 yeais
Furritune and fxdure 10 years

Depegciation is calculated on pro rata basis from the dale on which the asset is ready for use or B the date the asset is sold or disposed.
The residual values, uselu lives and method of depreciation are révewed al the end of each financial year. PPE costing up b Rs, 5000
indnidually are depreciated fully in the yiad in which they are purchased,

De-recognition

An Hem of property. plant and equipment and any significant par initally recognised B de-recognised upon disposal or when no Tubure
etonomic benafils are axpected from its use or disposal, Any gain of 1083 ansing on da-recogmilion of the assel (caloulaled as the diference
Ietween e net disposal procesds and the carmying amount of the asset) S recogiesad in the Statement of Profit and Loss, wihen the asset

is de-recognised.

Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress are casred at cost. comprising divect cost and refated incidental axponses acquirg propery, plant and egquipmant.
Assets which ase not ready to Intended use ane also shown under capital work-in-progress.

intangibie assals
Recognition and initial measurement
Intangible assets aoe staled at thesr cost of acquisstion. The co mmmpﬂmlnmmqwlnwnumwm”m:ﬂ{m

Computer software - 3 years.




Svatanira Microe Heusing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for he year ended 31 March 2023

Amortisation

Intangibie assels are amonised over a their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life (amortisation perniod) of the intangible assels 5
arfived basis he sxpected pattern of consumplion of economic benefits and ks reviewsd a1 the end of each financial year and the
amoetisalion persad 8 revised 1o reflect the changed patiern. if any. The estimated wuseful lives of intlangible assets are as follows;

Compuler Software - 3 years

g. Income tlaxes

income tax expense comprises current lax expenses and nel change in ihe defarred tax assets of kabiifies dunng the year, Current and
defesred taxes are recognised in the Staterment of Profit and Loss, excepl when they felile 1o fem thal are recogiissd in ol
COmprefansive income of directly in aquity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprenensive income
oF dwrectly in equity. respactively

Curfent laxes

Provision for current tax is recognized based on the estimated ax liabiity computed after taking credit for allowances and exemplions in
acpcordance with the Incoeme Tax Act, 1961, Advance taxes and provisson for current income tax are presantad in the balance sheal afier
affsetiing the advance tax pald and income tax provision ansing in the same jurisdichion and whers the relevant lax paying units inbends 1o
sedlle the asset and labdlity on a met basis,

Duafarred tanos

Diederred tax s recognised in respect of temporary differences botwoen carmang amount of assels and Eabadities for MRancial raporing
purpasgas and comesponding amount used for tawation purposes. Deferred tax assets ane recognised on whused tax loss, unused tax credits
and deductible lemparary differences to the extent # is probable thal the fulune faxable profils will be avadable against which ihey can be
used. This is assessed based on the Company's forecasi of fulure opsrating results. adjusted for Sgnificant non-tacabde income and
aexpensas and spachic limits on the use of any unused tax loss, Unrgcognised deferred lax assets are re-gsgesaed al each reporting date
and ara recognised to the extent that it has become probable thal fulure taxable profis will aliow the delermed 18x assel 10 be recovensd,

Defared tax assets and labilities arg measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply in the year when the asset = realised or the
liability is seltied, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacled or substantively enacted ai the reporting dale. The measuremsant
of deferred tax reflects the tax consaquences that would follow from the mannar in which the Company expects. at the reporiing date b
recoves of selthe the camang amount of A% assets and liabilites., Deferred lax ascets and kabities are offsel only if there is a legally
enfrceable nght 10 Sat off the recognised amounts, and it is intended 1o realiss the assat and seftfe the labdity on @ net basis oF
sirulianeowsly, Delered tax redating 1o items recogrised outside statement of profit and boss is recognised outside Statament of Profit and
Liss [edther in ather comprahenshe income o in equity )

h. Employes Benefits

Short-term employee bonefits:

Shor tarm employes bonefil obligations ang maasuréd on an undiscoumed basis and aré expensed a8 a relabéd sefnte provided. A labddy
is recognisad for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonus or profit shaning plans if the Cempany has a present legal or
constructve obligation to pay this amount 8% & resull of past serice provided by the employee and the obligation can be eslimated retiably.

Contribution to provident fund and other funds :

In accordancs with Indian Law, eligible employess recaive benefits from Provident Fund . Employes 5%t insurance Contribution (ESIC) and
Labour welfare fund which is defined contnbution plan. In case of Provident fund, both the employes and employer make monthly
contribulions 1o the plan, which i3 administrated by the Govemment autharibies. sach equal to the spacfic percentage of employes’s basic
salary. The Company has no furher obligation under the plan beyand s manthdy contributions. Obligation for contributions bo the plan is
recopnised a5 an empityes banefit expensa n the Statemant of Profit and Loss when incumed

Gratuity:

Gratusty 15 8 post emphpmant benefit and is in the nature of & defined benefit plan, The Ebility recognised in the balance sheel in resgect of
graluAy 5 the present value of the defined beneft [ obligation at the balance sheet dale less the fair value of plan assets. together with
adjusimants for unrecognised achearial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benafils [ obligations are calculated af fhe

batance sheet date by an indapanden! actuary using ihe projedied unit credit method,

Aciuarial gains and losses ansing on the measurement of definod benefil obligation is charged! credited lo other comprehénsive ncoma

Compansated Absencoes:

The employess of the Company ang entitled to eave a5 per the leave policy of the Company, The labdilies owands compensated abasnces
to employees are aconed on the basss of valuations, a5 31 the Balance Sheet date, camied out by an independent acluary using Projected
Uinit Crodit Method. Actuanial gains and losses comprise experience adjustmenis and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and
are recognised immediataly in the Siatement of Profil and Loss.

I, Barrowing costs:

Bormowing cost of financal iabilities is recognised us! sl Rate (EIR) mathod




Svatanira Micre Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Motles to the financial statemants for the year ended 31 March 2023

i Impakrment of mon-financial assets

Al gach reporing date. the Company ass65305 whelher there is any indization that an assel may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
the Company estmalas the recoverable amaunt of the asset, Recoverable amaunt @ higher of an asset's nat selling price and s value in
uga, If such recoverabie amownd of the asset or the recoverable amound of fhe cash generaiing unit 1o which the asset belongs is less than s
camyng amound, the carmying amount is reduced 10 i recowerable amount. The reduction is treated as an impalment oss and |5 recagnised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If &t the reponing date, there is an indicabon that if a previously assessed impairment s no knger
exists, the recoverabla amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount.

k. impalrment of financial assols

Loan assels

B accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies oxpected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognibon of impasment loss
on ihe linancial assets that are debt instruments. and are médsuréd al amortised cosl

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company detenmines that whather thane has been a
significant increase in the credil risk since initial recognition, If Srédat nsk has not increased significantty, 12-month ECL is calculated fo
provide for impairment koss. However, if crodit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in 2 subseguent perod, cradit quality
of the Fstument improves such that there B no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. the Company reverts o
recognising impainment koss alfowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetirme ECL are the expected credit losses resulling from all possible defaull events aver the expected life of a financial instrumant, The 12-
month ECL ks a portion of the lifetime ECL which resulls from default events that & possible within 12 months afler the reporting date

The measurgment of ECL is calculated uting threa main components: (il probabdity of default (PD) (@) less ghven defaull (LGD) and (i) the
oxposure at default (EAD). The 12 manth ECL is calculstad by multiphying the 12 month PD, LGD and the EAD. The 12 month and lifetima
PDs represent the PD occuning over the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of the instrument respectively, The EAD represents the
expected balance at defaull, 1aking ino account the repayment of principal and nferest from the balance sheet date to the default event
together with any expected drawdowns of comemitted faciliies. The LGD represents eapdciad losses on the EAD given the event of defaull.
taking intd acooun, among other aftnibutes, the mitigating effect of collateral value 1 the me i is expected 10 ba realised and the ime vales
of ey,

The Company apphies & three-stage apgvoach to measure ECL on financial assets accounted for at amortised cost and FYTOCH, Assels
migrate through the fofowing three stages based on the change mn credit guality Since nitiad recagniton.

i) Stage 1; 12-months ECL - For exposures where thara has not been a ssgnificant incroase in credit rish since intial recognition and that ane
mod credit impaingd upon orgination, the porbon of the lifetma ECL associated with the probabilily of default events ooturnng within ihe neaxt
12 months is recognsed. Exposures with days past due (DPD) less than or equal to 29 days are classified as stage 1. The Company has
identified zero bucket and bucket with DPD less than or equal to 29 days as beo Separile buckets.

iij Stage 2 Lifetrme ECL = not credit impaired - For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recogniion bul tal are not credit impaired, a Metime ECL is recognised. Exposures with DPD egual 1o 30 days buf bess than or equal 10 89
days are classified as stage 2, Al each reporting date, the Company assesses whethar there has been a significant increass in onedit risk for
financaal as5et since inilial recognition by comparing the risk of defaull occurmng over the expected ifa between the repoding date and e
date of initial recognition. The Company has identfied cases with DPD equal 1o or more than 30 days and less than or equal 1o 59 days and
cases with DPD equal 1o or mone than 60 days and less than of egual to B9 days as two separate buckals,

i) Stage 3: Lifetima ECL — credd impaired - Financial assel is assessed a8 crads impared whan one or mode events that have a datrimental
impact on the estimatad futune cash flows of that assat have cccurred. For financial asset that have become credit impaired, a lifstime ECL is
recognised on principal outsianding as at perod end. Expasures with DPD egual 1o or more than 90 days are classified as stage 2.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured al amonised cost are deducted from the gross carmying amount of the assets. For debd
securities at FYOCL, the loss alowance (s recognised in OCI and carmying amount of the finandial asset is nod reduced in e balance sheef.

The Company does not have any purchased or ongingled credit-impasred (POCIH) financial assels, e, financial assets which are crecd
impaired on purchasa’ crgnation

It has been the Compamy's policy 1o regulary review its models in the context of aciual loss expenence and adjus! when necessarny. Rafar
noda J8(C) for delailed nobe.

Trade receivables

In respect of rade receivables, the Company applies the simglifisd apgroach of Ind AS 109, which requires measwement of loss allowanca
&t an amount egual to lifetima expected oredil losses. Lifetime expected credit losses ase the expecled credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expecied e of rade receivables

Write-ofs
Financial assets aso wiitlen off either partially of in (heir endirety to the extent that there ks no realistic prospect of reoovery. Ay Subsequent
recovaries are credied bo the Statement of Profit and

I. Cash and cash equivalents
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand (incledeng imprest), demand deposits and shod-tarm highly Bgund mvesimants thal ane
raadily converible mio kntan amount of cash and whech are subjact to an insignificant risk of changes in valua. The Company has netbed off
tha batance of bank ovendralt with cash and cash equivalents for Statement of Cash Flows.

m. Provisions, Contingent liabiities and Contingant assaets:

Provisgians ade recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a resull of past svents, angd when a relisbls estimate of the amaunt of
obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates ane reviewed al each reporting date and adjusted fo refllect the curment best
estimates, Provisions are discounted to their present values, whane the time value of money is matenal,

Contingent liability is disciosed for;

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events nol wholly within the conirol of the Company of

Presant obligations anging fram past svents where it i nol probaide that an outfiow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation or a

reliable estimale of the amaunt of the obligalion cannot be made.
Cantingent assels are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income i vinually Semain, related asselis drsclosed.

n. Reimbursemaent of processing fee and other charges

As per the guidelines of new govemment schemes under Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY), no processing fee is aliowed 1o ba charged
tx tha eligible customers. However, the Company is entitied 1o get a reimbursement from the cuslomers for the expenses incumed in
connaction with origination of the lcans, Such reimbursement recesvable forms par of "Non-housing leans”, inchuded under Loans and
advances in tha Balance Sheel,

The expenses presented in the Siatement of Profit and Loss such as Salanes and wages, insurance, Frankang charges, eic. are stated nel of
sancih recovenes from cusiomers.

o. Earnings por share

The basic aarmengs per cquily share is computed by doviding the nat profit altributabde o the equity shareholders for the year by the wasighled
average number of eguty shares oulstanding during the raporting pencd. Tha number of shares used in computing diluted aamings per
sharg comprises the weighted averasge nember of shares considered for deriving basic eamings per share and also the weighted average
riumbier of equity shares, which may be isswad on the conversson of all dilubive patential shares. uniess the results would be anti dilutiva

p- Leases

As & lesses
The Company apphes a single racognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shor-lerm leases and leases of low-value
assats, The Company recognises lease liabiiies o make lease payments and nghi-of-usa assets regresenting the nghl o use the

underying assels.

i. Right of use assets

Tha Company récognises nght-ol-use azsats al the commencamant date of the leasa (ie., tha date tha underlying azsat is available for usa).
Right-of-use assets ane measured ol cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabiities. The cost of nghl-ol-use assels includes e amount of lease habilites recognised, inftial direct costs incured, and lease
paymants made at or before the commencement date kess any lease mcentives received. Right-of-use assets are depredialed on a strasght-
ling basis over the shoner of the lease lerm and the estimated useful kves of the assets.

The right-of-usa assats are also subject bo impairment, Refer nole 2 {j) of accounbing policy far impairmant of non-financial essets

ii, Lease Habliities

At the commencement dabe of e lease, the Company recognises lease liabilites measured a the present valua of lease payments o be
made gver thi lase term, The lease payments include fixed payments (incedng in-subslance fixed payments) kess any lease incentives
recaivable, varable lease payments that degend on an index or & rale, and amounis axpected to be pald under residual value guaraniees
The lpase paymients also includs the exercise price of 8 purchasse opton reasonably cartain to be exercized by the Company and payments
of penalties for larminating the laass, |f the leass term raflects the Company exercissng the oplion 10 terminabe. Variabla lease payments that
o nat depend on an index of & rale are recognised as espensas (unlass thay are iIncurnesd o produce mveniories) in the pefiod in which the
evant of condition thal tggers the payment oCours.

in calcutating the present value of lease payments, the Company wsas its incremental bommowing rate at the lease commencamaent dale
becauss the intenast rate implici @ the lease (s nol readily determinable. Afier the commencemeni dabe. the amowend of lease labilites is
mcroasaed 1o reflect the accreton of mierest and reduced for tha leasa paymants made. in addition, the camying amaunt of lkase lkbdilies &
remeasured il there = a modificaion, a change in the lease larm, a change in the lease paymants {e.q. changes o fubuse payments
resulting from & changs in an index of rate used 1o determing such lease paymants) or @ change in the assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

The Company's lease liabilibes ane included in ather nancisl iabilivas

iii, Short=term leases and leases of low-value assels

The Company applies the shor-tenm lease recogniton exempbon to is short-tenm leases of macheneny and equipment (i.e., thess leases that
have a leass ferm of 12 months of less from fhe commancement date and do not contain a purchase option). I also applies the e of low-
willug fssels recognition exemplion 1o leases of lapiops., lease-lines and offica fumiture and egquipment that are considesed bo be low value
Lease payments on shor-temm eases and leases of low-value assets ang recognisad a5 expense on @ straighi-ine Lasis over the lease em

As a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not iransder subsiaplin
operating leasas, Real income AMSing i@ Socounted o
negosaling and amanging an operaling lease are ad
the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are ke



Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Moles to the inancial statemants for the year anded 31 March 2023

q. Recent accounting pronouncements

Thes Minisdry of Corporate Aftairs ("MCAT. through nobification dated 31 March 2023, amended he Companes [Indian Accounting
Stardands) Rubes, 2015, with eMect fram 01 Apeil 2023,

ind AS 8 = Definition of accounting estimates

The amendments clarify the distinction batwean changes i accounting estimaes and changes in accounling polices and correction of
erors. [ has also been clanfied how entlies use measurement lechniques and inpults 10 dévelop accounting eshimates, The amendments
are effective for annual reporting pancds beginning on or after April 1, 2023 and apply 10 changes in accounting polities and accounting
estimates that occur on or after April 1, 2023

Ind AS 1 = Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendment aims to replace the requirement for enbties to diesclose their ‘skgnificant’ accounting policses with a requirement 10 disclose
thiiir ‘matenal’ accounting policses and guidance oh how enlibes apply the concapt of materiality. The amandments to Ind AS 1 are applicable
for annual pariads beginmeng on of afler 1 Apdal 2023, Consequanbal amandments have been mada in Iind AS 107,

Ind A5 12 — Deferred Tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction

The amendment narmows tha scope of the initial recogniticn exception under Ind AS 12, $6 ol 1| o longer applies 10 aRaIchons thal ghe
rise 10 equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. At the beginning of the earies] comparalivie period presented, 8 defermed tax
asset (provided that sufficient laxable profit s available) and a deferred 1ax lability should also be recognised for all deduchnle and taxable
temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning cblgations. The amendment 10 Ind AS 12 is applicabie for annual
pariods beginning on or after Agel 1, 2023,

Maintenance of books of accounts

The Group has complied with the Rule 3 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 amended on August 5, 2022 as applicable, ralating 1o
manenance of electionie books of account and other relevant books and papers. The Group books of account and relevant books and
papers ang aceessible in India at all imes and backup of accounts and other relevant books and papers are maintained in eectronic mada

wathin India and kepd in seneers physicaly iocated in Inthe on daily basis.




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Cash and cash equivalenis
[Amount in RS, ‘Lacs’)
A al Asg an

31 March 2022 31 March 2022
Cash on hand 236 272
Balances with banks in cwrant accounts® 3,003 44 1, 78971
Diaposits with maturity of less than 3 manihs®® 14,383 32 8,057.12
17.399.12 T B49.85
* Inchsdes amounts recaived towards NHB subsidy pandeng Hansfer 1 Cusiomers 246 0.84

** Includes debl service and feServe account maintaned with State Bank of india 3,364 28 -

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

[Amount in B%, "Lacs’)

As al Asg at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deposits with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months® 525153 604533
5.251.33 6,045.33
*Bank deposit held as securities
against borrowings 169.35 161,39
#gainst bank guarantes 2,294.31 223239
debt service and reserve accourd maimtained wilh State Bank of India 65821 64022
3.121.87 3,043.00
Loans
{Amount in Rs. "Lacs’)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
At amortised cost
(i) Term loans
{a) Houssng loans 134,832,648 104,588 52
(b} Mon Housing loans 17500859 8,454 80
(ci Loan o employeas 1679 =
Total (i} - Gross loans 152,560.36 113,056.61
Less: Impairment loss aliowance {1,086 25) (52T T4)
Total (i) - Net 151,464.11 112,428.87
(i) Securediunsecurad
[a) Secured by langible assets 15252357 113.023.32
(b} Unsacurad 36.79 33z
Total {ii) - Gross 152,560.36 113,056.61
Less: Impairment loss aflowance i1,086.25) (B27.74)
Total {ii) - Met 151,464.11 112.428.87
(i} Loans in India
{a) Public seclor - ®
{b) Odhers 152,560.36 113,056 .61
Total (iii) - Gross 152.560.36 113,056.61
Less: Impairment loss aliowance 11.006.25) {E2T.74)
Total (i) - Net 151 464.11 112.428.87

{iv] Loans outside India
{a) Loan autside India
Total (iv)




Swatantra Micro Housing Finance Corparation Limited

MNotes to the financial statemeants for the year ended 31 March 2023

Loans or advances in the nature of leans are granted to the promoters, directors, KMP's, and the related parties, either severally
or jointly with any other persons.

“Ma:n 'Kt?ihn Mll;];;d#:h '.l;l.lnli'lﬂ:'ul
Pty i Wmﬂdlﬁ-l adu::nm‘ulin thia
i advances in nature of loans |
Promolors ML NIL MIL ML
DirgSiors BIL NIL ML ML
KMP's NIL NIL NIL NIL
Retaled parties NIL NIL NIL NiL

& Other financial assels

{Amount in Rs. "Lacs’)

As at As al

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Al amorlised cost
Security deposits 63,11 56,25
Staff advances{net) 4.81 316
Recewvable from government autharity® 4270 43.02
Oihers recenabies 10331 54.15
21393 166,58

* Represents recemable from munscipal authodity on account of lcans defaulted by the custoemers under BSUP schemes

T Current tax assets (net)

{Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs')

As at As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance tax” - 11.26
- 11.26

*{met of provisson for {ax s at 31 March 2022:Hs. 500.45 Lacs)

& Deferred Tax Assets! Liabilithes (net)

{Amount in Rs. "Lacs’)
As at

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Deferred Tax assels

Provegion for impairment of assats 258.23 165799
Prooasion for employes benelits 61.58 &4 B2
Tirming differenc
ﬂ;;e?iat:mm .y &7
Unearned processing fee 0.84
Share [S50€ BXPENSES 4 66 430
Transaction cost on loans 351.38 25887
Lease liabilities - 0.15
Toltal deferred Tax assets 6OT.62 483.34
Daferred Tax fabilities

Amortisaton of barrowing costs (104.51) (10:3.45)
Unearned processing fee {031}

Lease liabdlities i0.22)

Modification irestruciuring) gain on financial assets i4.18} (4.64)
Total deferred Tax liabilities (109.20) (108.08)
Nat deferred Tax assats/(Habilitios) 588.42 375.25
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Mates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Other non-financial assets
{Amount in RS, ‘Lacs’)
As at As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Prepaid &xpenses 13210 118,549
Qihier Fasats 1.56 €67
13368 125.25
Trade payables
(Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’)
As at As at
_ 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Todal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprrses | Refer note 44 - -
Total outstanding dees of creditors other than micro enterposas and small anterprises 33.52 2893
31.52 29.93
Ageing of Trade Payables as per below schedule for batances culslanding as al 31 March 2023
Particulars | Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment _
| MNotDue | Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
— Joow, ymarn
(i) MSKE
{1} Others 33.52 = = = 33.52 |
) Disputed dues = MSME
{r]Dispuled dues - Others
{ivwiUnbillad
Ageing of Trade Payables as per below schedule lor balances culstanding as at 31 March 2022
Particulars Cutstanding for following perieds from due date of paymant
Mot Due | Lessthan1 | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
= ' Lo L]
ik MEME
(i} Qthars 28.93 . - - 29.92
|{iii} Despuled dues — MSME
isputed duss - Othars
{wiUnbilled

14 Other payables

15

[Amount in Re., "Lace’)

As at As at
_ 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total putstanding duss of micro enlerprses and smal enterprises (Refer note £4) - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 14329 82.74
143.29 92.74
Debt securities
{Amount in Rs. Lacs’)
As al As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Secured
At amortised cost
Redeamable non-convertinle debeniures 8,784 36 8,254 39
Unsacurod
At amortised cost
Redeemable non-converbible debentures 1,500.00 Z.50:0.00
10, 784,36 11,754.39
Debd securities in India 10,784,368 11,754,389
Debt securibies outside [ndi . ;
10, 78436 11,754.38




Swatantra Micre Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Nates 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’)

Terms of debantures As al As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

8.45% secured rated, uniisied, 265,000 redeemabie non convertible debentures of Rs. 1,000 a1 par 2.650.00 2.650.00
on 18 November 2024°

10.60% secured raled, unkisted. 268 000 redeemable non convertible debentures of RS, 1,000 at 2.660.00 2.660.00
par on 18 November 2024"

9 .65%, secured, rabed, unlisbid, senaar, fully pasd up, taxable, 400 redeemable non-comvertible 4,000,00 4,000.00
debeniures of Rs. 1,000,000 a1 par on 21 April 2023*

£.51%, unsecured, rated, unlisted, fulty paid up, taxabie, 300 redeemable non-convertible 1,500,600 2.500.00
debeniures of Ris 1 000,000 at par on 22 Seplember 2024

Total Debt securities . 10,810.00 11,810.00
| Adjusiments of unamortised processing fee based on EIR {25 65) (55.61)
Total adjusted Debt securities 10.7B4.35 11,754.39 |

"The above non-comertible debentures ("NCD®) were issued on privale placerment basis and secured by way of a first ranking exclusive
and conlinuing charge over the standard book debds | koan receivablas of tha Company. The payment of interest hall yearty and Prncipal

payable af matunty.
[Amount in Rs.
Rate of interest Maturity As at As
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Secured Secured
51% = 1 b Within 1 year 5 000 00 1 ]
11.51":'&- - 10.60% ‘Within 1-5 5.810.00 10.810.
_Total Dabt securities
L Agiugiments of unamortisad progessing fee based on EIR 1
_Total adjusted Debt securitigs A 11,754.39
16 Borrowings (other than debt sacurities)
{Amount in Rs. Lecs’)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
At amortised cost
Secured
Term loans
- foom banks 108,456 67 74,800,368
- from Wational Housing Bank (NHB) 17.343.60 14, 384 66
- from Financial Insttulian (F1) 4.598.68 3,715.60
Total 131,398.95 02,914,652
Barrowings in india 131,398 .95 o2 91462
Borrowings cutside India - -
131,398.95 82 914.62
Motes:

i} Term loans are secured by frst exclusive charge through hypothecation of book debts’ recewvables (housing loans) of the Company
both present and future and assignment of mortgage on the dwealling units financed from such term loans,

(i} The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of debt securites and bomowings (other than debt securities) and interest thereon for

tha year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

{#i} The repayment of the borrowing is dome in monthly, guanery, hall - yesty and anmual nsiaimant as por the Sancioned lenms.




Swvatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Hotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

* Pertan io credit inked subsady and mierest sulbve
account.

Rate of interest Calegory Maturity A= at As al
A 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Tie-8% Banks Within 1 year 23T 5T 1ﬂ.ﬂB§.5ﬂ|
Fe-10% Banks - 4,934 64
10%-11% Banks 1245 1.800.00
12%-13% Banks 416.67 4
Te-8% Fi - Gr2ar
9%~ 10%, Fl 1.111.11 1.111.11
10%-11% Fl E -
1M%-12% Fi - -
2%-10% MHEB 89125 2 860 55
T%-8% Banks Within 15 73,686 97| 38.805.37)
0%-10% Banks 3423720 13,807.1
10%-11% Banks 10.789.61 2)677.94
11%12% Banks 5862 20 -
12%-13% Banks = -
F9-11% Fi 2,995.30 1.838.75
2%-10% NHE T 565 B 8.470.85)
B%-0% Banks Mcve than § 27.307.85 1.348.77
YRS
T5%-10% Banks 698792 1.5859.28
75%-9% Fi 50000 -
115-12% Banks - .
25-10% MHE 9,688 41 1,933.14
Total borrowings (excluding loans repayable on demand) 131.7858.53 83,247.53
Adjustments of unamonised processing fee based on EIR {360.58)| (352.91)
Total adj bormmowings (excluding loans e on - 131,396 95 | a2 914,
17  Subordinated Liabilities
{Amount in Rs. "Lacs’)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured
At amortised cost
Redeemable non-conventible debenfuras 3000000 2.000.00
3,000.00 2,000,00
Dt securities in India 3.000.00 2,000.00
Deb securities outsete India - =
3.000.00 2,0:0:0.00
Rate of interest Maturity As al As at
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
9.50% subordmated. unsecured, rated, unlisted, fully paid up, taxable, 300 More than 5 3,000 0 2000000
redeematia non-convertible debenfures of Rs, 1,000,000 at par on 05 January 2028 |[ypears
18 Othaer financial liabilities
{Amount in Rs. "Lacs’)
As ot As
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Inerest accrued but not due on borrowings: B243 110.70
interest accrued bul nol due on dabt securities 256.65 258,78
Inerest aconsed Dul nol due on Subordingte liabilities 16.40 1265
Subsidy received from MHB panding iransfer to customer * 248 0.94
Creditors for property, plant and equipment. - 2.20
Lease habilties 265.00 11£.10
Employee benefils payabla - 021
622.94 503.56

ion scheme subsady receivid from NHEB, pending credit in respectiva applicant
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Provisions
[Amount in Rs, "Lacs”)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unfunded
Provision for employes benefits
-Pravision for gratuily (aiso refer nole 39) 196 04 147.28
sProvision Tof leave encashment 47,73 30.79
-Pravision on Loan cormmitmen] 272 =
250.39 178.07
Other non-fimancial llabilities
{Amaount in Rs. 'Lacs')
As at As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision Tor tax® 4206 -
Statulory dues 100.36 A9 BB
Unspent CSR {also rafer nole 45) 1746 1221
Advancas from cusbomers 20.96 10.62
188,84 112.1
*Met of advance lax of Rs 514 Lacs as on 31 March 2023
Share capital
Details of authorised, issued, subscribed and pald up share capital {Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs")
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Mo, of Amount No. of shares Amaunt
shares
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs 10 each §.90.00,000 6,90:0.00 5.40,00,000 5.400.00
Mon-Cumulative Compulsonly Comerible Praference shares of Rs, 31,00,000 3,100.00 31,00,000 3,100.00
100 each
10,000.00 8,500.00
Issued, Subscribed and paid up
Equity shares of Ra 10 each, fully paid up 6,37.88 081 6.379.81 4.63.91,575 4 63916
5% Mon-Cumulative Compulsorly Convenible Preference shanes of - . - .
Rz, 100 sach, fully paid up
_6,3798.081  6.375.81 4.63,91,575 4.635.16
Equity Shares
(Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’)
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of Amount No. of shares Amount
shares
Shares outsianding al the baginning of the year 463,891,575 4,639 16 4,14, 77 675 4,147.76
Issued during the year 1, 7406506 1,740.65 49,14,000 491 .40
Converted during the year et S
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 6.37.96,081 6,379.81 4,63,91,575 4,639,186

i, Sharghalders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Mo, of Yofholding No. of shares % of holding
Equity shares al

Svalantra Hokdengs Private Limited 6.37,98 075 100% 4 63,81 560 100%
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Noles to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

fi. Right, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only ong class of equily shares having a face value of Fis. 10 per share, Each holder of aquily shards is enditied o one
vole per share. All shares rank pan passu on repayment of capital @ the event of liquidation. In the event of liquidation of the Company,
e hiobcher of the equily shares will be enlitbed o receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, afler distnbution of all the
preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exisls currenlly, The distnbubion will be in proportion 1o the number of equity
ghares held by the sharehodders. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees, The dividend proposed by (he Board of

Direciors & subject 1o the approval of shareholders in the ensusng General Mesling

iil, Shares issued for consideration other than cash

Tha Company has not issued [ allotied any shares pursuant to contracts without payment being recaived in cash, nor issued any bonus
shares nor there has been any buy back of shares duing five years immediately preceding 31 March 2023,

vi, Shareholding of Promoters for each class

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2023 iz as fallows

Promotor Name As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 % Change
Seof total %eof total during the year*
) No. of Shares shires No. of Ehl_ru abiiia
1) Promotors Company-Svalanita Holdings Privaiel 63,798,081 100%) 46,391,575 100% 37.52%
Lirrilesc
Disclosure of :quhuidhu ol promoters as at 31 March 2022 is as follows
Promator Mame As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 % Change
Mo, of Shares| %of total  |Mo. of Shares %of total during the year
shares shares
1) Prometors Company-Svalantta Holdings Privale] 46381575 100%| 41,477,575 100% 11.85%
Lirmited
* Rapresant change in percentage based on number of shares
Other equity {Amount in s, ‘Lacs’)
Hotes As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Securties poeEmium n: 15.085.58 8,334 66
Statutory resenve under section 29C of the NHB Act, 23 218211 1,587.38
Impairment reserves 24 60028 69028
Retained earnings 25 4 701.34 337377
22,639.31 14,986.09
{Amount in Rs. "Lacs’)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Securities premium
Opening balance 9,334 668 7.B26.08
Add: Premium received on issue or convarsion of shares 5.759.35 1.,508.60
Less: Share issue expenses (nat of laxes) (843 -
Closing balance 15,085.58 9,334.66
Statutory reserves under section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Openang balancs 1.587.38 1.328.20
Add: Current year transfer 574.73 250818
Closing balance 2,162.11 1.587.38
Impairment resenes
Opening balance 62028 ML
Add: Curnent year tansfes . 149,26
Closing balance 690.28 690,28
Retainad earnings
Opening balance 337377 290683
Add: Transferred from Statement of profit and loss 1.901.18 BE5.78
Less: Transfer (o statutonresses (57473 {259.18)
Less: Tranafer bo impg e i"l-. - {149.26)
lterms of other com ST recognised directly in retained earnings
Add: Oiher compred g fior the year (net of lax) 1.12 5.60
Closing balance 4.701.34 33737




Swvatantra Micre Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Motes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

222 Securities premium
Secufibes premium & credited when shares are issusd at premium, It can be wsed 1o Ssue bonus shares, 1o provide for premium on
redemption of shares or debentures, write-off eguity relaled expensas ke underwritng Cosls &G

223 Statutory resenves under section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Az pef Section 20C of Wational Housing Bank Act (NHE), 1887, the Company is required 10 transfer at least 20% of its nel profits eveny
year 1o @ reserve before any dividend is declared, For this purpose, any Special Reserves created by the Company under Section
381 Wvm) of the Income Tax Acl, 1961 = considered o be an eligible transfer Thus, during the year ended 31 March 2022 and year
ended 31 March 2023, the Company has fransferred 1o Statutory Reserves, an amount armved in accordance with Section 20C of the
MNHE Act, 18ET,

224 Impairment Resarves as par REI
As per DOR (MBFC)CC PD No 10972210, 1087201 220, where impairment algwance under tnd AS 109 68 Iower than the provisoning
reduined under IRACP (includeng standard asssl provisioning), NBFCs/ARCS shall appropriate the difference from their net profit or loss
after lax 1o a sepatate Imparment Raserves’ The balance in the ‘Impairment Reserves’ shall not be reckoned for regulalory capital
Further, it withcirawals shall be permitted from this resenses without prior parmission from the Department of Supenision, RBIL

225 Retained eamings
Retaned earmengs pertain to the accurmulabed samings / losses made by e Company over the years

23 Interest income
{Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs')
Year ended Yaar anded
3 March 2023 31 March 2022

On financial assets measured at

amonised cost

Inberest on loans 16.553.97 1066612
Interest income on deposis with banks 50171 204 41
Inlarast income on Cofporalt deposi 173.81 BY.73
Other interesi mcome 141.42 107.18

17,370.91 11,045.45

24 Fees and commission income
{Amount in Rs. "Lacs’)

Year endad Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Service and facilitation fees BarT £26.03
B3IT 56.03

25 MNet gain on fair value changes
{Amount in Rs. "Lacs')

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

MNet gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

- Ineestments in mutual funds 168.20 B4 65
168.20 84,65

Total net gain on fair value changes

Fair \alue changas:

-Rinlised 168.20 84 65

Taotal net gain on fair value changes 168.20 B4.68
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28  Impairment on financial instruments
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Swvatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Hotes to the financial statements for the year ended 11 March 2022

Other incoma

(Amount in Rs. "Lacs’)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Incomi from adverlmsment 16634 16275
Urmaanding intenes] mcome .59 2.8

Modificabion (restruciuring) gain on financial assas - -
Gain/{Loss) on lerminaton of lease {048} 247
MigoefianenUs income 13.19 935
181.66 177.13

Finance costs

[Amount in Rs. Lacs’)

Year ended Year endod
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
On financial liabllities measured at
amortised costs
interest on bomowings (other than debt securities) 8.271.19 6,283.36
Interast on debt securites 1.367 .34 1.077.87
Int@rest on subordinate [atddlies 4477 44 77
Injerest on lease labdilies 16649 10.68
Bank charges and others 662 3548
10.764.66 T 45217

{Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’)

¥ear ended Y¥ear endad
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
“On financial instrument measured at amortised cost
Loans
Imgurmen] logs allowancs 60600 &0 66
Bad debt written off 71.55 a7
677.55 7483

Employee benofils expense

{Amount in Rs. "Lacs’)

Year ended Year ended
41 March 2023 31 Masch 2022
Salaries and wages 2.857.81 1.752.10
Gratuity and leave expensas {refer node 39) 8244 64,30
Contribution 1o provident and other funds 136.62 ar.61
Staff welfare expenses 57.02 40.97
2.933.89 1,954.88
Depreciation and amortisation
{Amount in Rs. Lacs’)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation of plant, property and equipmenl 6471 44.87
Depreciation of Right of use assets 75.50 EG.30
Amarissation of Intangdée assel 564 043
145.85 104.55
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Hotes lo tha financial statements for the year endad 31 March 2023

Othar exponses
{Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’)
Year ended Year ended
3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Electricily axpenses LRy 655
Rent 18.85 11.69
Repairs and maintenance
= Dthers 10.48 4 58
Insurance 22.25 26.72
Rales and taxes 11.56 285
Paymants o auditors (Refer Nobte below) 20.00 20,51
Compuler and Software expengss 8524 £1.38
Communacation expanses 3466 3z
Professional, legal and consultancy 17822 125,40
Praniing and stationery 6515 AT
Travelling, conveyance and boarding
EAPETISES Ji5.87 22557
Advertising and marketing expensas 380 14,44
Corporate social responsibility {Refer
Mot 45) 1743 16.13
Brokerage and commission 12.88 1819
Miscellanoous expenses 114,07 104.99
930.38 697.21
Hote: Payments to auditors
Al feas 15.37 1413
Tax audit fees . 200
Certdication work 4.63 388
TAZANGN matier ] .
Ot of pockel expansa - 081
20,00 2051
Tax expanse
{Aamount in R$. "Lacs’)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Currgnt lax expénse
Current tax for the year BE4.20 319,04
66420 319.04
Deferred taxes
Relating 1o origination and reversal of lemporary differences (21317 {108.34)
Change in ceferred tax liabilines
Net deferred tax expenses {213.14T) {105.34)
Earlier year tax adjustment £
Earlier year lax adjustmants - .
Total income fax expense 451.03 209,70
Tax reconciliation
{Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

Yoar ended Year endad
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Profit before income tax expense
Statutony incoms tax rate
Tax at $1atulory nCome 1ax rate

Tax effect of amowunts which are not deductible [ not taxable in calculating taxable income

Tax iMmpdct on expenies which &
Tax impact on deduction :
Eartier year L adjustimants

Income tax expense

2,352.21 1,079.48
2511 25.17%
502.00 271.68

jas 327

(144.65) (65.26)




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Haotes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

9 Investmeant proparty
{Amount in Rs. 'Lacs’)

Particulars ' Fraehold land | Total I
] 1 .
|
Gross block : |
As at 1 April 2021 . 25 2.51
Additions - =
Deletions - | =
As at 31 March 2022 251 | 2.51
Additions = =
Deletions - -
As at 31 March 2023 .51 2.51
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2021 - -
Charge for the year - -
Deletions - =
As at 31 March 2022 - -
Charge for the year = -
Deletions - -
As at 31 March 2023 - =
Met block
As at 31 March 2023 251 251
As at 31 March 2022 251 251 I
Nobes:

The Company's investment property is a piece of land in India, curmently for undetermened use. The Company has no
resirictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contraciual obligations o eilher purchase,
construct or develop investiment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements, The Company confirms
1hat the title deeds of immovable properies ana hald in the name of the Company,

{a) Fair value of invesimeant property Amount in Bs. 'Lacs’)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1.48 1.49

The fair value of investmenl property has been determined by an independemt valuer, who has adequate
professional expenence as well as adequale expertise in the location and calegory of the investment property. The
valua is delermined based on the rale prescribed by government authosilies for ihe properly. Managemenl believes
that the net recoverable value of the property would be higher than carrying amount and therefore, no impairment
has been made. The resultant fair value estimates for investment property i included in level 2.




10 Propery, plant and equipment

Swatantra Micro Housing Finance Corparation Limited
Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amount in Bs, ‘Lacs’

Particulars D-Hl-'u Furniture Computer and Leasahold Total
equipment | and fictures | data processing | improvements
equipment
Gross block (Cost)
As a1 1 April 2021 26.67 9.44 34,91 35.42 106.44
Additions I 11.00 4338 12.54 95.91
Delation (12.24] . {0.31) - [12.55)]
As at 31 March 2022 4544 22.44 TT.86 47 .96 193.80
Additians 36.98 692 4745 4.57 95.91
| Ddalion (0.40) - - - {0.40|
As at 31 March 2023 B2.02 20,36 12541 52.53 | 28031
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2021 19.01 512 16.20 33.99 T4.32
Charge for the year 10.60 579 2442 4,06 44.87
| Dedshions (11.45) - 10.27) - (11.72)
As at 31 March 2022 18.16 10.91 40,35 3B8.05 107 .46
Churge fof the yoar 24.35 &7 3419 547 TO.18
Dedetions = = - = -
As at 31 March 2023 42 51 17.08 74.54 43.52 17T.65
Wt block
As at 31 March 2022 27.28 11.53 arel 4.9 86.33
As at 31 March 2023 39.51 1238 50.87 5.01 111.67
Other Intangible assets
[Armgunt in RS, Lacs’)
Camputer
Particulars o s
-'Eﬂlll block
Costat 1 April 2021 375
Additions -
Credertions =
As at 31 March 2027 375
Additions 1.78
Dedetions -
As at 31 March 2023 5.53
Aceumulated amortisation
Costat 1 April 2021 N
Charge for the year 044
| Daletions *
As at 31 March 2022 375
Charge for the year 0.7
Dralations -
| As at 31 March 2023 352
Maot block |
As at 31 March 2022 - |
As at 31 March 2023 1.61 |
Intangible assets under development
(Amount in Rs. Lacs’}
Particulars Software
Cost at 1 April 2021 -
Additions 283
Delstions =
As at 31 Masch 2022 2.83
Addibons T.35
Dalations .
_As at 31 March 2023 10.18
el block
As at 31 March 2022 2.83 |
As al 31 March 2023 10,18




Swatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Holes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

i Intangible assets under develspment ageing schadule for the year ended 31 March 2023 is as follows:

(Amcant in Rs. Lacs™y

Amount in Intangible asset under development for a period of
Less than | 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 Tolal
1 year years
Projects in progress 10.18 - - - 10.18
Projects temporarily suspended . . . = =

intangible assels under development ageing schedule for the year ended 31 March 2022 is as follows:
{Amouwnt in Re. 'Lacs’)
Amount in intanglble asset under development for a period of

Less than [ 1.2 years 2.3 years More than 3 Total
1year years
Projects in progrisss 283 - - - 2.83
Projects teamporarily sus . - - . .

11 Right of use Asset
(Amaunt in B, ‘Lacs')

Offica
Particulars busibding
Gross amount as at 1 April 2021 260.21
Additions 84.14
| Deletons {33.66)
As at 31 March 2022 J24.69
Additions 223,86
Dzl bons -
As at 31 March 2023 548.55
Accurmulated amortisation
Az a1 April 2021 162,51
Charge for the year 59,39
Deletons [14.72))
As at 31 March 2022 207.18
Charge for the year 75.50
Delebans -
A af 31 March 2023 28268
Met Block
As at 1 April 2021 arT
As at 31 March 2022 117.51
Az ot 31 March 2023 265,87
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Swvatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Hotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

33 Deferred tax movement related to the following:

1 April 2022 1o 31 March 2023

{Amount in Rs. Lacs’)

[ Deferred tax assets (net) As at 31 | Recognised | Recognised| Recognized| Asat31
March 2022 |in Statoment in OCI in equity March 2023
of Profit and
Loss
Deferred tax asset on account of:
Provision for impairment ol assels 157549 10024 - 25823
Provision for employee benefits 44 82 16.76 - - 61.58
Share issue expenses 4.30 0.35 5 - 465
Temporary difference on depreciation on property plant 16.27 5.50 = - 2177
and equipmen
Unearned processing fee 084 (0.94) - 0.00
Transaction cosis on Loans 258.87 82 51 - 351,38
Lease abilities 0.15 {0.15) - 0.00
483.34 214.28 - - B97.62
Deferred tax liability on account of:
Transaction costs on bomowings 103 45 1.06 - - 104.51
Moddcation (restruciunng) gain on financial assels 4.64 (0.48) - - 416
Unearned processing fee 0.3 - £ 0.1
Lease liabilities 0.22 - - 0.22
Remeasurement of gains/ (losses) on defined banefit (0.38) 0.38 - %
[plans
10809 0.73 0.38 - 1“&
375.25 213.55 iﬂiﬂ} - 588.42 |
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022
{Amount in RS, 'Lacs')
Deferred tax assets (net) Ag at 31 | Recognised | Recognised | Recognized |  As at 31
March 2021 |in Statement in OCI in equity | March 2022
of Profit and
Loss
Deferred tax asset on account of:
Provision for impairment of assels 15546 253 157.99
Provision for employea benafits 36.56 8.26 44,82
Shate issue axpenses 6.09 (1.79) - 4.30
Temporary difference on depraciation on propery 13N 316 = 1627
plant and equipment
Uneamed processing fee 6 58 (5.64) 0.54
Transaction cosis on Loans 154 81 104,06 253.87
Leasa lkabilties 0.57 (0.42) 015
37318 110.16 - - 483.34
Deferred tax lability on account of:
Transaction cosis on borrowings 100.74 2. - 103.45
Madification {restructuring) gain on financial assets 464 - - 4.64
Remeasurement of gaing/ (losses) on defined - (1.84) 1.84 -
|benatit plans
0.82 1.89 - 108.09
109,34 (1.89)| 37525
s;kﬁﬂ“i,r
§I’ KIUMEBAL ) g
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Hotes to the financial staterments for the year ended 31 March 2023

3 Earnings per share
{Amount in 5. ‘Lacs’)

Year ended Yoar ended

Particular 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Met profil attibutable to equity holders 1.901 18 859 78
Waightes averags number of equity shares culsianding for basse eamings per sharne B0. 732 505 41,491,034
Earning per shane [Basic and Diluted) in RS, 3.75 2.10
kominal valus per shame (¥} 10 10

35  Related party disclosures
Related party disclosures a3 réquirsd wnder Indian Accounting standand (Ind AS) - 24, * Related Party Desclosura” ane given belonw,

251 List of refated parties

[ Mature of relationahip Wame of related party

Holding Camparny Swvatanira Holdings Private Limited
Entilty having significant influence Azure Jouel Private Limided

Key Managenal Personnal (KBP) Ms, Ananyashrod Birla, Chairpersan

Mr. Vineat Chattres, Managing Director

Mr. Anil Chiranis, Direcior

Mr. Sahil Mehta, Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Tasneem Mandsorwala, Company Secratary

352 Transactions during the paricd with related parties -

= " (Amount in Bs. Lacs')
Yoar endoed Year ended

T i i of tredact g 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Swatanira Holding Private Limited Equity shases issued 7.500.00 2.00:0.00
Swatantra Holdings Private Limited Corporate Guaranies given by holdng E 13.0:00.00

company bo bank for term Igan taken

by the Company
Axura Jouel Private Limited Laan given - 2.000.00
Arure Jousl Private Limited Loan repasd - 200000
Azure Jouel Privabe Limiled Interest Income - 1311
Mr. Sahil Mehta Ramunaration 51.68 3785
Mz, Tasneem Mandsocowala Remunaraton 12.14 983
Mote:
1, Thefe is no outstandng balance with related parties except conporate gurantes as at 31 March 2023 of Ris 17600 (previous yoar Rs
17,600)

2 Employes benefits i relabon to gratuity are calculated at the Company level and hance not considered in above disclosung

36 Capital managemant
The Company's capilal management siraligy S 10 effectively determing, ramse and deploy capital 1o cover risk inharent in bussvess and is
mesting the capital adequacy requirements of National Housing Bank (NHB), The same is done through a mix of either equity and / or
combination of shor term [ long tesm debt as may be appropniate. The Comgpany determines the amount of capital required on the basis of
operations snd capital expenditure. The adeguacy of the Company's capital is monitored using, among other measures. that includes the
Teguiations issued by NHE.




Swvatanfra Micro Housing Finance Cofpoaration Limited
Notes to tho financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Thie Company is subject to the capital sdequacy requirements of the Resenee Bank af tnda (REBI). Under RBI's capital adequacy guidelings,
the Campany is réquired 1o mainlain a capital sdequacy ratio cansisting of Tier | and Tier || Capital  The Tier-| capilal, at any point af tme,
shall not be less than 10 par cent, The todal of Tierll capaal, 81 any point of time, shall Aot excead 100 par cent of Terd capital. The
minimum capital rabo 8% prescribed by RBI guidelines and applicabde to the Company, consisting of Tigr | and Tier || capital, shall ngd be
tess than 15 per cent of s aggregato sk weighted assets on-balance shaat and of risk adjusted value of ol-balance shaeal

The cagial struciure is moniicred on the basis of net debt 1o eguity and matwity profile of overall dei porifolo. The Company's policy = in
faee with Mon-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 which cumrently permits HFCs to
barrdw Up b3 12 times of their net owned funds ("NOFT).

There & mo allocation of capdal reqused a5 Company (s primarily operabng wn single segment e, financing, . The Company's poliches in
respact of capital mansgement is regularty revesed by Board of Direciors.

Regulatory capital [Amount i Rs. Lacs’)
Particulars As al 31 March | As at 31 March
2023 2022 |
Equity share cagital 6,379.81 4.639.16
Securithes promium 15,085.58 8,314 66
| Retained agnnangs 4,701.34 3373TT
Siatulory reserves 21821 1.587.28
|Less:
- Defered Revenue Expenditure [rapressnt (132,10} {118.58)
- Imtangible Assel (including under (11.79) 283
Deferred tax Asset (568.42) (375.25)
[Tier1 Capital 27 506,52 1843831
- Loss Alipwances for joans - Stage - 23232 10636
-Subordinated Liabilites 2,600.00 2.000.00
Tier Il Capital 2.832.32 2,108.28
Tier | + Tiar | Capital 30,428 84 20.544 67

The Company has complied in full with all g5 extemnally imposed caphal requirgments over the reponed period.

Loan covenants

In eder 10 Schisve this overall objectve, the Company's capital mansgemenl. amongs! othed things, sms 1o ensure thal it meats the
financial covenants attached 1o the inferest-bearing loans and borrowsngs that define capital strucluse requirements. Breach in mesting
these financial covenants would permst the bank to immedately call loans and borowings. Thera have been no breaches in the financal
covenants of any bomowing in the curment period. Loan covenants mainly include minimum CRAR of 15% (Previous year 14%), ratio of tolal
outstanding liability to fotal nel worth to be less than or squal bo 12 times | prévious year 13 times) ele,

a7 Fair value measuramant

471 Financial instruments by category {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
As at 31 March | As at 31 March

Particulars Category 033 e
Financial assais:
Cash and cash equivalents. Amortisad Cost 17.38812 7.840.55
Bank balance ather than cash and cash
epsvalants Amortised Cost 525133 5.045,33
Loans Amortisad Cost 151 464.11 112 428.87
Oher financial assets Amortised Cost 213.83 166,58
Total financial assets 174,328.40 | 126.490.33
Financial liakilities:
Trade payables Amaortised Cost 3352 2093
Diher payables Amortsed Cost 143.29 9274
Debt securitees Amortised Cost 10.784.36 11,754.38
Barrowings {other than debl securibies) Amoriised Cosl 131,398.95 82.914.62
Subordinated Liabilites. Amortsed Cost 3000 G0 2. 000,00
Lease Liatilities Amortised Cost 26500 118.10
Other Gnancial liabiities (eachuding lease linbidit gAFH Amortised Cost 35794
Total financial liabilities 1-/"'_—"&5‘?5 145,983.06




Swvatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporalion Limited
Wotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

3.2

ara

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the financial assets and liabiklies are included al the amount thal would be received 1o sell an assel or paid o transler a
liability in an crderdy transachon betwesn madket participants at the medsurement date. This Seclion sxplaing (he judGgem ents and estirmalas
made in detarmining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measursd at fair valee and (b} measured at
amorised cost and for which fair values are dischesed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the refiability of the inputs
used in determining faer valee, the Company has classified iis financial instruments into the thres lewels prescibed under the Indian
Accounting siandard. These theee levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs 1o tha measusement, as foliows.

Level 1: Lovel 1 higrarchy inchedes financial inglrumenls measurad ufing quoled prices. For example, Ebed equity instruments that have
guobed maskel price

Level 2- The far valua of financial nstruments. that are nol traded in an active markel (for cxample, traded bonds, over-the- counler
derivalives) is debermined using valuation techagues whech maximise the use of obsarvable market dala and rely as lithe as possible on
entity-specific estmates. If all significan! inpuls required 1o fair value an nstument are observable, the instrument = Included in level 2,

Level 3: if ome or more of the significant inpuls is not based on observable market dada. the instnement i intluded in evel 3. This is the
case for uniisied eguity securites, conlingen! consideration and indemnification asset included in lewel 3.

Financial assets and liabilities measurad at amortised cost al each reporting date
The carmang value of cash and cash eguivalents. ather bank balances, other financial assels, trade payables and other payables and other
fimancial kabilities are considered to be approssmatedy egual by the fair value due to their short term maturities.

oo {Amount in Rs. ‘Lace’)
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Carrying Walue | Fair Value Carrying Walue . Fair Valug

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Cash and cash eguivalant 17,388.12 17,380,112 7.848.55 T.B48 55
Bank balmnee other than cash and cash

equivalents 5.251.33 5.251.23 G.045,33 6.045.33
Loans 151,464, 11 152,860.26 11242887 113,457 44
Other financial assets __ 2138 213.93 166,58 16658
Total financial azsels 174 328,49 175,724.64 136.490.33 127.518.90
Financial liabilities:

Trade payables 3352 J3.52 2893 2993
Other payables 143.29 14320 92.74 2 T4
Dbt securities 10,784,326 11,1902 11.754.30 12,266.10
Borrowangs {olhar than debt securibes) 131,398,895 131,788 54 8281462 93.247.53
Subardinated Liabilibes 3.000.00 314662 2,000.00 212806
Leasa Liabilities 265,00 285.00 118.10 11810
Other financial liabdties (exchedng lease liabilitg 357.94 35784 H35.46 385 46
Total financial liabilities | 145 883.06 146,925.10 107,295.24 108,268.82 |

tp Loars - All the loans given are al variable rate of interest and hence, the fair value of fioating rata loans are deemed 1o be equivalent 1o
tha carrying value,

ii) Borrowings - In case of foating rate bomowings s fair value are deemed o be equivalent fo the camying value adjusted with un-amortize
transacton cost

In cage of fxed rale borrowings the fair value are considered equivaient o tha carrying value as there is no materal differance = nderest
rates.

lii} Debt securities are fned llabilites - The fair value of dabt secunties arg delarmingd by discountng expécted futehe contrachual cash flows
using curres! marked interest rates charged for similar new lpans (Loved 3 inputs).




Swvatanira Micre Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Motes to the financial statemants lor the year ended 31 March 2023

18 Financial risk managemant

Rizk Managemant

The Company is exposed to certain financial risks namely credit risk, liquidity sk and market risk §e interest risk, foreign curmency risk and
price risk. The Company’s primary focus s k0 achieve better predictability of financial markels and minimize potential adverse effects on its
financial performance by effectively managing ihe rsks on its financial assets and liabilibes

The Principal objective in Company's rigk managemen! processes is o measure and monitor the various nisks assocaled with the
Company’s and 1o follow policies and procedures to address such risks. The Company 's risk management ramework is driven by its Board
and it sub-commitees including the Audit Commities, the Assel Liability Management Commities and the Risk Management Commiliee,
The Company gives due imporiance to prudent lending practices and have implemented suitable measuras for risk miligation, which inchude
verdfication of credit hisiory from credit information bureaus, personal venficaton of a cuslomers busness and residence, valuation of
coflateral. technical and legal venfications. consenvative loan to value, and réquired lemn cover far inswance.

A Liguidity risk
Liguichty risk i defined as the risk that the Company will not be able 1o satlle or meel its obligations on time o at a reasonables price. For
the Company, liquidity risk anses from obligations on account of limancial kabililies —debl secunties. borrowing. rade payables and other
finarcial liabilities. The Company manages liguidity risk by maintmning sdequate cash resanes by continuously monitoring forecast and
achd cash lows, and by matching the matueity profiles of inancial asseis and Rabidities.

The tables below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial liabilities:

{Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’

As at 31 March 2023

Within 1 year 1-5 years 5«10 ynars Beyond 10 Total
yEars
Trade payables 3352 . = 3352
Ciher payables 143.20 # = B 143.29
Debt securibies™ 571682 6,355.57 % - 12,072.35
Borrowings (other than debt secunties)” 44 220.38 103,387.04 10,236.58 - 157.843.90
Subordinaled Liabdiling® 285309 3,108.60 1.023.85 . 4,418.23
Leass Eabities® 106.85 17380 - 25063
Oiher financial liabilises A55.48 . - = A55.48
Total 50,861.73 113,025.30 11,260.52 - 175,147.55
“Includes inlerest payment
As at 31 March 2022 {Amount in Bs, Lacs’
Within 1 year 1 -5 yaars £ <10 yuars Beyond 10 Total
Years

Trade payables 29.83 - . 29,93
Qiher payables B2.74 - - - S92.74
Crebt securitins” 2055 43 11.887.51 . - 13.996.94
Borrowings (other fran debl securities)” 28.972.62 TE.TE4.52 4.993.45 110,750.59
Subgrdinated Linbilies® 190,00 TE0.00 215820 3,109.26
Lease Habilites .77 B2.59 - # 140037
Qiner financial kabilitias 111.64 - . - 111.64
Total 31,554.12 89.524.63 7,152.74 - 128.211.49
*Inchudes infaras] paymisn

B Market rishk

{i) Foreign currency risk
Foreign cumrency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will Buctuate because of changes in foneigh currency
rates. The Company is nol exposed 10 foreign Cumency exposure.

() Interest rate risk

The Company is subject 10 interest rate risk, since the rates of loans and borrowing might Auctuate over the tenure of instrument. Intarast
rates are highly sensitive to many faciors bayond control, including the monetary poficies of the Reserve Bank of India. deregulation of the
hinancial sector in India. domestic and intemational econgsmic and political conditions, inflation and other factors. In arder to manage interast
rate misk, the Company seek (o optimize borowing profile batween short-term and long-term loans. The latelties ane categorized inlo
wirious tme buckets based on their maturities and Asset Liabity Managemeni Commities supervise an intenest rale sensitinly repod
periodically for assessment of interest rate risks. Loans given b customers are al floating rate of interest.




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
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Details of laans and borrowings

5 {Amoient in Bs. Lacs’)

Particulars As at 31 March |As at 31 March
2023 a2

Loans (variable) 15146411 112428 87

Total loans (variable) 15148411 112,428 87

Borrowings,debt securities and subordinate Liabilities

Borrowings (vanabla) 131.398.95 92.914.62

Db securities and subordinale Lisbeies (fixed rata) 13.T84.36 13.754.39

Total borrowings 145.183.31 106.669.01

Sensitivity analysis

The falliowing lable demonsirabes the sensifivily 1o a reasonably possible change in inberest rales {al other variablés beng constant | of tha

Company's Statement of profit and loss:

{Amount in RS, Lacs’)

Impact on profit before tax

Interest rale sensitivity” Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Loans
Increass by 50 basis points TaT.a2 56214
Decraase by 50 basis points (757.32) {562.14)
Borrowings
Increase by S0 basis points 1656.99) {4B4.57)
Decrease by 50 basis points 656 99 464 57
* Holding all gthér variobles a5 congii
Price risk
Exposure

The Company's expbsure price risk anses from mvesimenis hedd and classified in the balance sheei either as fair value through other
comprehensive income or al Bair value through profit and loss. To manage the price sk arising from invesiments, the Company diversifies
its portfolic of assels. The Company do ol have any invesimen] as on batanceshasd date sither al fair value through olher comprehensive
incoemie or at fair value thagugh profit and kss,

Cradit risk

Credit risk is the risk ihat the Company will incur & loss because its cusiomers or counterparties fail o digcharge their coniractual
obligations. The Company's exposure to credit nisk is influenced masty by cash and cash equivalents. other bank balances. mvesiments,
loan &sseis and other financial asseis. The Company conbnugusly monibors defaults of customers and oiher counlerpanies and
incorparates this information inlo 1% ofedit nsk confrels

Credit rigk managenent

Cradit quality of assats

Credit risk is. the single largesi risk for the Company's bussness. Management therefore carefully manages its exposens bo cradit risk. A
centralised risk management function oversees the risk management framework, which pencdically presants an overview of credit risk of
porticlio to the Risk Management Commiltes,

Credit-worthiness = checked and documentad pror 1o ssgnang any conlracls, based on market information. Management endeavaurs 1o
improve its underwriting standards to reduce the eredit risk the Company s exposed to from time fo time.

Expected Credit loss (ECL):

Credit Quality of Loans assets:

The foliowing iable sets out information aboul cradit quality of loans measured at amorised cost based on days past due information. Tha
armaunt represents gross camyng amaunt.

[Amaunt in Bs. Lags’)

| 31-March-23 | 31-March-22

Gross canrying value

Stage 1 14596505 |  107.810.74

Stage 2 3440.0 337303
a 3,145.70 | 167284

Total Gross carrying valug as at reporting date 152,560.25 | 113,056.61




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
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Management of credit rigk for financial assets

Cmcm risk rllahd bo ﬁlh lr'u:l :a:h aqummu ond bank depasits i3 managed by only accepting highly rated deposis from banks and
financial nsHlutions across the country,

mnar r.nanmal assels me.asumd a mmad cost includes boans and advances 1o employess security deposits insurance claim
recenablas and other recoverable, Credit risk refated to these other financial 33sets is managed by monitonng the recoverability of such
amaums conlinuaushy.

Loans

The Company clasely monibars the credi-worthness of the borrewer's throlgh intermal systoms and appraisal process bo assess he chedit
rigk and defing credit Bmits of bormower thereby lemibng the credit rsk by setting limits on the amount of risk it s willing 10 accept for
indivedual counterparties, Thess procedses inciede & detailed appresal methodclogy identification of risks and suitable structuring and
credit risk mitigation measures, The Company assesses increase w credit risk on an ongoing bass for amounts loan recoivables. that
become pasi due and default is conssdened fo have ofcurmed when amounts receivable become 90 days past due. The Company has
restruciured or rescheduled in the 1erms of the certain loan accouwnts in the cumrent year on account of COVID-19 redated restructuring
measures prescribed by the Reserve Bank of ndia; This has resulted in ncreased management estmation gver determination of losses for
such restructured loans

Collactive assessment of ECL

Since e Company |s into retall lending business 1o rural and semi-urbin areas which ane are greater in number bul lesser in value, there is
na significant cradit sk of any ndhidea! customer thal may impact Company adversely, and hence tha Company has calculated its ECL
allowances on a collective basis, ECL sssessment has bewn done on an indhvidual basis on the Company's ingigndfican! exposure on
corparate and bulder loans.

inputs considered in tha ECL madel

Definition of default

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and considers il as Stage 3 {credit-impairad) for expecied credit loss (ECL)
calcutations, whan the assets becoma mora than 90 days past dug on its contraciual payments and thesa assats conlinue o be classifed
as Siage 3 il the entire overduss are recesved, in accordance with the RBI guideines and tha ECL Paolicy.

Exposure at default (EAD)

Tha EAD represents expecled sulslanding exposure sublect fo credit dsk at the periodidate, when defaull is considered, The Company
does cash low mapping based on contractual matunly ko loans in Stage |, using the exposure at default in fulure years and the probability
of defaull estamation based on macro vanables. For siage | and stage i, as an approximation balance shoat outstanding is usad

Loss given default (LGD)

It is defined as the percentage risk of exposure that is not expected 10 be recovered in the event of defaull Based on an analysis of
historical data, the Company has estmated the loss given defaudl. using histonical recovery experience, polantial sale procesd and recovery
cost. This is referred 1o as the workou! method, Sech recoveries are discounted using interest rate of the loans. While calculating LGD
percentage, 100% recoverias are estmated for the cases where the recovenes are absohiely cenmin o happen within & shon penod of
time,

Probability of Default (PD)

“Probability of default® (PD) i3 defined as the probability of whather tha borrowers will defaull on their obligations in the future, For assets
which are in Stage 1, a 12-month PD s reguired. For Siage 2 assal’s a Satime PD s required while Stage 3 asselts ane considered 1o have
a 100% PD. Historical DPD data is wiilized to calculate throwgh the cycle PO. PD analysis tracks the migration behaviour of a static pool of
Ioans actve al the end of each year across different buckets- Current, 1-29 DPD, 30-58 DPD, 60-83 DPD. 80+ DPD for the 12 month ard

lifetirme pariod,

Forward locking Information

Formard looking information is incorporated in the measuremont of probability of default and consequently in measurement of ECL. The
Vasicok model i used for converting the TTC (Through-the-Cycie) PD inte FC (Forecast) PD, The model calculates an AC {Assat
Complation) factor and convenis the probability usmg the macro-economic vanable seleched which is GOP growth rate, Based on the
considaration of a wariety of exiernal aciual and forecast information, the Company forms & base case’ view of the future direchon of GDP
growth rals as well as a representative range of other possible forecast scenanas. This process involves developing fwo or more additional
acoNMMIC scenanas and considening the relative probabilibes of each sulcome. The base case represants a most likely outcome while the
athes scenaras represent more optimistic and More pessimMmiSic oultomes.

Furiher, in the global pandamic Covsd 18, management overlays are applied in determining foreand looking scenarios. It is considered by
evalunting all relevant inbernal and reasonably available | diata namely Indusirial research by varous credit rating agencies,
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Significant increase in credit risk

An assessment of whethes eredit nsk has ncreased significantly since mdtial recognition s performed al esch réportng pehod by
considering the change in the risk of delaull occumng ovar the remaining life of the loan exposure. However, unless identified &l an earker
stage, the Company have determmed all a538ts are desmed 1o have suffered a significant increass in credil rek when 30 days past due

The Company have also conducied & guantitative assessment of significant increase in credit nsk (SICR) of the loan portfolio with respact
to thi covid 19 pandemic Scenario, based on analysis of percentags incréasae in probability of default,

Policy fof wiite off of Loan Assals

The gross camying ameun] of a nancial asset is wiitten off when there is no realistic prospect of further recaovery. This is generally the case
when the Company daberminas that the debtor does nol have assets or sources of mcome that could generate sufficient cash flows 1o repay
the amounts subject to the write-off, However, financial assets that are whiten off could still be subject to enforcement activtios under tha
Company's recovery procedures, 1aking info account legal advice where appropnate, Any recowenss mase ane recognised in Statement of

Profit or Loss
Collateral

The Company holds collateral to mitigate credit risk associated with financial assets. The main types of collateral inclede residential
propertes. The collaieral presented refales to instruments (individual loans) that are measured at amontised cost

{Amount in Rs. Lacs’)

i As at 31 March]  As at 31
Particular Category of Collateral 2023 March 2023
Financial Assets-Loans’ Propenies (amount of collateral} 267.027.12 | 186.634.55

*Collateral held sganst Slage 3 Assets of Rs 566730 Lacs (as at 31 March 2022 Rs. 331B.ET Lacs)

Crodit Risk exposura

i} Expected credit losses for inancial assets ather than loans

{Amount in Bs Lecs’)

A= at 31 March 2023 Estimated Expected Carrying
QrOSs carrying | cradit amount net of
amt af losses impalrmant
dafault provision
Cash and cash sguivalents 17.399.12 - 1738012
Bank balances other than cash and cash egunalents 525133 - 5.251.33
Secutily deposils 63.11 - 63.11
\Diher financial assels 108.12 | - 108.12
As at 31 March 2022 Estimated Expucted Carrying
gross carrying cradit amount net of
amt at losses impairmant
default provision
Cash and cash egunvalent 7.849.55 - T.B49.55
Bank balances other than cash and cash egunvalints 6.04533 - 604533
Securly deposits 56.25 - 56.25
Ciher financial assels 67 31 - &7.31

ii}) Expaectod cradit loss for loans

Changes (n the gross carrying amount and the correspending ECL allowances in relation to loans from beginning to end of

raporting period:
(Amount in RS, "Lacs’)

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Staged
Gross camying amount as at April 1 2021 Tr.801.28 213278 144269
Assets anginated 46, 746,58 186.659 Ja.42
Met transler between slages
Transfer io stage 1 aih2 (21.58) (E9.5T)
Trarader 1o stags 2 (2,504,222} 2 552 97 {4875}
Transder o $tage 3 [B66.61) (309.62) 876.23
Reclasified by other financial assets {also rofer note &) - . (43.02]
Assels derecognised or collected (exciuding write offs) {14,575.41) (371.24) (403 16)
Greas earrying amount as at March 31 2 107,810.74 3,373.03 1,872.84
Assets ofiginated oARLE S 73.784.53 308.47 43275

v o
Mot Iransfer batwien s1Gis e e
Transfer 1o stags 1 (3 =i 207638  (1.84058) (135.82)
Transfer o stage 2 4 fal {2.835.75) 2.838.06 (231)
Transfer 1o stage 3 # e {1.166.74) [449.52) 1.616.26 |
Reclasified to other financial assets {alsg' wifer note 61 - =
Asnets derecognised or collected (aucluding wile offs) (33,804,101} (7BI.07) {637.93)
Groas carnying amount as at March 31 2023 145, 965.05 3,448 .41 314579




Svatanira Micre Housing Finance Corporation Limited
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L

Recenciliation of loss allowance provision from beginning o end of reporting peris

Particulars Stage1 | Stage 2 Stage 3° |
Loss allowance as on April 1 2021 26385 134.76 219.07|
Assels onginated 4741 150.39 15237 |
MWet ransfer between stages I |
TransTer 1o stage 1 B0.72 (47.12) [1:.50]:
Transfer o stage 2 (1007} 17.47 (T.40)
Transler io stage 3 [2.63) (20.75) IJJEI
Assots derecognised or collected |excluding wite offs] [252.92) [31.65) (55.54)
Loss allowance as on March 31 2022 106.36 203.10 318.28 |
Assats onginaled 14517 118.94 451,84 |
Mat ransfer bebweon siages

Translar o stags 1 13801 (115.93) [E:I.IJE]i
Transher o stage 2 (108,67} 108,06 {ﬂ.&ﬂ!l
Transfer o staga 3 {2 ﬂl'-l’:ll (28.E4) J0.91 |
Assets derecognised or colleched (excluding wiite offs) (47 48| (133.78) (66,20 |
Loss allowance as on March 31 2023 232,32 | 152.57 T10.36

*734 lpan accounls in stage 3 a5 on 31 March 2023,

Concentration of loans

The Company monitors concentration of credit nisk on the basis of housing/Non hoasing in which the bormower operatas.

Concantration by type of loan Az at 31 March | As at 31 March

FitrE] 202
Housing 134.932 68 104.568.52
MNon housing 17,500.89 8,454 80
Groas ea Amount 152.523.57 113,023.32
Retiramant benefit plans

(A} Defined benefit obligation

39.2

The Company has the following defined benafils plans:
Gratuity (non - funded]

As per Ind AS-18 Employes Benefits . the daclosure of Employes benefits a5 defined in the Standard are given below.

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19, actuarial valuation was done in respect of the aforesaid cefined benefit plan of gratuity

based on the folosing assumplions:

Particulars Aa at 31 March

As at 31 March
2022

Indian Asswred
Lives{ 2012-14)
Liimate Mortaity
Rates

7.50%

7.50°%

1% ai all ages

Indian Assuned
Lives(2012-14)
Ulimate
hioetakity Flates
T.25%

7.50%

1% at ali ages;

{Amaunt in Rs. Lacs’)

Particulars For the year | For the year
ended 31 ended 31
March 2023 | March 2022
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 147 .28 128.89
Inlerest expense 10068 870
Curent senvics cost 43 68 3513
iBenafl Paid From the Fund) {320 (17.96)
{Banafi pad directly by the amployér) - -
Actuanial (gaing) | losses on obsgations - due 1 change in femographc assumplions - =
Actuarial {gains) / losses on obligations - due o change in finandial assumplions {8000 [14.48)
Actuanial (gaing) / losses on obsgations - dug 10 expenence .50 7.00
Frasent value of obligation at the end of the 194.94 147.28 |
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{Amount in Rs. Lacs')
393 |Particulars As at 31 March Asal
2023 March 2022
Assets and liabilities recognised in the balance shest
Prasent value of the defined bonefit obligation at the end of the year 196.64 147.28
Fumnded status - daticit . .
Mat (Hakility] ! asset recognised in the balance shoeal 196.94 14728
134 Expenzes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
{Amount in Bs. Lacs’}
[Particulars For the year | For the year
ended 31 ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Current senace cosl 45,68 35.13
Past service cost = -
Med mleresl (income) expense 10.68 8.0
Mat gratuity cost recognised in the current year 60.36 43.83

19.5 Expenses recognised in the atalement of Other comprehensive incoma (CC1)

[Amoaent e Fig. ‘Lacs’)

Particulars For the year | For the year
anded 31 ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Actuanal loss on post employment benelit abligation 1.50 744 |
Total remeasurement cost for the year recegnised in 0G| 1.50 7.48

396 Reconciliation of not asset | (Hakility) recognised:

(Amount n Rs, ‘Lacs')

Particulars For the yaar | For the year
ended 31 ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Cpening Mat Liability 147,28 128,83
Expenses recognised at the and of periad G036 43183
Amount recognised in gther comprohensive income {1.50) i(7.48)
MNet Leabshity | (Asset) Transler In . -
Nat {Liability) | Assat Transfer Qut . .
Benehl pasd {g.20)| (17.96)
Employers Contribution - -
Met Liabilityl{Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheat 196.04 147.28

9.7 Sensitivity Analysis:

{Amount in Bs. Lacs’)

Particulars For the year | For tha year
ended 31 ended 31
March 2023 | March 2022
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting (165.66)) (122 85)
Delta affect of -1% change in aile of discounting 23627 1TR.07
Delta atfect of +1% changa in rate of salary increase 23587 17762
|Delta eHect of -1% change in rate of salary increase (165 40) (122 85}

38.8 Maturity analysis of projected banefit

abligation
{Amount i Rs. ‘Lacs’)
Year For the year | For the year
andaed 31 endad 31
Mareh 2033 Mareh 2022
1 year 1598 1228
Sum of yvears 213 5 8.50 8457
Sum of years & to 10 2875 1686
Surn of years 11 and above 81476 AT AT

(B} Defined contribution plan

The Company contributes towards provident fund for employees which is the defined contribution plan for quakfying employees. Linder this

Scheme, the Company 5 regured b contribute s
R 136.6F Lacs and Rs. 91 54 Lacs towards i

2023 and 31 March 2022, respectively,

tage of the payroll cost to fund ﬂ'm benefits. The Company has w-m
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40 Leases

fiii}

41

411

41.3

Company as lesses

The Company’s leased assets primanly consisl of leases for olfice premises & guest houses. Leases of office premises and guest houses
generally have lease term between 1 10 5 years, The Company has applied short lerm exemption for leases for premiges acoondingly are

exciuded from Ind AS 116,

Sak aul bélow ane the cafrying amaunts of right-of-use assels recognised and the movements during the pariod:

(Amount in B Lacs')

Particulars Tatal
Az at 1 April 2021 a7.T1
Ariditions. 98.14
Debietion during the year (33.66)
Depreciation expenses for the year {44 68)
As at March 31, 2022 117,51
| Additions 22386
Dratetion during the yoar -
Depreciaton expenses for the year (75.81)
26586

As at March 31, 2023

Sat out balow are the carrying amouwnis of lease labilities [included under interest-beanng loans and borrowings ) and the movemenis duning

the period:

(Amount in Rs ‘Lacs’)
Particulars Total
As at 1 April 2021 0,50
Additions a5 38
ocraton of inberes) 1068
Deduction (21.41)
Payment (B6.53)
As at March 31, 3022 118.10
Additkons 21308
Accraton of interast 16.69
Deuchion Qa6
Payment (83.34)
As at Mareh 31, 2023 265.00 |

The maturity anahysis of lease kabities are dscosed in Note 46
The efective imleres) rabe fos lease labilibes = 11%, with matunity beteesn 202 1-2026

The following are the amounts recognised In profit or koss:

{Amgunt in B, Lacs')

Expansa relating 10 bases of lew-valug aasets (induced in olher dpenses)

Variable lease payments (i any, included in other expenses)

Particulars For the year | For the yaar
ended 31 ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Depreciation expense of right-ol-use assels T5.50 50,39
Finance cost on lease liabllites 16.69 10.68
Expense relaling to shon-term leases (incheded in other expenses) 18.88 11.89

The Company had total cash outfiows for leases of Rs 83.34 Lacs in FY 2022.23 (Rs 78,42 Lacs in FY 2021-22).

Sagmant information

Business segment

Operating segmants are reported in a manner consssbent with the imernal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
{CODM). Tive CODM regutardy monitors and reviews the operating resull of the whole Company as one segmant of “Financing™. Thus, as
defined in (nd AS 108 "Operating Segmants”, the Company's entire busingss falls under this one oparational sagment,

Entity wide disclosures

ho revenus from ransactions with a singhe exemal cusiomer or counterpanty amounted 10 10% or more of the Company's totad revenus in

year ended 31 March 2023 and 21 March 2022,

The Company operalas in single goography |.&. India and therafore, geographical informatan is not reguired 1o be disclosed separately.
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42  Contingent llabilities and commilmants

I, Contingent Liabilities: Rs. 114,86 Laca® (as o March 31, 2022 Rs. 113.80 Lacs)

Il. Capital Commitmends : Rz, 3.80 Lacs (as at March 31, 2022 Rs Rs 7.56 Lacs)

HI. Undraan Commitment ghsen to Borrowars: RS 1599209 Lacs (as at March 31, 2022 Rs.14.132.88 Lacs)

IV, Bank guarantes ssued by Banks favoning the NHEB for refinance facilises: Rs, 2,175 Lacs (as al March 31, 2022 Rs. 2,672 61 Lacs)

* Includes dispuled incame tax demand against which the Company has preferred an appeal before Commisssoner of income Tax (Appeais)
of Rs 113,80 Lacs (a% at March 31, 2022 Rs. 113,80 Lacs)

41  Principal Busineas Crileria
Principal business criteria RBI vide its circular Number REI2020-2 180/ D0R/NBFC (HFC) CC Mo 118/03.10.13672020-21 dated October
22, 2020 has defined Princpal Business Criteria for HFCs. Detads of principal business criteia as on March 31. 2023 is as follows,

Particulars As at 31 March | As at 31 March|
2023 2022
[% of tota! asset owards housing finance T6.65% 82 05%
% of lotal assat towards housing finance for inchviduals Fa.01% B0 40%
Taotal

44  Following disclosures as required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprses Development Act 2006 has been made o
the euten] infarmation svailable with the Company :
{Amound n Rs. Lacs’)
Particulars As at As at
3 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
(i} Principal amount remaining wunpaid o any suppber a5 at the end - -
af the accounting year

{il] inderest dus theraon remaining unpaid o any supplier as at tha B -
&nd of the Bccouniing year

[ii] Tha amoent of interest paid by the buyer in Werms of section 16 - -
of the Mizro, Small and Medium Enierprise Development Act, 2008,
alang with the amount of the payment made 1o the supplier beyond
the appoanied day dufing each acciunting year.

{iv} The amaunt af inferest due and payable for ihe period of delay 5 3
in making payment [(which have been paid bul beyond ihe
appointed day during the year) bul withaul adding the h"IlH'Er!ll
specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006,

{v] The amount of nerest acciued and remaining unpaid & the end - -
of gach acoounting year. and

{vi] The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even - -
|n the succesding years, wilil sech date when the interest dues as
above are aclually pasd to the small enlerprise for the purpose of
desallowance as a deductible expendilure under Section 23 of the
[Micro, Small and Medium Enterpeise Development Act, 2006
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45 Corporate social responsibility (C5R) expanditurs
As per Section 135 of the Companies Acl, 2013, a CSR commitiee has bean formed by the Company. The aneas for CE3R
activities are eracicating hunger, powerty and malnutnion, promobng preventive health care and sanilation and making
availaple safe drinking water, promoting education, promoting gender eguality, empowering wimen and ensunng emaronmental
sustamabidy
451  Amount apent during the year on:
{Amount in Rs, Lacs')
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Amount spent Amount Amount spent Amicuint Total
unpaid! Total unpaid/
provision provision
Corstrection - - - . .
facquisition of any assel
On purpose ol than 743 10 1743 1314 3.00 16.13
above
452  In case of Section 135{5) unspant amount:
{Amoumn! in RS, Lacs’)
Opening Balance Amount Amount Amount spent Closing
deposited in requined during the Balance
Specilied to be spent year
Fund of Sch. | during the
Wil within & year
months
12 21 |Mot Applicabia 17.43 12.18 17.45
45.3 In case of Section 135{%) sxcess amount spent
Opening Balance Amount Amount spant Closing
requined durring the Balance
to be spant yoar
during the
year
Mol Applicable
454  In case of Section 135(6) details of ongoing projects
{Armpaan in Rs, ‘Lacs’)
Armount
Am i L
Opening Balance required to be S S Closing Balance
during the year
apent during
With In Separate the year From In Separate With In Separate
Company CSR unapent Company's | CSRunspent | Company | CSR unspent
Account Bank Account|  Acsouni Account
2885 9.2 17.43 T.43 4,75 10.00 746
Mot Bs 10.00 lacs avaiable with the Company as of 31 March 2023 has bean ransferred 1o he unspend CSR account on 26
Apnl 2023
{Amount in Rs. Lacs')
B sckad i Yearended | Year andod
ature of Expense on Corporate social responsibility | 3y varen 2023| 31 Mareh 2022
Housing Urban Poor 743 7.00
Maszk Distribution - s
Promating préventivg health care and san - .14
T.43 13.14
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46 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

Assets As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Within After Total Within After Total
1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1738912 - 17.399.12 7.849.55 - 7.849.55
Bank balances cther than cash and 525133 - 5.251.32 146509 4.580.24 6.045.33
cash aquivalants
Loans 1202276 13854135 15146411 | 1064576 10178311 11242887
Oither inancial assels 184.78 2915 21303 141.56 25.02 166.58
Meon financial assets
Current tax assels (net) - - - 11.26 11.26
Defered tax assets (netl) 58842 5ap 42 - 37525 IT5.25
Investment properly - 2.51 251 - 2.51 2.51
Property. plant and equipment - 111.67 11167 . 86,33 BG6.33
Intangible assels under development 10.18 10.18 2.83 283
Right of use assat - 285.87 265.87 - 117.51 117.51
Ohther intangible assets 1.61 1.B1 - - -
Oiher non financial assels 133.66 - 133.66 125.25 - 125.25
Total assets 3589165 13955076 17544241 | 20,227.21 106,984.068 127.211.27
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade pavables

- Tolal outstanding duss of micro
anterprises and smail
enterprises

- Total outstanding dues of credilors 3352 - 3352 2893 - 278.83
other than micro enlerprises and
small entarprises
Other payables 143.28 . 143.29 82.74 - a2.74
Debt securities 5,000.00 5. 784.36  10,784.36 99529  10,759.10  11,754.38
Borrowings 3412072 9726923 13139895 | 2225222 TOB6240 9291462
Subordinated Liabilities - 3 000,00 3,000.00 . 2. 000,00 2,000.00
Other inancial liabilities 449.50 173.44 622.94 434.05 B9.51 503.56
Mon financial liabilities
Provisions 24.08 226.31 250.39 13.63 164 .44 178.07
Other nan financial liabilites 1689.684 - 189.84 1MzmM 112.71
Total liabilities 1996995 106453.34 146,423.29| 23,930.57 8365545 107.586.02
Met Equity (4,078.30) 33097.42 29,0192 | (3.703.36) 23,328.61 19,625.25

=

..,?r"'

e
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47

Comparision bestween IRACP and impairment allowamnce made under IND AS 109 as at 31 March 2023
tAmound is in Rs. ‘Lacs’y
Assol Classification as par Aszat Gross Loss MWet Carrying | Provisions | Diference
RBI Norms classification Carrying Allowances Amiciunt required as | between Ind
as Amount as | (Provisions) per IRACP AS 109
per Ind AS 109 | parind AS | as required norms” provisions
under ind AS and IRACPE
109 norms
Parforming assets
Stage 1 14596505 i v e 145,732.73 51493 (2B2.61)
Stage 2 3,448 41 152 57 5. 296 .84 33.23 119,34
| Sublotal 149,414,468 384,89 149,029.57 548.16 {163.27)
Mon performing assets
Subslandard Stage 3 1.863.75 408,72 1,457.03 268.64 138.08
Doubtful - upio 1 year |Stage 3 B350 150.82 484.18 166.53 (15.71}
110 3 years Stage 3 556.04 132.40 424 54 22566 {93.26)
More than 3 years Staga 3 90,09 21.42 G667 8083 [B8.51}
Subtotal of doubtiul 3,145.73 T11.36 243443 T51.76 (40.40)
Loss Stage 3 - - - - =
Subtotal of NPA . - 751.76 {40.40)
Total Stage 1 145,965 05 232,32 145, 732.73 51493 {$82 81}
Stage 2 3,448 41 152.57 329684 33.23 118.34
IS_laie 3 3,145.79 711.36 2,434 .43 T561.76 1440.40)
Tetal 152, 560.25 1,096.25 151,464.00 1.299.92 {203.67T)
* Including addivon provision as per REBI guidiine
Comparision between IRACP and impairment allowance made under IND AS 109 as on 31 March 2022
{Amount is in Rs. ‘Lacs’)
Asset Classification as par Assal Gross Loss Met Carrying | Provisions | Difference
RBI Norms classification Carrylng Allgwances Amourd raequired as | between Ind
as Amount as | (Provisions) per IRACP AS 109
per ind A5 108 | perind AS | as required nonms” provislons
under Ind AS and IRACP
109 NS
Parforming assets
Stage 1 107,810.74 10636 107, 704,38 T54.05 {64769
Siage 2 3.373.03 20:3.10 3,189.93 03.94 109,16
Subbotal 111,183.77 30946 110,874.31 BAT.O0 (538.53
Non performing assets
Substandard |Simge 3 97r.34 186.06 B11.32 150,10 15.96
Doubtiuil - upto 1 year Stage 3 505.06 85.85 41921 131.01 (45,16}
110 3 years Stage 3 34458 58.58 28600 142,609 (84.11)
Mare than 3 years Stage 3 45.82 .78 38.03 46.33 (38.44)
Subtotal of doubiful 1,872.84 318.28 1,554.56 470.03 [151.?5]_|
Loss Siage 3 - . B =
Subtotal of NPA - - 470.03 {151.75)]
Total Stage 1 107.810.74 10836 107, FO4 38 754,05 (B47.68)
Slage 2 337303 20310 316903 B35 10816
Ime 3 1,872.84 31828 1,554 56 470.03 {16178}
Tetal 113,056.61 627.74 112.428.87 1.318.02 [690.28)|

* Including addition provision as par RB| guidling

%
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Moles to the financial statements for the vear endad 31 March 2023

48.1

48.3

Significant management judgemant in applying accounting polickes and estimation uncertainty

The peparation of the Company's financial statements requeres management 10 make judgemants, estmates and assumpbons
that affect the reporied amounts of revenues, Bxpenses, assets and Rabilities, and the related daclosures, Actual results may
differ from these eslimales,

The Management believes thal these estimates are predent and reasonable and are based upon the Managemenls best
knowledge of current events and actions. Actual cesults could difer from these estimates and differences between actual resulls
and estimates are recognised in the peviods in which the resulls are known,

Ths nofe provides an overview of the areas thal involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of tems which are
mor likedy 10 be materially adusted due o esimates and assumplions turning oul to be different than those onginally assessed

Recognition of deferred tax assels

The exient i which deferred tax assels can be recognised = based on an assessment of ihe probability of the future laxable
income againsl which the deferred tax assets can be ublsed.

Business model assessmeant

The Company cetermines the business model al a fevel thal refiects how groups of financial assels are managed togethes 1o
achieve 8 particular business objective. Based on this assessment of tutrgnt condiions and future buginess plans of the
Company, the managament has medsured it ingncial 358813 81 emonised cost &s the assel is heid within a business model
whose obiective s 10 collect contractual cash flows, and thi contractual terms of the Ainancial asset give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interesy (the "SPPI critenon’). This assessment includes jucgement reflecting all relevant
evidence including now the parformance of the assels is evaluated and ther performance measured, the risks thal affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assels are compensated. The Company
moniors fingncil assels measured at amortised cost or fasr vabue through other comgrehensive income thal are derecognised
prior 1o thedr maturity o understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the obpective of the
business for which the asset was hetd. Monitoring is pan of the Company's conbinuous assessment of whether the business
model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues o be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has
been a change in business model and 50 a prospective change to the classification of those assets,

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assels
The evaluation of applicabdity of indscators of mpairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors
which could resull in delenorabon of recoverable amount of the assets

Expected credit loss ("ECL")

The measuremenl of expecbed credit loss allowance for inancial assels measuned al amortised ObS! requires use of COMmpex
models and sigraficant assumptions aboul hiture economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g. likelihood of customers defaulling
and resulting losses). The Company makes significant judgements with régard to the foliowing while assessing expected credil
loss;

Desermining criteria for significant increase in credit rsk;

Establighing the: number and redalive weightings of forward-iooking scenarios for each type of product/market and I associaled
ECL, and

Establishing greups of similar fnancial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL
Devalopment of ECL madel, including the vanows formulae and the choice of mpuls
It has been the Company's policy to regularly review its model in the context of actual loss expenence and afus! when necessary

Provisions

At each balance sheel dale basis the management judgment, changes in factks and legal aspects, the Company assesses the
requirement of provisions against the outstanding contngen! liabiites, However, the actual future outcoma may be different from

this judgement.
Contingencies:

Management has estimated the possibie outhiow of resources at the end of each annual reporting financial year, if any, in respect
of contingencies/claimfiigations against the Company as it is nol possible o predict the oulcome of pending matters with
BCCUMACY.

Significant estimates

Usaful ves of depreciablelamortisable assets 2
Managemant reviews iis estimate of the useful lves of ble agsets al each reporting date,
expecied wiility of the assets. Uncerlainties in these ast and econamic obsolescence thy
the utility of assels,




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

484

487

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Managemants estimate of the DBO s based on a number of underlying assumptions such as slandand rates of inflation,
mortality, descount rate and anbicipation of fulure salary Increases. Variation in these assumptons may sgnificantly impact the
DBEO amount and the annual defined benalil expanses, The assumpbons used are disclosed in Mote 40,

Fair value measuremenis

Management applies valuahon techniques 1o determing the fair value of fnancial instruments (wivere active market quotes ane not
available), This imiolves developing estimates and assumplions consistent with how market particpants would price the
mstrument. For furiher details about determination of fair value please see Mote 37

Determining the lzase term of contracts with renewal and termination options = Company as lessao

The Company cetermines the lease term as he non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option 1o extend the lease f 8 5 reasonably cirtasn 1o be exercised, of any poriods cowered by an opdion [0 terminabe the lease, if
it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several leasa contracts that inchede extension and termination options. The Company applies judgemand in
evaluating whether it i reasonably cenain whether or nol o exercise ihe oplion to renew or terminate ihe lease That is, i
considers all relevant factors thal creabe an econaomic incentive Tor il o exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement dabe, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is 3 signficant evenl or change in circumstances that
within its control and affects ils abidity to exercise of nol [0 exercise the option io renew or o lerminate (&g, consiruction of
significant leasehold improvements or sigmilicant cusiomisation to the keased asset),

When it i5 reasonably cenan 10 axercise exbenssin ophon and Aol 1o axercess lerminabin opbon, the Company mdludes such
exlendad term and ignore terminaton oplion in determinatsan of leass term.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily defermine the interest rate imphcit in the lease, therelore, it uses its incremental bommowing rate
(IBR} to measure lease abiities. The Company has taken indicabive rates from ds bankers and wsed them for Ind AS 116
calculation purposes.

Estimation of uncertainty relating to COVID-19 global health pandemic

In assessing the recovarability of kans, the Company has considandd intennal and cxliernal sources of infermation, inchudng
credit repants, economic forecasts and moustry repons, The Company has performed sensdivily analysis on the assumplions
vsed and based on current indicators of fulure economic conditions, the carying amount of these assets represent he
covmipany s st estimats of the recoverable amounts. AS 8 result of the uncenainties resuiting from COVID-19, the impact of this
pandemic may be different from those esimated as on the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company will
continue b monitor any changes ko the future economic conditions.




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Motes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Disclosure pursusant 1o Reserve Bank of India Cireular DOR.FINHFC.CC No 12000310 1362020-21 dated December, 3021
pertaining to Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies- Housing Finance Companies as
on 31 March 2023

i} Funding Concentration based on significant countenparty (both doposits and bormowings)

&r HNumber of Amount % oof Total | % of Total
No. Significant (Rs. crore) deposits Liabilithes
_Copunterparties
i Fil 1,399.02 - 95 6%

"Mote - Tolal Liabdtes has been compuled as Total Liabilies less Equily share capilal less Othar Equity

i) Top 20 large deposits (amount in Re. crone and % of 1otal deposits)

Sr Mo Number OF Counter Party Amount In Cr | % of total
deposits
Fil
i) Top 10 borrowings [amount in Ra. erore and % of total boorowings)
S5f MO Numiber OFf Counter Party Amount In Cr | % of total
Borrowing |
1 10 818 41 56 38% |
iw) Funding Concentration based on significant instrumaent/product
S No. Nama of the Amount | % of Total
instrument/product [RE. erona) Linbitities
1 Hon Comvenliblo Dobeniung 137 BE 9 42%
1 |Bank Loans 1.261.14] B8 15%
(%) Stock Ratios:
Pariiculars ]
(a} Commerciad papers a5 3 % of total public funds 0,00 %:
b} Commerciad papers a5 a % of tolal abdites 1000
(c) Commercial papers a5 & % of olal assels 000"
b} Nan-convertble debentures (original malunty of less than ono year) as a % of iotal public furds 0.00%
£} Mon-canvertible debeniures inal matusily of beas (han one year) 82 8 % of oted kabilites 000
[d} Mon-convertible debentures (original matunty of less than one year) as 3 % ol 1otal assets 0.00%
(c} Other shori-term liabditips, if any a5 a % of 1oial public funds 0041
(g} CHher shar-benm habdites, i Aty &6 & Y of ioial liabilites. 26 T2%
(g} Oihar shar-term kabdites, if any a5 3 % of iolal assals 22.30%

{wi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk managemant
The Companys Board of Direclors has the overall responsibilty for the establishment and oversighi of the nsk mansgement
frameaom. The Board of Direclors has established the Asset and Lisbility Management Commities [ALCO). which is responsible Tor
developing and monitonng sk managemeni palicies. Tha Compary's risk management policies are established to wdentify and
analyse tha risks faced by the Company, 10 58l approprials risk limits and controls, and 1o momntar nsks and adharence 1o bmas. The
risk management policies and sysiems are reviewed regulady io rellect changes in masoet condions and 1he Company's activities

")
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Swvatanira Micro Mousing Finance Comparstion Limited
Mobes 1o the Bnancial stalements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Disclosure of detats as required by Nolification Mo, RBV2022-2326 DOR ACC REC Mo U104 0182022-2 3 Disclosures in Financial
Statements- Nodes b0 Accounts of NBFCs dated April 19, 2032

Secionl exposune
Fartioutans — it Tl - o rale:
Total Grose NP | Percentag Total Grods NPAs | Percentage
Exposure ael Eaposuns L
[nchates on Gross | [nchades an Gross NPAs
Balance HPAS o balance (L]
shast and aff Total hast an fofal
Balancs sipgsure | affbalance #xperkane in
sheet in sheet that sechor
eaposure) that sector] sxpesure)

TS5 T3 T T - -
250043

ZRBELT TETS| 11863287 187244 1EH|

12810 ! 8.932.25 5567 hﬂ".f.l

T ] - T 00|

Ky Folatre of|  Oibers Taital Maximam
Mariagernal KNP SRl g
Vanhures Pemonnal ﬂmh
L] year
Pacemant of deposds . . . . . . " .
Badn i . - - " 5 5 F 2
Purchass of fued | osher assets . . = . ' " . .
Sals of fised ! other aciats . . = . - i r =
Partezuilars Heading Subasdiary | Asdociate | Ry Ralative of|  Others Tatal Mazimum
Company oant Managerial (L1 outstanding
Ventures | Parsonnsl during the
4.1 yEar
= - 2,000.00 B = = 2.000.00 :
: 5 2.000.00 B r 5 2.000 00 &
Disclosure of complaints.
1. Summary miarmation on complairts nscesed By the NEFCa from cusiomers @nd Ingem the Offices of Ombudsman
As at 31 As at 31
Mareh 302 | Mareh JF2
mw_mmacm
'rlﬂurrhuru-ln: 1 pnating at beg nl'lhu o ar i} o
et 3 CCeTiHasn i e hetd durng the ye |
3- Hmnﬂ: Pl 2Bl m“ﬂl‘
Of whick numb-lrrn! setnirsis. regached fry e BT a
4] Myt of complanis panding ol the snd of The e a o)
Maimamabis comp received by 1he NBFC from Ofice of Ombudsman
! ! Qffica ol Drdsdsma Ha N-'-
CHf 5, numbes of comp umﬂnmﬁmw By Officerad Ortudsman e, MA
O &, numissr of complainis resoked Frough MoonC RSN Moo i by Dfice of Dmbudsman f,ﬂjﬁnﬁ_m_m
: s g diman js the MEFC i

—
i A




2 Top I grounds of complaints received by the NBFCA s custaman

|Grownds of complainis, [Le. complaints melating to) Mismnbed of |NumBar of| % increasel | Number of |Of 5, sumber
complaints | complaind | decrease in | complaints of
ponding 8l | & mdaived the pending at | complainis
the |duringthe| numberof | theend of | pending
Begannang year eomplainis | the year beyond 30
of recarad days
ke yoar avar
e preseoss
i
1 F] 3 [l 5 [
Rabe of nbs st - E] e
CLSS Sutriiy me| - & 0%
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Swatantrs Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Disclosure of details as required by Motification No. RBU2020-21/1100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC Mo 120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated
February 17,2021 under Master Direction-Hon-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Resarve Bank) Directions,

2021.

Capital to risk assels ratio ('CRAR')

The foliowing table sets forh, for the periods indicated, the detaits of capital to nsk assefs ratio under NHBE Guidelinas:

Particulars As at 31 As at 31
March 2023  March 2022
1 CRAR (%) 30 58% 15 B6%
iy CRAR - Tier | Capital {%) 3,97% F2.01%
i) CRAR - Tar Il Capital (%) 3.55% 3.65%
iv) dmount of subordinaled debl rased as Tier - 1| capital 260000 2,000 00

v} Amound raised by issue of Perpetual Debl Instrumanis =

Reserve fund under section 25C of NHB Act, 1587

| Aol in B, ‘Lacs’)

Particulars As at N

Balance al the beginning of the year

As at 31

March 2023  March 2022

a) Statory resende ws 29C of NHB Act, 1887 4588 46,58
b) Amount of special reserve wis 38 1) (vie) of Incoma Tax Act 1861 taken inko account 1,540,408 128132
fof this pufpases of Statitory Reserse under Section 28C of the NHEB Act 1887
1,587 38 1,328.20

Addition) Appropriation’ Withdrawal during the year
Add:
a) Amount transfered w's 29C of HHB Act, 1987 - -
b) Amount of special reserse uls 38(1) {vilil) of Income Tax Act. 1961 taken into account 57473 25817
for the purposes of Siatutory resenve under Secton 29C of the NHBE Act, 1887
Less:
a) Amount appropriated from Statulory reserve ws 20C of the NHB Act, 1987 -
b) Amount withdrawn from the spacial reserve w's 36(1) (vii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 -
which has been taken inlc account for the purposes of provision wis 29C of the NHB Act,
T1as7
Balanca at the end of the yaear
a) Statulory Reserve u's 20C of NHB Act, 1987 46,83 46.88
b} Amount of special reserve wis 36(1) (will) of Incomea Tax Act, 1961 laken Nk aScount 24115482 1.540.48
for the purposes of Statulony resensa under Saction 20C of the NHB Act, 1587
) Total 2,162.11 1,587.38
Investments
Particulars As at 31 As at 31

March 2023 March 2022
Value of investments
i} Gross value of vestmanis
{a) tn brdin = =
() Outsicle India = *
i) Prowisicn for depraciation
{a) In india . .
(b} Cutside India = =
i} Mt value of invesiments
ta) b indiis -
ib) Outside India
Movement of provision held towards depreciation on investmants
i} Opening balance 7 . .
i) Aid: Provision made during the prao oy & .
fii) Less: write off | writlen back of prowi i year -
[ balance o = -

N




Svatantra Micra Heuding Finance Conporation Limited
Motes to lhe financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Disclosure of details as required by MNotification No. RBU2020-29M100 DOR.FINHFC.CC.No 12000310 136/2020-21 dated

Fobruary 17,2021 under Master Direction.Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2021.

54 Derivatives
54.1 Forward rate agreement ([FRA] | Interest rale swap (IR5)

Tha Comgany has not entered into any ransacton in lorward rate agreements and inlerest rate swaps during the year ended an 31
March 2023 and 31 Manch 222,

54.2 Exchange traded interast rate (IR) derivative
The Company has nof enered intg amy Iransacton inexchange traded interest rate dervainves duning year ended on 37 Mar 2023 and
31 Mar 2022.

54.3 Securitisation
The Company has not enbered into any Securitizaton durng year ended on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

g5 Unsecured advances

Thiprd are fd unsetured advances aglinst intangible securlies such as rights, koenses, authonty as collateral seCcurily durng e year
endad on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

58  Disclosures on Rizk Exposure in Derivatives
The Company has not entered into any derivalive transaction during the year

57  Disclosure of penalties imposed by NHB/RBI and other regulators
Diuring the year ended on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Comparny has not pald any penalty for non-complance of any
provision of the Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Direclions, 2010

58 Raling assigned by credit rating agency and migration of rating

As at 31 March 2023

{1} Date of Rating 08-Jun-22 20-Jun-22 22-Mar-23

{4) Name of Rating Agency CRISIL Ratings Limied CARE Ratings Limiled CARE Ratings Limaed

(i) Ratng of Products
{a) Long term Bank faciities CRISIL A+/Stable CARE AA- CARE AA-/Slable
[b) Debentures CRISIL As/Slabie CARE AA- CARE AA-/Stable
(c) Shart term debt CARE Al+

As at 31 March 2022

[} Date of Raiing A0-Ape-21 Z0-Sep-21 03-Jan-22
1) Name of Ratng Agency CRISIL Ratings Limited CRISIL Ratings Limited CRISIL Ratings Limited
i) Rating of Producls
{8) Long term Bank faciibes CRISIL A+/Stable CARE A+/Stable CARE A*/Stable
{b) Debentures CRISIL A+/Stable CARE A+Siable CARE As/Suable

I} Shart term debt CRISIL A1+ ~ CRISIL A1+ (Withdrawn)




Swatanira Micro Housing Finance Corparation Limited
Motes 1o the fimancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Disclosure of details as reguired by Notification No. RBU0G20-Z1100 DOR.FINHFC.CC No 120003.10.136/2020-21 dated
February 17,2021 under Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2021.

Provisions and contingencies
{Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs')

Break up of ‘Provigions and Contingencies’ shown in the Statement As ot X As at 31
af Profit and Loss Mareh 2023 March 2022
Impairmant on financial Asset

Provision for Standard Assel - Stage | 125.96 {157.49)
Provision for Standard Asset - Stage Il {50.53) 68.34
Provision for non-performing assel (Stage- 52483 128.81
1y

Pecrvision on Lodan commibmen a7

Tax expanse:

- Current ax 664.20 319.04
« Deferred tax (213.17) (108,34)

-Earlier year tax adjustemeant - -

Employes banafit
Garatuaty expenge G036 4383
Laave ancashment 22.08 20.47

Break up of loan and advances and provisions thereon
{Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs’)

Particulars Housging Loan Mon Housing Loan
As at 31 As at 31 As al 31 As at 31
March 2023  March 2022 March 2023  March 2022
Standard assets
a) Total gutslanding amganl 131,884 90 102.751.35 17.429.57 £,399.14
bl Provisions made 4737 84,23 3r.52 1525
Sub - Standard assets . - - -
a) Total cutstanding amount 1.711.18 |73 152.58 35.85
b} Provisions mada aToar 180.05 35.85 6.02
Doubittul agsets - Category-| . . . -
a) Total autstanding amourn 60575 454.08 28.26 10.98
b) Provisions made 143.89 83.08 6093 1.86
Doubtful assets = Category-ll - . . -
a) Total cutstanding amoun 542 54 33873 14.41 T.85
b) Provisions made 12897 57.25 342 133
Doubtiul assets = Category-Ill .’ = = -
a) Totad cutstanding amaount 8824 4463 1.85 118
b Provigions made 2094 7.57 0.44 0.20
Loss assets r .
a) Total outsianding amouni - P : i
by Prowisions madea - = - -
Tatal
a) Total oulsianding amount 13493260 104,568.52 1762767 8,454 80
b) Provisions made 1,012.08 603.08 84.18 24,66
Contingent labilities
[Amount in Rs. ‘Lacs')
Particulars As at 31 As at 31
March 2023 March 2022

Contingent Liabilites® 114 .86 113.80
Capital Commitmarnts 360 7.56
Undrawn Commitment given to Borrowers. 15992.09 14,132.88
Bank guafantes issued by Bank Limited §ng 5 2,175.00 297261

18,285.55 17,236.85
Income Tax {Appeals)

Total
"-El'rsp.ﬂad income tax demand against




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Maotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Disclosure of details as required by MNotification No. RBU20Z20-21100 DOR.FINHFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated
February 17,2021 under Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company = Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2021.

&0 Draw down reserves
The Company has nol made any diaw down from réserves during year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

&1 Concentration of public deposits, advances, exposures and NPA's

61.1 Concentration of Public Depasits [ for public Deposit taking/holding HFCs)

The Company doas not accept any public deposis and hance 1he Ssame 5 ol applicabie

§1.2 Concentration of loans and advances
[Ampunt in R, Lacs')
Particulars. As at 31 As af 31
March 2023  March 2022

Total lpans and advances to twenty largaest Bofowers J186.57 2,545 34
Percantage of Loans and Advances to twanty largest borrowers to tolal advances of the HFC 2.08% 235%

61.3 Concentration of all exposures | including off - balance sheet exposure)
{Amoant in Rs. ‘Lacs’)

Particulars As at 31 As at 31
March 2023 March 2022

Tatal exposune o bwanty langest bommowers | cushomans 3.064. 311 £.785.94
Percentage of exposures o taenty largest borrowers | customars o 1okal exposure of the HFC on 2.14% 2,41

§1.4 Concentration of Non performing assets (NPA)
{Amaunt in Rs. ‘Lacs’)
Particulars As At 3 As at 31
March 2023 March 2022

Total exposure ko bop fen NPA accounts” 46953 165.28

* Thie exposune is dischosad at customer leveal.

B1.5 Sectommise Non performing assets(NPAs)
(Amount in Re. "Lacs’)

Sectorwise percentage of NPAS to total advances in that sector As a3 As at 3
March 2023 March 2022

A Housing loans : 2.16% 1.61%
1 Individuals 2.04% 1.81%
2 Busldars/Projact loans B.E4% il
3 Corporalas il il
4 Chaors il il
B Non housing loans : 1.13% 0.05%
1 Individuals 1.13% 0.05%
2 Buildars/Project loans il Hil
3 Corporates il Hil
4 Hhars Hil Bl
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Svatlantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Motes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Disclesure of details as required by Motification No. RBUZ020-21M00 DOR.FINHFC CC. Mo 120003.10.136/2020-21 dated
February 17,2021 under Masier Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,

2021,

Movamant of Mon performing asse1s{NPAs)

{Amount in Bs. 'Lacs')

Az at Asat 1

March 2023  March 2022
{11 Mel MPAS 1o net advances | %) 1.671% 1.38%
{1y Movement of NPAs | Gross)
a) Opening balance 1.672.84 1.442 69
b} Additons during the year [ met) 2.048.01 1.014 85
) Reductons durkmg the yaar | TT6.06) (584 500
d} Cleging balance 3,145,779 187284
(1) Bovement of Net NPAs
a) Opening balance 1.554.58 123162
b} Additions during the year (net) 1.566.26 83a.90
ch Risfduchions during thd yieas (E85.39) (S07.96)
d} Closing batance 243443 1,554 56
{IW} Movemant of provisions for NPAs | excluding provisions on standard assefs)
#) Opening balance 318.28 218.07
b Provision made during tha year (re) 482.75 17575
b Reductions during the year (8967} [TE.54)
d} Clersing balance 711,36 318.28
Owverseas Assets & Off-balance Sheet special purpose vehicle (SPVs] sponsoned
The Comgany does nol oW ANy OVersess assats a4 at year ended 371 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
There are no of-batance sheet SPYs sponsored as a1 year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
Disclosure of complaints

As at 31 A=z at 31
March 2023 March 2022

a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year
b} Mo, of complaints receied during the yer

¢ Mo, of complainis redressed during the year

d} Mo, of complaints pending at the end of

Assat liability managemant (Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities)

{Amaurd in Re. ‘Lacs’)

As at 31 March 2023

Borrowings Loans and  Investmants

from banks, Advances
finamcial
institutions
and non-
convertible
debentures
1 day o T days 219.28 1.171.38 -
& cay o 14 days 178.05 - -
15 days to 30V31 days 5.300.97 87.70 -
Crver 1 month and uplo 2 months 255118 1.211.26 -
Ower 2 months and upta 3 months J.167.28 1.486.03 -
Crier 3 months and upts 6 months B.336.67 2. 976.49 -
Ower & monihs and uplo 1 year 18.375.29 5.979.52 -
Ower 1 year and upio 3 years Gd 358 84 2302463 -
Ower 3 yaars and upto 5 years 3.18014  23302.04 -
Ower § years 10514617 9221468 -
Total 14518331 151,484.11 -

Above disclosure s given as per BB Mashkst




Swatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Motes to the financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Disclosure of detalls as required by Notification No. RBIZ2020-21/100 DORFIN.HFC.CC.Ne.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated
February 17,2021 under Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company [Reserve Bank) Directions,

85.1

2021.
{Amount in 5. Lacs’)
A= al 31 March 2022
Borrowings Loans and  Investmants
from banks, Advances
financial
institutions
and nons

converible

debantures
T day 10 7 days 200.74 G50 B2
8 day io 14 days 5164 -
15 days to 30431 days 136647 160.41
Owvar 1 month and upio 2 months BE23.41 1.068.35
Owver 2 manths and upbo 3 months 2.205.01 1.038.29
Owar 3 months and upto & manths 589323 2.8268.01
Owar B months and upta 1 year 12,686.66 465031
Orver 1 year and uplo 3 years 54, 002,55 19.560.94
Owar 3 years and uplo 5 years 22.598.50 18.782.39
Crvar 5 yaars 662045 6380809
Total 10666301 11305661

Abave disclosure 5 given as per NHB Mastar Circular

Classification of assets and liabilities under different maturity buckets is based on the same estimates and assumplions as used by the

Company for compdng the return submitied o NHB,
Exposure

Exposure to Real Estate Sector

pAmount in Bs. Lacs')

[Category

Az at 1

Direct Exposure

March 2023 | March 2022

As at 31

Residential Mortgages

Lending fully secured by morgages on residential property that is or will be oocupled by
e bornower thal & rented,

132.006.35

102 478.08{

Commercial Real Estate *

Lending secured by morigages on commercial real estales (office buddings. retad space,
maudlipurpose commercial premises, mubii-tamily residential buidings, mult-lenanied
commercial premisas, indusirial of warehouss Space holels, land  acquesiton,
developrment and constrection, eic ). Exposure would also incdude nondfund based (NFE)
limels:;

282633

200,43

Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS] and other securitised exposures

) Residantal

b) Commercial Raal Eslata

Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund based axposures on MNationg Housing Bank (NHB) and
Housing Finance Compamses (HFCs)

65.2

*Builder loans givan for residental projact
Exposurs to Capital Market
The Company doas not have any

Exposurs to group companies
Bl
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Conporation Limited

Hotes 1o tha financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Disclosure of details as required by Motification No. RBUZ0Z0-21M00 DORFINHFC.CC No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated
February 17,2021 under Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,

2021.

Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification RBIZ021-23/31 DORLSTR.REC.11/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 5 May
2021 read with Neotification no. RBUZ020-21/16 DOR No BP.BCI3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated 6 August 2020.

Type of borrowar Exposure to Of (A). Of (&) Of [(A) Exposure 1o
accounts aggrogate amount amount pald | accounts
classified as delbt that writben off by the clagsified as
Standard slipped inte | during the | borrowers Srandard
consequent | NPA during half year during the | consaguent
Lo thie halfl year Pl i aar 1o
implementati Implementati
on of on of
resolution resclution
pl'ﬂ - p]m_
Position &g at Pasition as
the end of the at the half
previous half and of this
year 31 March| year®
2022 (4)
|Persanal Loans" 553317 B42.07 . 43349 4.482.73
Corporale persons = = =
IEH which MSMEs - - 5
[Othars® - - =
Total 553317 84207 - a3348] 448273
As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insclvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
*Personal inans ncludes housing loans & non housing loans
Type of borrowar Exposurne 1o of (&), of (a) Of (A) Exposure to
ACCOUNLS aggregate amount | amount paid | accounts
classified as | debt that written off by tha classified as
Standard slipped into | during the | borrowers Standard
consaquent | NPA during half yoear during the | conseguent
to the hall year haif year to
implamantati implementati
an of on of
resolution resclution
plan = F!.] -
Position as at Position as
the end of the at the end of
previous half this year
year 30
September
2022 (A)
|Personal Laans® 448273 18427 - 267.58 4,136.98
COrporati parsons = - =
O which MSMEs - - :
Oithiers - - 5 _
Total 448273 194 27 =

As defined in Section 3(T) of the Insoévency a
*Personal lnans ncludas housing koans &

Code, 2016
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Motes to the financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Disclosure of detalls as required by Notification Mo, RBU2020-21/100 DOR.FINHFC.CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated
February 17,2021 undar Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Resorve Bank) Directions,
2021.

Disclosure in terms of in accordance with Master Direction — Mon-Banking Financial Company = Housing Finance Company
[Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 dated February 17, 2021 Issved by the Resarve Bank of India read with RBI Circular No.
REVDNBSIZ016-17/49 Master Direction DNBS. PPD.01/66,.15.001/2016-17 on Monitoring of frauds in NBFCs

Thers wers 1 cases [Previous Year Nil cases) of frawds reported duning the year where amount invofved was 6 38 Lacs (Previous Year
NI’ Lacs) as on the date of identificaton of fraud, The antine amaount of Rs 6,28 Lacs was réceived during the year

Details of loans transferred | acquired during the quarter ended March 31, 2023 under the RBI Master Direction on Transfer of
Loan Exposures dated Seplember 24, 2021 are given below:

{1} The Company has not transferred any non-performing assets (NPAS)

(i} The Company has not ransferred army Special Mention Account (3MA} and boan not in default.

(i} The Compamy has not scquired koans nod in default through assignmant

{iv) The Company has nol acquired any siressed loan

Details of financing of parént company praducts
Mot applicable

Detalls of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit {GBL) exceeded by

the HFC
The Company has not excesded the prodential exposure limits during the financial year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The Company is registensd with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs other financial secior regulators,

Ravenue Recognition
Theisre are no Such circumstances i which revenus recogniton has been postponed pending the resalution of ssgnificant uncerainties.

Wet Profit or Loss for the period, prier period Hems and changes in accounting policies
Thera are no prior period items and changs in accounting policias axcapt as reported in the Frnancial Satements
Related party Transactions

(1) All matarial ransactions with related parties are gisclosed in “Mobte 357 of the Financial Statements.
(i) The Company has the policy on dealing with Related Party Transactons on its website and it s disclosed on s website

Group Structure
The Company is wholly owmned subsidiary of Svatanira Haldings Prevabe Limitad

: Skttt Fote ey Brivate Ll

Sradanten Onling Seretes Prasiic Bl bt At oro e Bt [imifod

| imiice I
Common Brand 100% Holding Comman Brand
Name Name

| '
[Satanta Ticro Holding Finance | |

| Corpanitish Lintato

Remuneration of Directors
During the year, the Company has nol paid any remuneration to it's deectors.

IND AS 110 -Consalidated Financial Statements (CF5)
The Company does not have any subsidiary company and hence, the CFS i nol applicable,

Tha Parlament has approved the Code on al Secunty, 2020 ('Code’) which may impaci the contributson by the Company towards
Provident Fund and Gratuity, The effectv 'cJ-l the Code and it provisions would be applicable s yet to be notified and
the rules which would provide the detailg P "'.‘,i financial impact can be determined are yel 1o be ramed afler which the
financipl imgact can be ascenained. Th ; Hgmiplate its evakeation and will give appropriate imgact, if any, in the financial
statements followng the Code becomi el : Jated rules being framed and notified




-4

83

ar

Swatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Disclosure of details as required by Notification No. RBIFZ2020-211100 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC No 120/03.10.138/2020-21 dated
February 17,2021 under Master Direction-Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company [Reserve Bank) Directions,
2021,

Undiscloséed income
There are no ransactions which ane nol recosded in the books of aceount which have bean swrrendensd o disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessmants undaer the Incoma Tax Act, 1961

Titles deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the Company

The Company does not possess any immovable properiy (other than properties where the Company s the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly execuled in favour of the lesses) whosa tithe deeds are mot held in the name of the company during the financial
year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Dietails of crypto currency or virtual currency

The Company has nol fraded or invested in Cryplo currency o Yirteal cumency during the financial years ended March 31,2023 and
March 31, 2022,

Detalls of benami propenty hald
Mo procesdings have been infiated or panding against the Company for holding any benams property under the Banami Transactions
[ Prohibetion) Act, 1988 (45 of 1888) and nules made thereunder in the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

During the fnancial year ended March 31, 2023, other than the transactions undertaken i the nosmal course of business and in
accordance with extan] regulatony quadelings as applicalle

(i}, Mo fends (which arge material aithed individually of in the aggregale) have baen advanced or loaned o mwvested (either from
borrowed Tunds or share premium or any othar sources or kind of funds) by the Company 1o or in any other person or entity, including
foreign antdy (" Imermedianes’), with the understanding, whether recorded in wiling or sthersise, that the Inlermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identilfied in any manner whatsoever by o on behall of the Company
(*Ulbmate Beneficianies’) or provide any guaraniee. secunity or the like on behalf of the Ulbmate Beneficiaries,

{ii). Mo funds (which are malerial eithes individually of in the aggregate) have bean retaived by the Company from any person or enlity,
incheding foraign entity ("Funding Parfies”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or othenwisa, that the Company shall,
whethar, directly or indirectly, lend or invesi = olher parsons or enbities idantified in amy manner whatsoever by of on behatf of the
Funding Party {“Uibmate Beneficiames’) or provide any guarantea, sacunty or the like on behalf of the Ukimale Benaficianes

Analytical Ratios
Numerator |Denominator Asat Asat 31 |% Variance |Reason for
March 2023 | March 2022 Variance (M
above 25%)
i CRAR %] 30,438 .84 TE,932.01 3B.58% A5.66% B.13% fy
i) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 27 506 52 7883201 34.97% I2.01% 8.25% MA
=i CRAR = Tier Il Capital (%) 283232 T8,932.01 3.59% 3.65% -1, Gd% Mk
) Liguidity Coverage Ratio® 17.399.12 484838 18300 | 197.00%: F11% Py

* The Company s not required to comply with the gudelnes on Ligquidity coverage raso (LCR) in line with Masier Diection - Mon
Banking Financial Company-Hausing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Ditections. 2021 as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
Wilful defaulier

The Company has nol been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other tendar in the financlal years
ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Relatieanship with struck off companies

The Comgany has not besn underaken any lransachons with any company whose nama s struck off under secton 248 of Companies
Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Acl. 1856 In the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

All charges or satisfaction are registered with ROC within the statulory pericd for the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March
39, 202, No chargas or satisfaciions are yei o be raqestaced with ROC beyond the statulory period.

Compliance with number of layers of comps
Thie Compary dods nol have &y inves
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Disclosure of detals as required by MNotificatien Mo, RBU2020-21M00 DOR.FIMMHFC CC. Mo, 1200032.10.136/2020-21 dated
February 17,2021 under Master Direction-Mon-Banking Financial Company - Housing Company (Reserse Bank) Directions,
2021,

Capital work in progress (CWIP)

Tha Company dioes not have any CWIP during the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2032 excepl miangible whber
development | Refar note 10}

Additional disclosures purswant to the REUZ021-221M112D0R.CRE.REC.No. G60M03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22, 3021 on
Scale Based Regulation [SBR) : A Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs

Corporate Governance report containing composition and category of directors, shareholding of non-executive directors,
[ (=N

The Company is a nondisted NBFC and the Corporate Governance Disclosure is covered under the corporate governance! Director
raports in the Annual Report.

Breach ef covenanis

The Company has complied with the covenants under the terms of magor borrowing facilites throughou! the vear ended 31 March 2023
and 31 March 2022

Loana to Directors, Senior Officers and relatives of Dirgctors

As atl 31 As at 31
March 2023 March 2022
Direciors ard ther retalives = :
Endities associaled with directors and theasr - -
refatives

Serecs officers and thesf refatives - -

There has been no divergence in assat dassification and provisioning reguirements as assessed by NHB during the year ended 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Disclosure of modified opinion, if any express by Auditors, its Impact on various fimancial tems and views of managemeni
on audit gualifications:
The statulory auditors have msued wnmodified epesion for FY 2022-23 and FY 2021-22. Hence nol apphicable

Additional information where borrowings are from banks or financial institutions:

(1} The quartarly returns fed by the company with banks or financial institutons are in agreement with the books of accounts
{li} Tha Company has used the borrowings from e banks o financial institulions fof the purpose far which it was raised as 3t balancs
sheal dabe.

Prenious year's figures have been re-grouped wherever considered neacessary to conform o the current year's presentabion,
Events aftor reporting date:

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which requine adustment or disclosure as per the applicable accounting
standards rave been adusied or disckosed

Signature 1 to 92
A5 per o report of even date allached

For 5. Bhandari & Co. LLP For and on bahall of the Board of Directors of
Svatantra Micre Housing Finance Corporation Lid,

AL reoe

Anil Chirania
Diractor
DIM: 01082719

Membership No,; 401084
D 28,07 L02%

Sahll Mehia
Cheel Finangial Officer

e

Tasneem Mandsorwala
Company Secretary
Membership Mo: A3E13
Place: Mumbai

Date: 00 F- 022




Svatanira Micrg Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Annex 1N
Schadule 1o the balance Shest of HFC
[ [Rs. in Lacs)|
Panicwulans
Liabilities side rarcs Vg |Amount Overdus
(1) |Loans ard advances avaod by the HFC inchesee of inteross
BeEruid maraen but nol pakd!
{8} |Debanures : Secured 1104101 -
Ursgecured 107040 N
{other e Faling within the mebming of pubic
deposits)
ib)_|Deforred Crodas - -
{c] |Term Laass 131.481.38 =
dj [inier loars And borowing . .
Commancal Pagar =
it} |Public Depasils’ - -
y naure| - -
* Piease soe hobe 1 below
{2) |Break-up of (1}{f] above {Ouistanding public deposits
inclusihna of interest pocruid themon but not pakd):
i) _[in tha form of Unsacured debeniures - -1l
ik} [in the form of parily secured dabentures i.e.
debenfunes whess [Rerg i€ & shodtall in the value of i 2
security
[e] [Othar public dapasty - -
* Plaase sea Note 1 babrey
Assels side Amount cutstanging
1) |Break-up of Loans and Advances incisdng ils ecerables
[othr IFarm (hote inciudad in (d) below]:
Fl} Betured 151 454 11
(B} [Unsscuned _
(4) |Breakup of Leased Assets and slock on hire alhar assets
couniing lowards assed .
financing aclivitas
fil |Lease Asasts including hease reniss under Sundny .
BBl
8] |Fanancal -
B} |Oparating laass -
[} |Stock on M incluting hire charges unde: sundry -
deblors
fa] [Assels on hee z
(v) |[Repossessed Assats .
[@] | Othar laans counting towards assel financing actnites =
Loans where assets hawe been repossessad .
{8} |Loans other than {a) abowve -




Break-up of Invastmants

3] |Debentures and Bonds
[i]) l.h-tinhr-lu!ll'mdi
[t} |Gaveinment Secuntas
liv) [Cahers (ploase specify)

[iovh [ Gavemment Secunbes P

; |Ev;. [Deneds {planas apecily] -
' i} |Shares

. -
b} Praference -
(5] _{Cbardures ard Boands -
[wi) [units of muiuad lunds A
[t} [Gavermmen! Sacunbes -
[v) [Othess (Investment Proparty) ~ 51
[6) Borrower group-wise classification of asssis financed as in (3) and [(4) abowe:

[Please sas Mols 2 Bilow)

Catogory Amaunt net of provisions
e Secursd  [Unsecured  |Towl
1. [Rizlaied Partes "
(2] [Subsidiarios F -
[0) | Companies in ire Laims group - -
e} {Oihar redaded paties ' ' =
Fl. | Cnbeger thain reiated partes) 151,864,011 TS5, 484,11
E Total B 151,464 11 151 a6 11
I7) |Invasiar group-wise classification of all investments [current and long lerm) in shames and securities (both quoted
and ungquated) |
[[Prease soe hote 3 balow)
Markal Value | | Book Valus [Net af
Categury Broak up or fair | Prowisions)
wilag of HAY

1. |Ralaied Panes'
(&) |Subsidiares
B} _[Comparss in the samas group
{c] _|Other relased partes
Z__ |Cnher than refaled parties

Total
**As par nabified Accounting Standard (Pleats soe Nals 1




18} [Dther infonmation

- = Particulars Amount
i} |{Gross Non-Peroeming Assats

{3} |Falwted parss "
[ip} [Cirer than related parties 3.145.80
{i] | Nl Non-Perdorming Assats

(2l _[Related partes -
B) _[Direr than related parties 243445
(i) |Assals acguited in satsfaction of debi -
Hates: = =2

1 |As defired in Paragragh 4.1.20 of these Dingclions.

| Pravisiareng rorms shall be appheabls 45 presenbad in thess Diractons

Al notifsed Accounting SLanEands e BEORCEble inChudng or valuatan of iIneestmants nd GINeT SISS18 B8 BleO FEDEls
acouired i satisfaction of debi However. markel value in respect of guoled imvasimanis and Ereak up / faor value | AV in

regpad of unguabed imeestments shall be disclosed irespective of whethes they are clasailied as long lem of curment in (5)
above

3

For and on behall of the Board of Direclors of
Micro Housing Finance Corporaticn Lid,

Ch Andl Chirania
DiM: D253 DiN: D027

Membership Mo AJMET]
Place: Mumbat

Dae: Je-03-2022



